
Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight Committee

Meeting Agenda

375 Beale Street, Suite 

800

San Francisco, CA 94105

Chair- Brian David Shaw

Vice Chair- Pamela Kindig

Board Room - 1st Floor10:00 AMMonday, September 9, 2024

The Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee is scheduled to meet on

Monday September 9, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.

Meeting attendees may opt to attend in person for public comment and observation at 375

Beale Street, Board Room (1st Floor). In-person attendees must adhere to posted public

health protocols while in the building. The meeting webcast will be available at

https://mtc.ca.gov/whats-happening/meetings/live-webcasts. Members of the public are

encouraged to participate remotely via Zoom at the following link or phone number.

Members of the public participating by Zoom wishing to speak should use the “raise hand”

feature or dial *9. When called upon, unmute yourself or dial *6. In order to get the full Zoom

experience, please make sure your application is up to date.

Attendee Link: https://bayareametro.zoom.us/j/88583376276

iPhone One-Tap:     +13017158592,,88583376276# US (Washington DC)

    +13052241968,,88583376276# US

Join by Telephone (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location) US:

888 788 0099 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5247 (Toll Free)

Webinar ID: 885 8337 6276

International numbers available:  https://bayareametro.zoom.us/u/kwp5ndfrg

Detailed instructions on participating via Zoom are available at:

https://bayareametro.zoom.us/u/kdR1hznEgA

https://mtc.ca.gov/how-provide-public-comment-board-meeting-zoom

Members of the public may participate by phone or Zoom or may submit comments by email at

info@bayareametro.gov by 5:00 p.m. the day before the scheduled meeting date. Please

include the committee or board meeting name and agenda item number in the subject line.

All comments received will be submitted into the record.

Clerk: Wally Charles



September 9, 2024Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight 

Committee

Roster

Brian David Shaw, Chair and Pamela Kindig, Vice-Chair

Tim Ambrose, Steve Bridlebough, Pamela Frisella, Kevin Hagerty, Frederick Arn Hanssson,

William G. Jerry Hayes, John Maitland, Anu Natarajan, and Joanne Webster.

1.  Call to Order / Roll Call / Confirm Quorum

A quorum of the Committee shall be a majority of its voting members (6).

2.  Compensation Announcement (Clerk)

3.  Welcome

4.  Consent Calendar

Minutes of the May 31, 2024 Meeting24-10184a.

ApprovalAction:

4a_2024_05_31 Draft  Minutes RM3 Independent Oversight CommitteeAttachments:

5.  Approval / Information

Regional Measure 3 Allocations and Expenditures Update

Update on Regional Measure 3 (RM3) allocations and expenditures to 

date.

24-10195a.

InformationAction:

MTC StaffPresenter:

5a_1_Regional_Measure_3_Allocations & Expenditures

5a_2_Attach-A_Capital_Expenditure_Plan_Tracker

5a_3_Attach B_Commission Allocation

Attachments:

Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Capital Program Semi-Annual Update

Report on the status of the RM3 capital program and the progress of 

projects that have received RM3 capital funds, as presented to MTC’s 

Programming and Allocations Committee (PAC).

24-10935b.

InformationAction:

MTC StaffPresenter:

5b_1_Regional Measure 3 Semi Annual Report

5b_2_Attachment_A_RM3_Semi-Annual_Report_June_2024

5b_3_Attachment_B_RM3_Project _Status_Summaries

Attachments:



September 9, 2024Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight 

Committee

Draft RM3 Independent Oversight Committee Annual Report

Review of draft report to the legislature and discussion of refinement 

needed.

24-10205c.

InformationAction:

RM3IOC Chair and Vice Chair/MTC StaffPresenter:

5c_1_Draft IOC Annual Report Summary

5c_2_Draft IOC Annual Report

5c_3_Appendix I_DRAFT RM3_Annual_Report_to_the_Legislature_FY24

Attachments:

6.  Public Comment

Members of the public participating by Zoom wishing to speak should use the “raise 

hand” feature or dial *9. When called upon, unmute yourself or dial *6.

7.  Adjournment / Next Meeting

The next meeting of the RM3 Independent Oversight Committee will be held at a time 

and location to be duly noticed.



September 9, 2024Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight 

Committee

Accessibility and Title VI: MTC provides services/accommodations upon request to persons with 

disabilities and individuals who are limited-English proficient who wish to address Commission matters. 

For accommodations or translations assistance, please call 415.778.6757 or 415.778.6769 for 

TDD/TTY. We require three working days' notice to accommodate your request.

Public Comment: The public is encouraged to comment on agenda items at Committee meetings 

by completing a request-to-speak card (available from staff) and passing it to the Committee secretary.  
Public comment may be limited by any of the procedures set forth in Section 3.09 of MTC's Procedures 
Manual (Resolution No. 1058, Revised) if, in the chair's judgment, it is necessary to maintain the orderly 
flow of business.

Meeting Conduct: If this meeting is willfully interrupted or disrupted by one or more persons 

rendering orderly conduct of the meeting unfeasible, the Chair may order the removal of individuals who 
are willfully disrupting the meeting.  Such individuals may be arrested.  If order cannot be restored by 
such removal, the members of the Committee may direct that the meeting room be cleared (except for 
representatives of the press or other news media not participating in the disturbance), and the session 
may continue.

Record of Meeting: Committee meetings are recorded.  Copies of recordings are available at a 

nominal charge, or recordings may be listened to at MTC offices by appointment. Audiocasts are 
maintained on MTC's Web site (mtc.ca.gov) for public review for at least one year.

Attachments are sent to Committee members, key staff and others as appropriate. Copies will be 
available at the meeting.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La MTC puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del inglés quienes quieran dirigirse a la 
Comisión. Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número 415.778.6757 o al 415.778.6769 para 
TDD/TTY. Requerimos que solicite asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle 
proveer asistencia.



375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105Metropolitan Transportation

Commission

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 124-1018 Name:

Status:Type: Minutes Consent

File created: In control:8/1/2024 Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight
Committee

On agenda: Final action:9/9/2024

Title: Minutes of the May 31, 2024 Meeting

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 4a_2024_05_31 Draft  Minutes RM3 Independent Oversight Committee

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Subject:
Minutes of the May 31, 2024 Meeting

Recommended Action:
Approval

Attachments:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Printed on 9/4/2024Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270819&GUID=9F15CFF2-83C9-4D12-AD96-5CA253CD1762


375 Beale Street, Suite 

800

San Francisco, CA 94105

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight Committee

Chair- Brian David Shaw

Vice Chair- Pamela Kindig

1:00 PM Board Room - 1st FloorFriday, May 31, 2024

The Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee is scheduled to meet on 

Friday May 31, 2024 at 1:00 p.m.

This meeting shall consist of a simultaneous teleconference call at the following location(s):

Commons B, 684 Benicia Drive, Santa Rosa, CA  95409

Meeting attendees may opt to attend in person for public comment and observation at 375

Beale Street, Board Room (1st Floor). In-person attendees must adhere to posted public

health protocols while in the building. The meeting webcast will be available at

https://mtc.ca.gov/whats-happening/meetings/live-webcasts. Members of the public are

encouraged to participate remotely via Zoom at the following link or phone number.

Members of the public participating by Zoom wishing to speak should use the “raise hand”

feature or dial *9. When called upon, unmute yourself or dial *6. In order to get the full Zoom

experience, please make sure your application is up to date.

Attendee Link: https://bayareametro.zoom.us/j/81708320456

iPhone One-Tap:    +16694449171,,81708320456# US

+16699006833,,81708320456# US (San Jose)

Join by Telephone (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location) US:

888 788 0099 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5247 (Toll Free)

Webinar ID: 817 0832 0456

International numbers available: https://bayareametro.zoom.us/u/kdPJ47pgbB

Detailed instructions on participating via Zoom are available at:

https://bayareametro.zoom.us/u/kdR1hznEgA

https://mtc.ca.gov/how-provide-public-comment-board-meeting-zoom

Members of the public may participate by phone or Zoom or may submit comments by email at

info@bayareametro.gov by 5:00 p.m. the day before the scheduled meeting date. Please

include the committee or board meeting name and agenda item number in the subject line.

Due to the current circumstances, there may be limited opportunity to address comments

during the meeting. All comments received will be submitted into the record.

Clerk: Wally Charles

Page 1 Printed on 6/3/2024

Agenda Item 4a



May 31, 2024Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight 

Committee

Roster

Brian David Shaw, Chair and Pamela Kindig, Vice-Chair

Tim Ambrose, Steve Bridlebough, Kevin Hagerty, Frederick Arn Hanssson, William G. Jerry 

Hayes, John Maitland, Anu Natarajan, and Joanne Webster.

1.  Call to Order / Roll Call / Confirm Quorum

Member Hagerty, Member Webster, Vice Chair Kindig, Member Hanson, Chair 

Shaw, Member Hayes, Member Maitland and Member Birdlebough

Present: 8 - 

Member Natarajan and Member AmbroseAbsent: 2 - 

2.  Compensation Announcement (Clerk)

3.  Welcome

4.  Consent Calendar

Upon the motion by Member Hagerty and seconded by Member Hayes, the 

Consent Calendar was unanimously approved. The motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Member Hagerty, Vice Chair Kindig, Member Hanson, Chair Shaw, Member Hayes, 

Member Maitland and Member Birdlebough

7 - 

Absent: Member Natarajan and Member Ambrose2 - 

Abstain: Member Webster1 - 

4a. 24-0684 Minutes of the March 4, 2024 Meeting

Action: Board Approval

4a_24-0684_Minutes of the March 4, 2024 MeetingAttachments:

5.  Information

5a. 24-0544 Reigonal Measure 3 Allocations and Expenditures Update

Update on Regional Measure 3 (RM3) allocations and expenditures to 

date.

Action: Information

Presenter: MTC Staff

5a_24-0544_Regional Measure 3 Allocations & Expenditures

5ai_24-0544_RM3 Capital Expenditure Plan Tracker

5aii _24-0544_Commission Allocation

Attachments:

Page 2 Printed on 6/3/2024

https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=27283
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=04ab93b0-daed-4725-8c15-d6af99839139.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=27143
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=323b4a7f-7631-4d5f-b458-437b870e083c.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=07bdd1ef-c032-48f2-8bac-bff8d5e21d64.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5c7d07de-1035-4e0a-80a2-b07771bb8c0c.pdf


May 31, 2024Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight 

Committee

5b. 24-0685 Examples of Reports Produced by Peer Oversight Bodies

Action: Information

Presenter: MTC Staff

5b_24-0685_Peer Annual Report Examples

5bi_24-0685_AlamedaCTC IWC Annual Report

5bii_24-0685_VTA COC Annual Report.

5biii_24-0685_SamTrans Measure W COC Report.

Attachments:

5c. 24-0686 Draft Table of Contents for RM3 Independent Oversight Committee Annual 

Report

Action: Information

Presenter: MTC Staff

5c_24-0686_Annual Report Draft Table of Contents

5ci_24-0686_Annual Report Draft TOC

Attachments:

6.  Public Comment

7.  Adjournment / Next Meeting

The next meeting of the RM3 Independent Oversight Committee will be held at a time 

and location to be duly noticed.

Page 3 Printed on 6/3/2024

https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=27284
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=10572d66-469d-4bd8-bbf4-f78354663abb.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b59f9c69-3b18-4bb6-949e-f1af01135089.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d97a50f-b1d6-4a2c-b232-0dd797460323.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cbc90f2d-8741-4621-9238-d3c19830511d.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=27285
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b07ed32a-577c-4f11-9a14-0ff6f720f282.pdf
https://mtc.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f69cc469-1e25-4c1b-8ef7-0aa53c8a55dd.pdf


375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105Metropolitan Transportation

Commission

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 124-1019 Name:

Status:Type: Report Informational

File created: In control:8/1/2024 Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight
Committee

On agenda: Final action:9/9/2024

Title: Regional Measure 3 Allocations and Expenditures Update

Update on Regional Measure 3 (RM3) allocations and expenditures to date.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 5a_1_Regional_Measure_3_Allocations & Expenditures

5a_2_Attach-A_Capital_Expenditure_Plan_Tracker

5a_3_Attach B_Commission Allocation

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Subject:
Regional Measure 3 Allocations and Expenditures Update

Update on Regional Measure 3 (RM3) allocations and expenditures to date.

Presenter:

MTC Staff

Recommended Action:
Information
Attachments:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Printed on 9/4/2024Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270820&GUID=228E868B-F9B6-47F8-9374-9A2D7F1C0E2A
http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270822&GUID=AE75FDEC-1F91-42A7-8F55-32EB2BDF19B1
http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270825&GUID=884BA210-F006-48EC-8FCC-DFF51EBFBBEF


 

 
Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 

 
September 9, 2024 Agenda Item 5a 

Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Allocations and Expenditures Update 

Subject: 

Update on RM3 allocations and expenditures to date. 

Background: 

At the May 31st meeting, staff presented an update on the RM3 revenue collection through 

March 31, 2024, and allocations and expenditures through May 31, 2024. Today’s committee 

item includes recent updates to revenue collection, allocations, and expenditures. 

Revenue Collection 

In FY 2023-24, RM3 generated approximately  $213.4 million (final revenues for the fiscal year 

will be available in October after a financial statement audit). For the fourth quarter of the fiscal 

year—April 1 through June 30, 2024, RM3 generated $54.9 million. Additionally, Streets and 

Highways Code Section 30914.7(c) provides that, to the extent that funds made available for the 

ferry component of the RM3 operating program are not requested for expenditure by the San 

Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transportation Authority (“WETA”) in a given year, the 

funds will be held in a reserve account, until such time that WETA requests these funds for an 

operating or capital purpose. As of June 30, 2024, the WETA Operating Reserve amount was 

approximately $75 million. 

Allocations and Expenditures to Date 

In June and July 2024, the Commission approved $44.3 million in new capital allocations and 

$3.5 million in operating allocations. The Commission recessed in August. Additional operating 

and capital allocations were made via delegated authority in June, July, and August 2024. 

Attachment B, RM3 Capital Allocations Summary, provides an overview of the capital 

allocations made to date. Attachment C, Index of Commission Allocation Actions, breaks down 

the Commission meetings featuring RM3 capital and operating allocations by month, and 

includes links to where the staff reports and allocating resolutions can be viewed.  



RM3 Independent Oversight Committee  Agenda Item 5a 
September 9, 2024    
Page 2 of 2 
 
As of August 2024, the RM3 capital program has made a total of $1.5 billion in allocations, and 

$247 million has been reimbursed to project sponsors. In FY 2023-24, the RM3 operating 

program made a total of $20 million in allocations and has disbursed $16.2 million to project 

sponsors. 

An additional $85.5 million in capital allocations are recommended for approval by the 

Commission in September 2024. Details of these recommendations are available in the 

September 11, 2024 Programming and Allocations Committee meeting materials.  

Issues: 

None. 

Recommendation: 

Information only. 

Attachments: 

• Attachment A: Capital Allocations and Expenditures 

• Attachment B: Index of Commission Allocation Actions 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

        Andrew B. Fremier 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

J:\COMMITTE\RM3 Independent Oversight Committee\__Meetings\2024\2024_09_09\5a_Regional Measure 3 Allocations & 

Expenditures.docx 
 



Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

1 BART Expansion Cars   $                500  BART  $             500.0 4636 4/24/2024
2 Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes    $                317  MTC  

2.1 I-80 Express Lanes in Solano County  STA  $              70.4  $              70.4 4591 6/26/2023
2.2 I-80 Express Lanes in Solano County (Toll

System)
 BAIFA  $              31.3  $              31.3 4592 3/27/2024

2.3 I-680 Southbound Express Lanes in Alameda
County

 $ 80  ACTC  $              80.0  $              80.0 4597 7/26/2023

2.4 US 101 Express Lanes: I-380 to Santa Clara 
County Line

 $ 75  SMCTA 

2.X Reserve  $ 60  MTC 
3 Goods Movement and Mitigation  $                160  MTC/ACTC 

3.1 GoPort 7th St Grade Separation East  $ 55  ACTC  $              55.0  $              55.0 4598 7/26/2023
3.2 Railroad Safety Enhancement Program  $ 25  ACTC 
3.3 Neighborhood and Railroad Safety 

Improvements Near the Port of Oakland
 $ 55  City of Oakland 

3.X Remaining GoPort projects  $ 25 
4 San Francisco Bay Trail / Safe Routes to Transit   $                150  MTC 

5 Ferry Enhancement Program  $                300  WETA 
5.1 Mission Bay Ferry Landing  $ 25  WETA  $              25.0  $ 0.7 4614 11/22/2023
5.2 Shoreline Electrical Program  WETA  $ 0.8 4614 3/27/2024
5.3 Berkeley Marina Ferry Facility  WETA  $ 3.0 4614 7/24/2024
5.4 Three 149-Passenger Electric Ferry Vessels  WETA  $              18.0 4614 9/25/2024

6 BART to San Jose Phase 2  $                375  VTA 
7 Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit (SMART)  $ 40  SMART  $ 5.0 
8 Capitol Corridor 90$  CCJPA
9 Caltrain Downtown Extension 325$                 TJPA 100.7$             4612 11/22/2023

10 Muni Fleet Expansion & Facilities 140$                 SFMTA
10.1 Potrero Modernization Project SFMTA 3.5$  4615 12/20/2023
10.2 Light Rail Vehicle (LRV) Procurement SFMTA 6.5$  4615 1/24/2024
10.3 40’/60’ hybrid buses SFMTA 27.0$               4615 1/24/2024
10.4 Kirkland Electrification SFMTA 6.5$  4615 7/24/2024
10.5 Battery Electric Bus procurement SFMTA 2.38$               4615 2/28/2024
10.6 Presidio Yard Modernization SFMTA 12.95$            4615 3/27/2024

 $               102 

Page 1 of 4

RM3 IOC - September 9, 2024 Item 5a Attachment A



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

10.7 Vintage Streetcar Rehabilitation SFMTA 6.72$               4615 6/26/2024
10.8 New Flyer Midlife Overhaul SFMTA 11.34$            4615 6/26/2024

11 Core Capacity Transit Improvements 140$                 MTC/ACTC/AC Transit
12 AC Transit Rapid Bus Corridor Improvements  $                100  AC Transit/ACTC 

12.1 Telegraph Rapid  AC Transit  $                 2.7 4613 11/22/2023
12.2 Quick Build Transit Priority Projects  AC Transit   $                 1.5 4613 12/20/2023

13 Transbay Rail Crossing  $                  50  BART 
14 Tri-Valley Transit Access Improvements  $                100  MTC /tbd 
15 Eastridge to BART Regional Connector  $                130  VTA  $             130.0 4596 7/26/2023
16 San Jose Diridon Station  $                100  VTA  $               30.0  $               30.1 4608 7/24/2024
17 Dumbarton Corridor Improvements  $                130  BATA/ACTC/ 

SMCTD/SMCTA 
17.1 San Mateo Dumbarton Busway  $                    5  SamTrans  $                 4.1 4660 7/24/2024

18 Highway 101/ State Route 92 Interchange  $                  50  C/CAG/ SMCTA 
18.1 101/92 Area Improvements Project  SMCTA  $            0.025  $              22.0 4635 6/26/2024
18.2 101/92 Direct Connector Project  SMCTA  $                 2.0  $                 2.0 4599 7/26/2023

19 Contra Costa I-680/SR-4 Interchange 
Improvements

 $                210  CCTA 

19.1 I-680/SR-4 Interchange Improvement Phase 1 
and 2A

 $               210  CCTA  $                8.0  $              17.0 4586 9/25/2024

19.2 I-680/SR-4 Interchange Improvement - Trail 
Connection Feasibility Study

 $                    1  CCTA  $                 0.5 4586 3/27/2024

20 Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows  $                120  TAM/SCTA 

20.1 Marin Segment  $                  88  TAM  $              88.0  $              88.0 4593 6/26/2023
20.2 Marin Sonoma Narrows - Sonoma Segment  $                  30  SCTA  $                   -    $                 3.0 4640 7/24/2024

21 Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange 
Project

 $                133  STA  $               18.6 

21.1 Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange 
Project (Package 2)

 STA  $                 3.7 4594 12/20/2023

21.2 Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange 
Project (Package 5)

 STA  $              10.0 4594 12/20/2023

22 Interstate 80 Westbound Truck Scales  $                105  STA  $                 5.3  $               95.2 4595 9/25/2024
23 State Route 37 Improvements  $                100 TAM/NVTA/STA/SCTA

Page 2 of 4



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

23.1 SR 37 and Fairgrounds Drive Interchange  $                  15  STA  $              15.0 4602 7/26/2023
23.2 Interim Segment B - PAED & PS&E  $                  20  SCTA/MTC  $                   -    $              10.1 4607 7/24/2024
23.3 Hwy 37/121 Improvements - PAED  $                    4  SCTA 
23.4 Segments A1 & A2 Levee Study 3 TAM
23.5 Segment A & B Improvements  $                  58  SCTA/TAM 

24 San Rafael Transit Center  $                  30  GGBHTD 
25 Richmond-San Rafael Bridge Access 

Improvements 
 $                210  BATA/CCTA/TAM 

25.1 US-101/I-580 Direct Connector  $               135  TAM  $                 5.6  $                 7.8 4606 10/25/2023
25.2 I-580 Richmond Parkway Interchange 

Operational Improvements
 $                    7  BATA/CCTA  $              0.95 4631 2/28/2024

25.3 Cutting Boulevard Transit Improvements  $                    3  BATA  $              0.45 4632 2/28/2024
26 North Bay Transit Improvements   $                100  MTC 
26.1 Vine Transit Maintenance Facility  $                  20  NVTA  $              20.0  $              20.0 4584 6/26/2023
26.2 Solano Rail Hub  $                    2  STA  $                 2.0 4584 7/26/2023
26.3 County Connection Bus Replacements  $                    5  CCCTA  $                 5.0 4584 9/27/2023
26.4 ECCTA Hydrogen Fuel  $                 3.5 ECCTA 0.30$               4584 5/22/2024
26.5 Windsor Extension - Windsor High School 

Undercrossing 
 $                 2.8 

SMART
 $                 2.8 4584 5/22/2024

26.6 Bus Replacement  $              3.17 ECCTA
26.X Solano Projects TBD  $                  18  STA 
26.X Contra Costa Projects TBD  $                    8  CCTA 
26.X Sonoma Projects TBD  $                  17  SCTA 
26.X Marin Projects TBD  $                  20  TAM 

27 State Route 29  $                  20  NVTA  $               20.0  $               20.0 4583 6/26/2023

28 Next-Generation Clipper Transit Fare Payment 
System

 $                  50  MTC  $               30.0  $               50.0 4609 11/22/2023

29 I-680/I-880/Route 262 Freeway Connector  $                  15  ACTC  $               10.0  $               10.0 4601 7/26/2023
30 I-680/SR 84 Interchange Reconstruction 

Project
 $                  85  ACTC  $               85.0  $               85.0 4600 7/26/2023

31 I-80 Transit Improvements  $                  25  CCTA 

32 Byron Highway Vasco Road Airport Connector  $                  10  CCTA 

Page 3 of 4



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

33 Vasco Road Safety Improvements  $                  15  CCTA 
34 East Contra Costa County Transit Intermodal 

Center
 $                  15  CCTA 

34.1 Mokelumne Trail Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Overcrossing of SR-4

 $                  13  CCTA  $              13.0  $              14.0 4585 1/24/2024

35 I-680 Transit Improvements  $                  10  CCTA 

35.1 Martinez Amtrak Station Shared Mobility Hub  $              0.48 4641 5/22/2024
Total  $             4,450  $             602.1  $          1,590.5 

Notes
1

2

3 LONPs have been issued under MTC Res. No. 4412
4 Inclusive of current month requests, which are indicated in bold font.

For full legislated project description and project sponsor language, please refer to California Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7, 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=SHC&sectionNum=30914.7.

Sub-projects are indicated with shading. Sub-project designation has been made under MTC Res. No. 4411 for MTC/BATA/BAIFA sponsored programmatic 
categories, and/or under MTC Res. No. 4412 for LONPs, and/or in allocating resolutions. Project 23 subprojects are as agreed upon by SR 37 Policy Committee, 
which includes representatives from the four project sponsor county transportation authorities.

Page 4 of 4



 

 
Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 

 
September 9, 2024 Agenda Item 5a Attachment B 

Regional Measure 3 Allocations and Expenditures Update 

Index of Commission Allocation Actions - June 2024 through August 2024 

 

Operating Program 

Commission Allocation Actions 

July 2024: 

MTC Resolution Nos. 4654. Allocation of $3,549,361 FY2024-25 RM3 Operating Program 

funds to support Transbay Terminal operations.  

https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13093261&GUID=4208D555-43FE-420A-A478-

C354470A62E2 

Delegated Authority Actions1 

• May 20242: The Executive Director approved delegated authority operating allocations 

totaling $2,471,413 allocated to five sponsors, each receiving less than $1 million. 

Capital Program 

Commission Allocation Actions 

June 2024: 

MTC Resolution Nos. 4615 Revised; 4635 Revised; and 4640. Allocation of $22.7 million in 

Regional Measure 3 (RM3) capital funds to: 

• Muni Fleet Expansion & Facilities—$6.7 million to San Francisco Municipal 

Transportation Agency (SFMTA) for the Vintage Streetcar Rehabilitation Project (RM3 

Project #10.7), $11.34 million to SFMTA for the New Flyer Midlife Overhaul Project 

(RM3 Project #10.8) 

https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13093261&GUID=4208D555-43FE-420A-A478-C354470A62E2
https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13093261&GUID=4208D555-43FE-420A-A478-C354470A62E2


RM3 Independent Oversight Committee  Agenda 5a 
September 9, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

• Highway 101/ State Route 92 Interchange—$2.7 million to San Mateo County 

Transportation Authority (SMCTA) for the US Highway 101/State Route 92 Area 

Improvements Project (RM3 Project #18.1) 

• Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows—$2 million to Sonoma County Transportation 

Authority (SCTA) for the Marin Sonoma Narrows Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 

Project (RM3 Project #20.2). 

https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6720503&GUID=BF1787BB-B713-480A-

A583-72B6A1B447D0&Options=&Search= 

July 2024: 

MTC Resolution Nos. 4614 Revised; 4615 Revised; 4608, Revised; 4660; 4640, Revised and 

4607, Revised. Allocation of $21.6 million in Regional Measure 3 (RM3) capital funds to:  

• RM3 Project 5, Ferry Enhancement Program—$3 million to San Francisco Water 

Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA) for the Berkeley Marina Ferry Facility 

Project (RM3 Project #5.3) 

• RM3 Project 10, Muni Fleet Expansion & Facilities—$2.7 million to SFMTA for the 

Kirkland Electrification Project (RM3 Project #10.4)  

• RM3 Project 16, San Jose Diridon Station—$6.3 million in RM3 funds to Santa Clara 

Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) for the preliminary engineering and planning 

phase.  

• RM3 Project 17, Dumbarton Corridor Improvements—$4.1 million to San Mateo County 

Transit District (SamTrans) for the San Mateo Dumbarton Busway (RM3 Project #17.1) 

• RM3 Project 20, Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows—$1 million to SCTA for the 

Marin Sonoma Narrows Visual Mitigation Landscaping Project (RM3 Project #20.2) 

• RM3 Project 23, State Route 37 Improvements—$4.5 million to MTC for the SR-37 

Sears Point to Mare Island Improvement Project (RM3 Project #23.2) 

This action also rescinded $6 million in savings from the right of way phase of the San Jose 

Diridon Station Project. 

https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6720503&GUID=BF1787BB-B713-480A-A583-72B6A1B447D0&Options=&Search=
https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6720503&GUID=BF1787BB-B713-480A-A583-72B6A1B447D0&Options=&Search=


RM3 Independent Oversight Committee  Agenda 5a 
September 9, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 
https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6771396&GUID=DFBA6E23-011D-4D33-

AC0B-1FC78819A712&Options=&Search= 

Delegated Authority Actions1 

• June 2024: the Executive Director approved extensions to the expiration dates of six 

RM3 allocations across four projects.  

• July 2024: The Executive Director approved one delegated authority capital allocation 

totaling $1 million in RM3 funds. 

 

Note 1: MTC Resolution No. 3620, Revised, adopted by the Commission in March 2004, allows 

the Executive Director to make administrative allocations of local funds (including RM3) up to 

$1 million. Staff also use the Delegated Authority process to approve extensions of capital 

allocation expiration dates. 

Note 2: The previous Index of Commission Allocation Actions included Commission Actions 

through May 2024. The May 2024 Delegated Authority Action had not yet been finalized by the 

time of the IOC meeting, so it is included in this report.  

 

Prior Indices of Commission Allocation Actions: 

March 4, 2024 IOC Item 5b: 

https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12721363&GUID=03EC0E77-71F3-426E-925A-

14B2F80F753C 

May 31, 2024 IOC Item 5a: 

https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12980723&GUID=9D09C1B4-26C8-47C1-

B9D3-A6BB2E0FE934 
 

https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6771396&GUID=DFBA6E23-011D-4D33-AC0B-1FC78819A712&Options=&Search=
https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6771396&GUID=DFBA6E23-011D-4D33-AC0B-1FC78819A712&Options=&Search=
https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12721363&GUID=03EC0E77-71F3-426E-925A-14B2F80F753C
https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12721363&GUID=03EC0E77-71F3-426E-925A-14B2F80F753C
https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12980723&GUID=9D09C1B4-26C8-47C1-B9D3-A6BB2E0FE934
https://mtc.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=12980723&GUID=9D09C1B4-26C8-47C1-B9D3-A6BB2E0FE934


375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105Metropolitan Transportation

Commission

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 124-1093 Name:

Status:Type: Report Informational

File created: In control:8/21/2024 Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight
Committee

On agenda: Final action:9/9/2024

Title: Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Capital Program Semi-Annual Update

Report on the status of the RM3 capital program and the progress of projects that have received RM3
capital funds, as presented to MTC’s Programming and Allocations Committee (PAC).

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 5b_1_Regional Measure 3 Semi Annual Report

5b_2_Attachment_A_RM3_Semi-Annual_Report_June_2024

5b_3_Attachment_B_RM3_Project _Status_Summaries

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Subject:
Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Capital Program Semi-Annual Update

Report on the status of the RM3 capital program and the progress of projects that have received

RM3 capital funds, as presented to MTC’s Programming and Allocations Committee (PAC).

Presenter:

MTC Staff

Recommended Action:
Information
Attachments:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Printed on 9/4/2024Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270826&GUID=565D9C18-9ADC-4E24-9E57-CBB0F974E916
http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270827&GUID=9BE43EEA-3C28-409E-8FE9-26EBEF85BBDA
http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270829&GUID=D130F392-A823-4918-A584-056218A17C06


 

 
Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 

 
September 9, 2024 Agenda Item 5b 

Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Capital Program Semi-Annual Update 

Subject: 

Report on the status of the RM3 capital program and the progress of projects that have received 

RM3 capital funds, as presented to MTC’s Programming and Allocations Committee (PAC). 

Background: 

At the June 12, 2024 PAC Meeting, staff presented the RM3 Capital Program Semi-Annual 

Update. This report is prepared twice a year as required by the RM3 Policies and Procedures. 

The report is included as Attachment A to this item, and a supplemental summary of the status of 

each project with an RM3 capital allocation is included as Attachment B.  

Issues: 

None. 

Recommendation: 

Information only. 

Attachments: 

• Attachment A – Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Capital Program Semi-annual Update 

• Attachment B – RM3 Project Status Summaries 

 

 

  _________________________________________ 

        Andrew B. Fremier 

 

 

 

 
 

J:\COMMITTE\RM3 Independent Oversight Committee\__Meetings\2024\2024_09_09\5b_Regional Measure 3 Semi Annual Report.docx 
 



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 1 of 7 

June 2024 RM3 Capital Program Semi-Annual Report 

This report summarizes the status of the RM3 capital program and provides updates on RM3-

funded projects, including highlights of recently completed projects and notable progress.  

RM3 Program Overview and Updates 

The RM3 capital program has a total program amount of $4.45 billion in capital funds for 

transportation improvements throughout the Bay Area.  

In June 2023, following the resolution of the lawsuits that delayed implementation of RM3, the 

Commission began allocating funds to RM3 projects, beginning with projects that had received 

Letters of No Prejudice (LONPs) to begin work prior to the release of RM3 funds.  

As of May 2024, MTC has approved $1.47 billion in RM3 capital allocations, or 33% of the total 

RM3 capital program, to 42 projects or subprojects. MTC has approved $131 million, or 3% of 

the total RM3 capital program, in reimbursements to these projects.  

RM3 IOC - September 9, 2024 Item 5b, Attachment A



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 2 of 7 

The following tables show the distribution of allocations by mode and county. 

Allocations by 
Mode 

Allocated 
($M) 

Allocations by County Allocated 
($M) 

Transit $903 Regional/Multiple $551 

Highway $549 Alameda $234 

Active 
Transportation 

$14 Contra Costa $35 

Total $1,466 Marin $96 

Napa $40 

San Francisco $157 

San Mateo $21 

Santa Clara $160 

Solano $163 

Sonoma $9 

Total $1,466 

Because the RM3 capital funds are distributed on a reimbursement basis, project sponsors have 

likely spent additional funds on RM3 projects that have not yet been invoiced to or approved by 

MTC. Staff continues to work with sponsors to submit timely invoices based on the information 

provided to MTC as part of the RM3 Initial Project Reports. 

Letters of No Prejudice 

Prior to the resolution of the RM3 litigation and release of RM3 funds, MTC issued Letters of No 

Prejudice (LONPs) to projects in the RM3 expenditure plan that were ready to proceed with 

RM3-eligible work using alternative funding, allowing the sponsor to preserve eligibility to 

request RM3 allocation and reimbursement at a later date if and when funding was available. 

MTC issued LONPs to 20 projects or subprojects totaling $602 million in RM3 funding. When 

RM3 allocations began in 2023, MTC staff prioritized allocating funds to projects with LONPs. 

Almost all projects with approved LONPs have received an allocation for those funds, many 

were able to make significant progress and advance towards later phases, and a few were 

completed, as highlighted later in this report.  

A few projects have not received allocations for their full LONP amount. The Mission Bay Ferry 

Landing project was delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic and a related cost increase;  The 

Water Emergency Transit Authority (WETA) is conducting a value engineering and feasibility 

study to determine how the project will move forward. The Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 

(SMART) extension to Windsor and Healdsburg secured other funds to complete the LONP 

scope and is working with MTC staff to determine the scope for the remaining RM3 funds. The 



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 3 of 7 

original LONP scope for the I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange project was advanced with other 

funding sources and required less RM3 funding than originally planned to complete; the 

remaining RM3 funding will be used for later phases of the project.  

Approved Changes to Projects 

After a public hearing in December 2023, the Commission approved the following changes to 

the RM3 expenditure plan in January 2024:  

• Redirect $16,700,000 in funds from the Solano County I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange

Project (RM3 project #21) to the Solano I-80 Express Lanes (Toll System) project –

part of the Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes suite of projects (under RM3 project #2)

• Modify scope of the SMART project (RM3 project #7) to clarify eligibility of the multi-

use pathway along SMART right-of-way.

• Modify scope of Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows (RM3 project #20) to extend

the project limits approximately 4.5 miles from Petaluma Blvd. South to Petaluma

Blvd. North in Petaluma and approximately three (3) miles from Atherton Ave. to

State Route 37 in Novato.

• Add the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as a joint project sponsor to

State Route 37 Improvements (RM3 project #23)

In April 2024, the Executive Director approved via Delegated Authority an update to the project 

title and scope for the Cutting Boulevard Transit Improvements project (RM3 Project #25.3) to 

accurately capture the full extent of the Cutting Boulevard, I-80, and San Pablo Boulevard 

intersection. The Delegated Authority action did not make any changes to the allocation 

amount. This was the first use of Delegated Authority for RM3 Capital Allocations.   

RM3-Funded Project and Program Updates 

This section provides updates on completed projects, projects advancing into construction, and 

regional megaprojects and programs. A brief status update on all projects with RM3 capital 

allocations is included in Attachment B: RM3 Project Status Summaries. For this semi-annual 

report, updates from project sponsors were only collected for projects with RM3 allocations as 

of March 2024; updates for a few other significant projects without allocations or with more 

recent allocations are also included in this section.  

Completed Projects 

Solano County I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange Project (Package 2) 

• An LONP for this project was approved in 2020 and RM3 funds were allocated in

2023.

• Together with the other I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange Packages, this project will

reduce congestion and improve safety on this key regional corridor.



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 4 of 7 

• Construction on package 2 is complete and project is in closeout.

Vine Transit Maintenance Facility 

• An LONP for this project was approved in 2021 and RM3 funds were allocated in

2023.

• The maintenance facility will support electrification of the Vine transit fleet and

provide sufficient space to expand the fleet to meet projected growth.

• Construction was completed and the facility began operations in March 2024 and

closeout is expected Summer 2024.

County Connection Bus Replacements 

• RM3 funds were allocated to this project in 2023.

• The RM3 funding served as match for federal funding to replace forty buses and

related equipment and infrastructure.

• The final buses were delivered and the project was completed in October 2023.

Mokelumne Trail Bicycle/Pedestrian Overcrossing of SR-4 

• An LONP for this project was approved in 2021 and RM3 funds were allocated in

2023.

• The overcrossing closes a gap between the Mokelumne Trail segments east and west

of the highway and improves access for cyclists and pedestrians to neighborhoods,

recreation, and transit on either side of the highway.

• The overcrossing opened to the public in March 2024 and closeout is expected

Summer 2024.

Projects that Entered Construction this Reporting Period 

AC Transit Telegraph Rapid 

• Construction contract awarded and construction began.

AC Transit Quick-Build Transit Priority Projects 

• Construction contract awarded and construction began.

Eastridge to BART Regional Connector 

• The full RM3 amount of $130 million was allocated for construction in July 2023.

• Start of construction was delayed due to high construction bids.

• VTA secured additional state and local funds to cover the difference between the

engineer’s cost estimate and the construction contract bids.

• Construction contract was awarded in March 2024.

• New construction completion date is 2029.



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 5 of 7 

Regional Megaprojects and Programs 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) Expansion Cars 

• Full RM3 amount of $500 million was allocated in April 2024.

• The railcar delivery contract is partially funded by RM3 and is already underway.

• Delivery of the expansion cars will follow the soon to be completed delivery of the

775 replacement cars.

Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes 

• A total of $182 million has been allocated to express lanes projects in Solano and

Alameda Counties.

• All projects with allocations under this program are in construction.

Caltrain Downtown Extension (“The Portal”) 

• The Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA) completed 30% design.

• Received Federal Transit Administration (FTA) medium-high rating in February and

was recommended for $500 million in in the FY25 draft budget.

• Accepted into the Engineering phase of the federal Capital Investment Grant (CIG)

program in May with a lower federal share than requested – leaving a larger

construction funding gap.

• TJPA will be preparing a revised Financial Plan and Project Management Plan.

• RM3-funded right-of-way acquisition is expected to advance by the end of 2025.

• Plan to request additional RM3 funds for pre-construction work in fall or winter

2024.

San Jose Diridon Station 

• Early right-of-way acquisition of key parcels was completed using RM3 funds.

• Diridon Station business case (non-RM3 funded) work continued.

• The project has completed conceptual design and will enter the environmental

phase starting in 2025 and anticipates completion by 2028.

• Plan to request additional RM3 funds for preliminary engineering and environmental

work in summer or fall 2024.

BART to Silicon Valley Phase 2 

• RM3 funding planned for Construction; may request allocation in late fall 2024 or

winter 2025.

• Seeking entry into Capital Investment Grant (CIG) Engineering phase by the end of

2024.



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 6 of 7 

Issues 

RM3 Funding Does Not Escalate 

RM3 funding for each legislated project is fixed and does not escalate over time with 

inflation. Delays in allocating and expending funds will effectively reduce the value of 

RM3 investments, requiring larger portions of projects to be funded through other 

sources. Delivering projects and programs sooner rather than later will preserve the 

purchasing power of RM3 investments. 

Risk of Cost Increases and Delivery Challenges 

Through RM3, MTC has invested or plans to invest significantly in several megaprojects 

and other large capital projects. Large projects with long delivery timelines are at high 

risk for delays, cost increases, and other delivery issues. Staff are continuing to 

coordinate internally and with project sponsors to monitor progress on these projects 

and respond to issues as they come up. Staff are also working to develop MTC’s role in 

project oversight and risk management, including through the MAP stage gate process. 

Invoicing, Reimbursements, and Cash Flow 

Most sponsors with RM3 allocations have been submitting invoices at a slower pace 

than was planned in their allocation requests. This may be partially due the a lag time 

between when a project incurs costs and when the sponsor invoices MTC for 

reimbursement, but this Semi-Annual report has found that many projects with early 

RM3 allocations have encountered delays at all stages of project development and 

construction, including but not limited to longer-than-expected public outreach and 

alternatives development in the environmental phase, difficulty or delays in developing 

agreements or other coordination with project partners, higher-than-expected 

procurement bids and other issues with contract negotiations, and weather and 

environmental mitigation delays to construction.  

Staff rely on the cash flow estimates provided by project sponsors to plan for future RM3 

allocations and reimbursements, including when making decisions about investing 

collected bridge toll funds and issuing bonds. Inconsistencies between the cash flow 

plans provided by sponsors and the actual spend down rates create risk for MTC, and 

further highlight the need for improved risk management and project oversight 

throughout the region.  

Look Ahead 

• $22.7 million in RM3 funds are recommended for allocation in June to four projects.

• Over $1 billion in new allocation requests are anticipated in FY25, based on timelines

and estimates provided by project sponsors.  This may include (depending on project



Programming and Allocations Committee

June 12, 2024  

   Attachment A  

Page 7 of 7 

readiness) advancement of the Safe Routes to Transit and Bay Trail program, pre-

construction for The Portal, construction of BART to Silicon Valley Phase 2, planning 

and environmental phases of Diridon Station, Interstate 80 West-Bound Truck Scales 

and advancement of other projects and programs throughout the region such as 

WETA’s Ferry Enhancement, MUNI Fleet Expansion and Facilities and North Bay 

Transit Improvements.  

• Over $750 million in RM3 spenddown via invoices from project sponsors is

anticipated in FY25, based on timelines and estimates provided by project sponsors.



Programming and Allocations Committee  
June 12, 2024  
Page 1 of 2

Attachment B

RM3 Semi Annual Report: Project Status Summaries

Project # Project Title Sponsor

 Allocated 
Amount 
($M) Current Phase

Project Status Summary - Spring 2025 - As reported by 
project sponsor

1 BART Expansion Cars BART 500.00$    
Construction (Vehicle 
Procurement) Allocated April 2024, will begin reporting next round

2.1
I-80 Express Lanes in Solano
County STA 70.42$     Construction Construction continuing as planned

2.2
I-80 Express Lanes in Solano
County (Toll System) BAIFA 31.30$     Construction

Construction continuing; a delay in permitting resulted in delay 
to the start of installation

2.3
I-680 Southbound Express
Lanes in Alameda County ACTC 80.00$     Construction Construction continuing as planned

3.1
GoPort 7th St Grade 
Separation East ACTC 55.00$     Construction

Construction continuing; cost increase due to required 
coordination with Union Pacific Railroad

5.1 Mission Bay Ferry Landing WETA 0.70$    Design
Initiated feasibility analysis and value engineering for existing 
design

5.2 Shoreline Electrical Program WETA 0.80$    Env/prelim. Engineering Allocated March 2024, will begin reporting next round

9
Caltrain Downtown 
Extension TJPA 100.70$      Design/ROW

RM3-funded ROW phase delayed to FY25; for overall project, 
30% design completed, FTA Medium-High rating assigned, and 
entered into CIG Engineering phase; TJPA to develop revised 
Financial Plan and Project Management Plan; project has 
funding gap for construction

10.1
Potrero Modernization 
Project SFMTA 3.50$    Env and PS&E

Environmental nearly complete and on track for construction 
groundbreaking in Fall 2024

10.2
Light Rail Vehicle (LRV) 
Procurement SFMTA 6.50$    

Construction (Vehicle 
Procurement)

RM3 funds supporting delivery of 151 replacement vehicles; 
Delivery of rail vehicles continuing as planned at a rate of 3 cars 
per month; replacement vehicle contract more than 50% 
complete

10.3 40’/60’ hybrid buses SFMTA 27.00$     Design
Design nearly complete, procurement contract negotiations in 
progress

10.4 Kirkland Electrification SFMTA 3.80$    Env/early design
Early design nearly complete and plan to contract with final 
design and environmental consultants soon

10.5
Battery Electric Bus 
procurement SFMTA 2.38$    Design Design is continuing as planned

10.6 Presidio Yard Modernization SFMTA 12.59$     Environmental Allocated March 2024, will begin reporting next round

12.1 Telegraph Rapid AC Transit 2.70$    Construction
Construction contract awarded and preliminary construction 
began; minor delay during contractor procurement

12.2
Quick Build Transit Priority 
Projects AC Transit 1.50$    Construction

Construction contract awarded and preliminary construction 
began

15
Eastridge to BART Regional 
Connector VTA 130.00$    Construction

Construction contract bids came in well over the engineers 
estimate, resulting in a 28% cost increase to Construction and 
an expected delay of one year; VTA secured additional state and 
local funds and awarded the contract in May 2024

16 San Jose Diridon Station VTA 30.00$     Planning/ROW
Early ROW acquisition completed Dec 2023. Diridon business 
case work continued

18.1
101/92 Area Improvements 
Project SMCTA 19.30$     Planning Allocated March 2024, will begin reporting next round

18.2
101/92 Direct Connector 
Project SMCTA 2.00$    PA&ED

Planning and Environmental phase continuing with schedule 
delay

19.1
I-680/SR-4 Interchange
Improvement Phase 1 and 2A CCTA 13.00$     Final Design

Final design nearly complete and under review; approx. six 
month delay and potential cost increase due to complexity of 
design

19.2

I-680/SR-4 Interchange
Improvement - Trail
Connection Feasibility Study CCTA 0.50$    Planning Allocated March 2024, will begin reporting next round

20.1 Marin Segment TAM 87.98$     PSE/Construction

B7 segment: Construction continuing as planned
B8 segment: PS&E continued; funding gap causing delays to 
ROW acquisition

21.1

Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-
12 Interchange Project 
(Package 2) STA 3.70$    Completed Construction completed

21.2

Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-
12 Interchange Project 
(Package 5) STA 10.00$     PS&E Plan to award contract for PS&E soon

22
Interstate 80 Westbound 
Truck Scales STA 30.74$     PS&E and ROW PS&E and ROW continuing as planned

23.1
SR 37 and Fairgrounds Drive 
Interchange STA 15.00$     Pre-Construction Plan to issue construction RFP soon

RM3 IOC - September 9, 2024 Item 5b, Attachment B



Programming and Allocations Committee  
June 12, 2024  
Page 2 of 2

Attachment B
A

23.2
Interim Segment B - PAED & 
PS&E SCTA 6.00$    PS&E and ROW

Began PS&E and early ROW activities; approx. one year delay 
and 4% PS&E cost increase due to development of agreements 
and phasing to mitigate environmental impacts; project has 
funding gap for construction

25.1
US-101/I-580 Direct 
Connector TAM 7.80$    Environmental

Preliminary engineering completed with one- to two-year delay 
due to longer-than-expected public outreach; environmental 
phase beginning summer 2024; project has funding gap for 
construction

25.2

I-580 Richmond Parkway
Interchange Operational
Improvements BATA/CCTA 0.95$    Environmental

Plan to award contracts for engineering and environmental work 
soon

25.3
Cutting Boulevard Transit 
Improvements BATA 0.45$    Planning/ Environmental Plan to award contract for design soon

26.1
Vine Transit Maintenance 
Facility NVTA 20.00$     Substantially Complete

Began operations in March 2024; notice of completion for 
construction expected summer 2024

26.2 Solano Rail Hub STA 2.00$    Planning/ Environmental
Planning and Environmental phase continued as planned; likely 
delay due to Amtrak coordination

26.3
County Connection Bus 
Replacements CCCTA 5.00$    Complete

Buses were delivered and project is complete as of October 
2024

26.4 Hydrogen Fueling Station ECCTA 0.30$    Design Allocated May 2024, will begin reporting next round

26.5
Windsor Extension - Windsor 
High School Undercrossing SMART 2.80$    Construction Allocated May 2024, will begin reporting next round

27 State Route 29 NVTA 20.00$     Construction

Construction continuing; 3% construction cost increase for 
additional construction support activities; environmental 
mitigation may have schedule impacts

28
Next-Generation Clipper 
Transit Fare Payment System MTC 50.00$     

Construction 
(implementation) Equipment installation nearly complete; system testing ongoing

29
I-680/I-880/Route 262
Freeway Connector ACTC 10.00$     Environmental

Environmental phase ongoing; two-year delay and nearly 50% 
cost increase for the environmental phase caused by longer-
than-expected scoping and alternative refinement 

30
I-680/SR 84 Interchange
Reconstruction Project ACTC 85.00$     Construction

Construction continuing; minor delay due to weather impacts 
and environmental restrictions

34.1

Mokelumne Trail 
Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Overcrossing of SR-4 CCTA 14.00$     Substantially Complete

Construction completed and opened to the public March 20, 
2024; closeout pending ongoing environmental monitoring

35.1

Martinez Amtrak & Walnut 
Creek BART Shared Mobility 
Hubs CCTA 0.50$    Env and PS&E Allocated May 2024, will begin reporting next round



375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105Metropolitan Transportation

Commission

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 124-1020 Name:

Status:Type: Report Informational

File created: In control:8/1/2024 Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Independent Oversight
Committee

On agenda: Final action:9/9/2024

Title: Draft RM3 Independent Oversight Committee Annual Report

Review of draft report to the legislature and discussion of refinement needed.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 5c_1_Draft IOC Annual Report Summary

5c_2_Draft IOC Annual Report

5c_3_Appendix I_DRAFT RM3_Annual_Report_to_the_Legislature_FY24

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Subject:
Draft RM3 Independent Oversight Committee Annual Report

Review of draft report to the legislature and discussion of refinement needed.

Presenter:

RM3IOC Chair and Vice Chair/MTC Staff

Recommended Action:
Information
Attachments:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission Printed on 9/4/2024Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270830&GUID=31357A51-663E-49A7-919A-D2A1E17BAA54
http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13275555&GUID=05D77327-B059-4595-80FB-FBB48B0D3603
http://mtc.legistar.com:443/View.ashx?M=F&ID=13270834&GUID=1A35F8AC-9664-4825-A5C3-55BD84C7EA7C


 

 
Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 

 
September 9, 2024 Agenda Item 5c 

Draft RM3 Independent Oversight Committee Annual Report 

Subject: 

Review of the RM3 Independent Oversight Committee (IOC) Annual Report to the Legislature 

under development and discussion of refinement needed. 

Background: 

The responsibility and purview of the RM3 IOC is to annually review the expenditure of funds 

by BATA for the projects and programs specified in the RM3 statute (Streets and Highways 

Code Section 30914.7) and prepare and submit a report to the transportation committee of each 

house of the Legislature summarizing its findings. 

At the May 31st meeting, MTC staff presented information on peer oversight bodies to help guide 

the development of the RM3 IOC Annual Report. A key distinction for the RM3 IOC is that the 

statute requires the Committee to submit an annual report to the legislature, separate from the 

requirement that the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) submit an annual report on RM3 projects 

and programs.  

Based on review of similar reports developed by peer bodies and IOC member feedback, staff 

recommend the IOC annual report to the legislature incorporate the BATA annual report to 

provide factual information on the program with the addition of an introductory report from the 

IOC. For the committee’s consideration, staff have provided a draft template for this introductory 

report for feedback and further development by the IOC. 

MTC staff recommends that the IOC work to finalize and adopt their report to the Legislature in 

the month of November or December, following the receipt of audited financials and approval of 

the BATA Annual Report.   

 

Issues: 

None. 



RM3 Independent Oversight Committee  Agenda Item 5c 
Sept 9, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Recommendation: 

Information only. 

Attachments: 

Attachment A: Draft RM3 IOC Annual Report to the Legislature 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

        Andrew B. Fremier 

 

 

 
J:\COMMITTE\RM3 Independent Oversight Committee\__Meetings\2024\2024_09_09\5b_Draft IOC Annual Report Summary.docx 



 

Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 
Fiscal Year 2023–24 Annual Report – Introduction and Summary 
 

Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Accomplishments During FY 2024 
• First full year of program implementation since final RM3 legal clearance 
• Advanced a variety of capital projects, including completion of the Mokelumne Trail Bicycle/Pedestrian 

Overcrossing of SR-4, Vine Transit Maintenance Facility, and County Connection Bus Replacements 
• Supported the operation of the Salesforce Transit Center, regional express bus, and ferry service 
• Aligned RM3 projects with regional Complete Streets and Transit Oriented Communities Policies 

 

About the RM3 IOC 
• Established by RM3 statute to ensure RM3 toll revenues are spent 

following the requirements of the statute 
• Comprised of two representatives from each Bay Area county 

RM3 IOC Accomplishments Supporting FY 2023-24 
• Initiated the RM3 IOC and held its first three meetings 
• Evaluated FY 2023-24 expenditures of RM3 Bridge Toll funds 
• Developed the RM3 IOC annual report format  

RM3 IOC Plans for FY 2024-25 and Beyond 
• Provide input on RM3 allocation processes 
• Develop recommended additional IOC responsibilities to enhance 

Committee effectiveness and contributions to the RM3 program 
• Provide recommendations on ways to further enhance RM3 program 

transparency, reporting, and public engagement 
• Send a letter to county Boards of Supervisors urging appointments to 

vacant IOC seats 

A report the IOC’s findings for FY 2023-24 follows this summary.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Brian David Shaw, 
Chair, RM3 Independent Oversight Committee 

RM3 IOC MEMBERS 

BRIAN DAVID SHAW 
CHAIR – SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY 

PAMELA KINDIG 
VICE-CHAIR – NAPA COUNTY 

TIM AMBROSE 
MEMBER – ALAMEDA COUNTY 

STEVE BIRDLEBOUGH 
MEMBER – SONOMA COUNTY 

KEVIN HAGERTY 
MEMBER – MARIN COUNTY 

FREDERICK ARN HANSSON 
MEMBER – SAN MATEO COUNTY 

WILLIAM G. JERRY HAYES 
MEMBER – SOLANO COUNTY 

JOHN MAITLAND 
MEMBER – SONOMA COUNTY 

ANU NATARAJAN 
MEMBER – ALAMEDA COUNTY 

JOANNE WEBSTER 
MEMBER – MARIN  COUNTY 

 

Photos of projects completed with RM3 
Capital Funding.  
Left – Mokelumne Trail 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Overcrossing of SR-4.  
Right – Vine Transit Maintenance Facility. 



 

Regional Measure 3  
Independent Oversight Committee 

Fiscal Year 2023–24 Annual Report - Findings 
 

This document is presented for IOC consideration as both a draft template for the IOC Annual Report and 
a discussion document for the IOC to use while developing the report findings. Highlighted and italicized 
text signifies questions and issues for IOC discussion that would not appear in the final document.  

The Regional Measure 3 (“RM3”) Independent Oversight Committee (“IOC”) is pleased to provide its 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 RM3 IOC annual report. This report summarizes the IOC’s findings on the 
expenditure of RM3 Bridge Toll funds during the 2023-24 fiscal year.  

Background and History of the Independent Oversight Committee 
Bay Area voters approved RM3 on June 5, 2018. Following this, the first and second dollars of the toll 
increase were applied on January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2022, respectively. The state legislation that 
established the RM3 expenditure plan and the mechanism for the election (Senate Bill 595, 2017) also 
added the following language requiring establishment of the IOC to the California Streets and Highways 
Code (SHC), Section 30923: 

If the voters approve a toll increase pursuant to this section, the authority shall establish an 
independent oversight committee within six months of the effective date of the toll increase to 
ensure that any toll revenues generated pursuant to this section are expended consistent with 
the applicable requirements set forth in Section 30914.7.  

The oversight committee shall include two representatives from each county within the 
jurisdiction of the commission. Each representative shall be appointed by the applicable county 
board of supervisors and serve a four-year term and shall be limited to two terms. The oversight 
committee shall annually review the expenditure of funds by the authority for the projects and 
programs specified in Section 30914.7 and prepare and submit a report to the transportation 
committee of each house of the Legislature summarizing its findings. The oversight committee 
may request any documents from the authority to assist the committee in performing its 
functions. 

Subsequently, the following requirements were added to statute regarding committee membership: 

A representative appointed to the oversight committee shall not be a member, former member, 
staff, or former staff of the commission or the authority, shall not be employed by any 
organization or person that has received or is receiving funding from the commission or the 
authority, and shall not be a former employee or a person who has contracted with any 
organization or person that has received or is receiving funding from the commission or the 
authority within one year of having worked for or contracted with that organization or person. 

The Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) established the RM3 IOC in June 2019, and populated its roster for 
the first four-year term as appointees were received from county boards of supervisors (BATA 
Resolution No. 131, Revised).  



 

The IOC did not meet during the first term of July 2019-June 2023. During this time, legal challenges to 
RM3 were appealed all the way to the California State Supreme Court, which finally resolved the 
challenges in January 2023. While these legal matters were ongoing, all collected RM3 funds were held 
in escrow. In March 2023, BATA released these funds and terminated the escrow agreement, which 
allowed for the RM3 funds to start being allocated and spent.  

Counties were asked to nominate IOC appointees for a new term from July 2023 through June 2027. 
Because the committee did not meet during the first term, the 2023-2027 term will be considered the 
first term for the purposes of fulfilling term limits outlined in state statute.  

FY 2023-24 IOC Activities and Accomplishments 
The IOC had its first meeting in March 2024 and met again in May 2024 and September 2024. During 
these meetings, the IOC reviewed RM3 expenditures starting from the first allocations in June 2023 and 
discussed how it would fulfil its mandate. The IOC then prepared this annual report summarizing its 
findings to submit to the state legislature.  

RM3 Expenditure Plan Revisions and Programming 
To ensure that RM3 revenues are expended consistent with the applicable requirements set forth in SHC 
Section 30914.7, it is important for the IOC to track changes made to the RM3 Expenditure Plan, which 
may be made through a public hearing process as outlined in the RM3 statute (SHC Section 30914.7(e)). 
After a public hearing in December 2023, the Commission approved the following changes to the RM3 
expenditure plan in January 2024:  

• Redirect $16,700,000 in funds from the Solano County I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange Project 
(RM3 project #21) to the Solano I-80 Express Lanes (Toll System) project – part of the Bay 
Area Corridor Express Lanes suite of projects (under RM3 project #2)   

• Modify scope of the SMART project (RM3 project #7) to clarify eligibility of the multi-use 
pathway along SMART right-of-way.   

• Modify scope of Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows (RM3 project #20) to extend the 
project limits approximately 4.5 miles from Petaluma Blvd. South to Petaluma Blvd. North in 
Petaluma and approximately three (3) miles from Atherton Ave. to State Route 37 in 
Novato.   

• Add the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) as a joint project sponsor to State 
Route 37 Improvements (RM3 project #23)   

The RM3 operating projects and funding levels are determined by the RM3 statute, but each fiscal year, 
MTC approves programming for the RM3 operating program that sets the funding amounts for the year 
based on an estimate of toll revenues. MTC approved the FY24 RM3 Operating Program on December 
20, 2023 and revised the programming on March 27, 2024 to incorporate programming amounts for 
sponsors of Express Bus operating projects. 

In the RM3 capital program, most projects are named and have a single sponsor and dollar amount 
assigned in the RM3 statute, but there are a few projects that have multiple sponsors or are broad 
categories that require programming by MTC. Since MTC began issuing Letters of No Prejudice in 2020 
to allow projects to proceed ahead of allocation of RM3 funds, MTC has taken action to program funds 
under the following RM3 projects: 



 

• Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes 
• Goods Movement and Mitigation 
• North Bay Transit Access Improvements 
• Dumbarton Corridor Improvements 

IOC Findings 
The IOC presents the following findings on BATA and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC’s) expenditure of RM3 funds.  

To focus the IOC’s discussion on RM3 expenditure activity that is not pre-determined by the RM3 statute 
or other laws, this section is organized by the type of action and activity BATA or MTC can take. The IOC 
may choose to organize this section a different way based on the findings they would like to present. 

Capital Allocations 
MTC/BATA Actions 
Through the end of FY24, MTC allocated $1.5 billion to capital projects in the RM3 expenditure plan. 
Details of these allocations were reviewed by the IOC at previous meetings and are available in the 
meeting materials posted to MTC’s website.  

IOC Findings 
Capital Allocations made through June 30, 2024 are consistent with the RM3 statute. 

• Do MTC’s procedures for allocating RM3 capital funds conflict with RM3 statute or fail to fulfil 
any of its requirements?  

• Was each capital allocation made by MTC consistent with the listed RM3 project and all other 
requirements?  

Operating Allocations 
MTC/BATA Actions 
In FY 24, MTC approved operating allocations consistent with the FY 24 RM3 Operating Program. Prior to 
allocating RM3 operating funds, MTC was required to adopt performance measures and execute 
operating agreements with the project sponsors. Details of these allocations were reviewed by the IOC 
at previous meetings and are available in the meeting materials posted to MTC’s website. 

IOC Findings 
Operating Allocations made through June 30, 2024 are consistent with the RM3 statute. 

• Are the performance measures and operating agreements for operating projects consistent with 
the RM3 statute? 

• Do MTC’s procedures for allocating RM3 operating funds conflict with RM3 statute or fail to fulfil 
any of its requirements?  

• Was each operating allocation made by MTC consistent with the listed RM3 project and all other 
requirements?  



 

Invoicing and Monitoring  
MTC/BATA Actions 
RM3 funds are provided to project sponsors on a reimbursement basis. After funds are allocated, 
sponsors may submit invoices for eligible expenditures. MTC staff review these invoices for accuracy and 
consistency with the allocation and approve payment. MTC also engages a third-party auditor to review 
selected invoices for accuracy and consistency with the allocation scope and RM3 policies and 
procedures. 

MTC collects semi-annual reports for all RM3 capital allocations. In FY 24, summaries of findings were 
presented to the Commission in January 2024 and June 2024.  

IOC Findings 
MTC’s invoicing and monitoring procedures ensure that funds are expended consistent with the RM3 
statute, allocations, and RM3 policies and procedures.  

Other RM3 Implementation Issues 
Other issues related to RM3 Implementation the IOC would like to weigh in on, e.g. equity, transparency 
and public participation, allocation processes, etc. 

Independent Oversight Committee Commentary 
Any other topics to comment on related to the committee itself, e.g., processes, roster vacancies, etc.  

 

 

Appendix I: RM3 FY 2023-24 Annual Report to the Legislature 



J:\PROJECT\_RM3\Reports to Legislature\2024\RM3_Annual_Report_to_the_Legislature_FY24.docx 

Regional Measure 3 
DRAFT Annual Report to the Legislature 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

This report is the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (FY 2023-24) Regional Measure 3 (“RM 3”) Annual 
Report to the Legislature on the status of projects and programs funded by the RM 3 bridge 
toll increase authorized by the Legislature by Senate Bill 595 (Beall, 2017) and approved by 
the voters in June 2018. This report is submitted pursuant to Streets and Highways Code 
(“SHC”), Section 30923(i).  The report consists of the following sections: 

1. Toll Implementation

2. Revenue Collection

3. Independent Oversight Committee

4. Update of Policies and Procedures

5. Allocations and Expenditures to Date

1. Toll Implementation
BATA adopted the toll schedule incorporating the three-dollar RM 3 phased-in toll increase
for state-owned toll bridges in the Bay Area on December 19, 2018, pursuant to SHC
Section 30916(c)(1). The first dollar increase became effective January 1, 2019 and the
second dollar increase became effective January 1, 2022 (Attachment A, BATA Resolution
No. 128). The third dollar increase will become effective January 1, 2025. The toll schedule
also incorporates the FasTrak® Electronic Toll Collection RM 3 Toll Discount for vehicles
crossing more than one bridge on the same calendar day during commute hours and
updates the high-occupancy vehicles rates to incorporate RM 3 increases.

2. Revenue Collection
For FY 2023-24, RM 3 generated $213,445,286 (note: this is unaudited; the final audited
fiscal year revenues will be included in the final report submitted to the legislature in late
2024).

Additionally, SHC Section 30914.7(c) provides that, to the extent that funds made available 
for the ferry component of the RM 3 operating program are not requested for expenditure 
by the San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transportation Authority (“WETA”) in a 
given year, the funds will be held in a reserve account, until such time that WETA requests 

Agenda Item 5c
Attachment B



RM 3 Annual Report to the Legislature 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

 

these funds for an operating or capital purpose. As of June 2024, the WETA Operating 
Reserve amount is $75 million. 

3. Independent Oversight Committee Formation and Membership 
BATA established the RM 3 Independent Oversight Committee on June 26, 2019, pursuant 
to SHC Section 30923(h), and filled its roster for the requisite four-year term as appointees 
were received from county boards of supervisors. (Attachment C, BATA Resolution No. 
131, Revised). Due to the lengthy litigation of challenges to RM3, resulting in collected RM3 
funds being held in escrow, the Independent Oversight Committee did not meet for the 
entire term of July 2019 to June 2023.  

After the litigation was resolved and BATA released RM3 toll funds for allocation in 2024, 
updates to the RM 3 Oversight Committee Membership were referred to the Authority for 
approval in November 2023.These appointees are listed in Attachment A to the resolution 
and can be found on our website at this link. As appointments are received for the 
remaining roster spots (two each from Contra Costa and Santa Clara counties, and one 
from San Francisco County), BATA Resolution No.131 will be further updated.  

The Independent Oversight Committee met twice in FY 2023-24 and began work to fulfil its 
mandate to annually review the expenditure of RM 3 funds and to prepare and submit a 
report to the Legislature summarizing its findings. The first Independent Oversight 
Committee Annual Report is expected to be submitted to the Legislature concurrent with 
or shortly after the submittal of this report, as the information in this report will provide the 
factual basis for their findings for the year.  

4. Update of Policies and Procedures 
MTC first approved the RM 3 Policies and Procedures on December 18, 2019, with 
guidance to project sponsors requesting funding from the RM 3 capital program 
(Attachment D, MTC Resolution No. 4404). Resolution No. 4404 was subsequently revised 
in May 2023 and in October 2023 to introduce guidance to project sponsors seeking 
funding from the RM 3 Operating Program, including identification of eligible activities; 
instructions for requesting allocations and disbursements of funds; and detail on 
performance measures.  

5. Allocations and Expenditures to Date 
In May 2023, the Commission directed staff to begin collecting RM 3 allocation requests, 
and the first allocations were made in June 2023. As of June 30, 2024, the RM 3 Capital 
Program has made $1.489 billion in allocations, and $191 million has been spent by 

https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/regional-funding/regional-measure-3


RM 3 Annual Report to the Legislature 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

 

project sponsors. A summary of the capital allocations made to date is included as 
Attachment F, RM 3 Capital Allocations Summary.  

RM3 operating allocations were made according to the FY 2023-24 RM3 Operating Program 
(MTC Resolution No. 4625, Revised). The RM3 operating program made a total of $20 
million in allocations and disbursed $16.2 million to sponsors in FY 2023-24. A summary of 
the operating services funded by RM 3 is included as MTC Resolution 4579 (Attachment G).  

In December 2023, MTC held a public hearing to amend the RM 3 Capital Program using 
the process outlined in SHC 30914.7(e). Proposed changes include minor adjustments to 
the scope, sponsor and/or funding for RM 3 projects 2, 20, 21 and 23 (see Attachment F, 
MTC Resolution No 4621). After the public hearing, these changes were adopted by MTC in 
January 2024.  

Attachments  

A. BATA Resolution No. 131, Revised (RM 3 Independent Oversight Committee 
establishment and membership)  

B. MTC Resolution No. 4404, Revised (RM 3 Policies and Procedures) 

C. RM 3 Capital Expenditure Plan Tracking Sheet 

D. MTC Resolution No. 4625 (FY 2023-24 RM3 Operating Program)  

E. MTC Resolution No. 4621 (Amendments to the Regional Measure 3 Program) 



Regional Measure 3 Annual Report to the 
Legislature 

Attachment A

BATA Resolution No. 131, Revised 
Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight 

Committee

1

Agenda Item 5c
Attachment C



Date: June 26, 2019 
Referred by: BATA Oversight 

Revised: 07/24/19-BATA 10/23/19-BATA 
 11/20/19-BATA 11/15/23-BATA 

ABSTRACT 

BATA Resolution No. 131, Revised 

This resolution establishes the Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee, as set 

forth in Section 30923(h) of the California Streets and Highways Code and approved by voters 

on the June 5, 2018 ballot.   

Attachment A to this Resolution was revised on July 24, 2019 to update appointees. 

Attachment A to the Resolution was revised on October 23, 2019 to update appointees. 

Attachment A to the Resolution was revised on November 20, 2019 to update appointees. 

Attachment A to the Resolution was revised on November 15, 2023 to update appointees. 

Attachment B to the Resolution was revised on November 15, 2023 to update the title of the 

administrator.  

Further discussion of this resolution is contained in the BATA Oversight Committee Summary 

Sheets dated June 12, 2019, July 10, 2019, October 9, 2019, November 13, 2019, and November 

8, 2023. 

2



Date: 
Referred by: 

June 26, 2019 
BAT A Oversight 

Re: Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 

BA Y AREA TOLL AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO. 131 

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2018, a special election was held in the City and County of San 

Francisco, and the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, 

and Sonoma (individually, each a "County" and, collectively, the "Counties") to approve a toll 

increase of three dollars ($3.00) phased in over time, including a one dollar ($1.00) toll increase on 

January 1, 2019, a one dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January 1, 2022, and a one dollar ($1.00) toll 

increase on January 1, 2025, for vehicles traveling on the state-owned bridges located in the San 

Francisco Bay Area ("Regional Measure 3"); and 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018, the Bay Area Toll Authority ("Authority") adopted 

Resolution No. 126 accepting certified statements from the Registrar of Voters of the City and County 

of San Francisco and each of the Counties and observing that a majority of all voters voting on 

Regional Measure 3 at such special election voted affirmatively for Regional Measure 3; and 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2018, the Authority adopted Resolution No. 128 adopting a toll 

schedule phasing in the toll increase approved pursuant to Regional Measure 3, effective on January 1, 

2019;and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with subsection (h) of Section 30923 of the California Streets and 

Highways Code ("SHC"), the Authority shall, within six months of the effective date of the toll 

increase, establish an independent oversight committee, with specified composition and duties; now, 

therefore, be it 

RESOL VED, that the Authority specifically finds and declares that the statements, findings 

and determinations of the Authority set forth in the preambles above are true and correct; and be it 

further 

RESOLVED, that pursuant to SHC § 30923(h), the Authority hereby establishes the 

Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee ("Committee"); and be it further 

3



BATA Resolution No. 131 
Page 2 

RESOLVED, that the Committee shall annually review the expenditure of funds by the 

Authority for the projects and programs specified in SHC § 30914.7 and prepare and submit a report to 

the transportation committee of each house of the Legislature summarizing its findings, and that the 

Committee may request any documents from the Authority to assist the Committee in performing its 

functions; and be it further 

RESOL VED, that pursuant to SHC § 30923(h)(2), the Committee shall include two 

representatives from each county within the jurisdiction of the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission (the "Commission"), and each representative shall be appointed by the applicable 

county board of supervisors and serve a four-year term and be limited to two terms; and be it further 

RESOL VED, that pursuant to SHC § 30923(h)(3), a representative appointed to the 

Committee shall not be a member, former member, staff, or former staff of the Commission or the 

Authority, shall not be employed by any organization or person that has received or is receiving 

funding from the Commission or the Authority, and shall not be a former employee or a person who 

has contracted with any organization or person that has received or is receiving funding from the 

Commission or the Authority within one year of having worked for or contracted with that 

organization or person; and be it further 

RESOL VED, that the Committee roster, as appointed by the applicable county board of 

supervisors, is contained in Attachment A to this resolution; and be it further 

RESOL VED, that the travel reimbursement rate and stipend policy for members of the 

Committee is contained in Attachment B to this resolution; and be it further 

RESOL VED, that the Chair of the Authority, the Vice Chair of the Authority, the Executive 

Director, the Chief Financial Officer and other appropriate officers and staff.of the Authority, are 

hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, for and in the name and on behalf of the 

Authority, to do any and all things that they deem necessary or advisable in order to effectuate the 

purposes of this Resolution in accordance with the terms hereof and of applicable provisions of 

law. 

4



BAT A Resolution No. 131 
Page3 

The above resolution was entered into by the 
Bay Area Toll Authority at a regular 
meeting of the Authority held in San 
Francisco, California, on June 26, 2019. 

5



Date: June 26, 2019 
Referred by: BATA Oversight 

Revised: 07/24/19-BATA 10/23/19-BATA 
 11/20/19-BATA 11/15/23-BATA 

Attachment A 
BATA Resolution No. 131 
Page 1 of 2 

Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee Membership 2019-2023 

County Member Name Term Length Term No. 

Alameda Anu Natarajan July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Alameda William Harrison July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Contra Costa Nazanin Shakerin July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Contra Costa Kathy Chang July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Marin Kevin Hagerty July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Marin William McNicholas July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Napa David Bailey July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Napa Pamela Kindig July 2019 – June 2023 First 

San Francisco To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2019 – June 2023 First 

San Francisco To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2019 – June 2023 First 

San Mateo Frederick A. Hansson July 2019 – June 2023 First 

San Mateo Pam Frisella July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Santa Clara Joanne Benjamin July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Santa Clara David Fung July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Solano Steve Lessler July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Solano William G. Jerry Hayes July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Sonoma To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2019 – June 2023 First 

Sonoma To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2019 – June 2023 First 

6



BATA Resolution No. 131 Attachment A 
Page 2 

Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee Membership 2023-2027 

County Member Name Term Length Term No.1 

Alameda Anu Natarajan July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Alameda Tim Ambrose July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Contra Costa To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Contra Costa To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Marin Kevin Hagerty July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Marin Joanne Webster July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Napa David Bailey July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Napa Pamela Kindig July 2023 – June 2027 First 

San Francisco Brian David July 2023 – June 2027 First 

San Francisco To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2023 – June 2027 First 

San Mateo Frederick A. Hansson July 2023 – June 2027 First 

San Mateo Pam Frisella July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Santa Clara To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Santa Clara To be appointed by Board of Supervisors July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Solano Steve Lessler July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Solano William G. Jerry Hayes July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Sonoma John Maitland July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Sonoma Steve Birdlebough July 2023 – June 2027 First 

Notes 

1. The IOC did not meet during the 2019-2023 term due to ongoing litigation and no expenditure
of RM3 funds. Therefore, for any reappointees for the 2023-2027 term, the 2023-2027 term
shall count as the first term for the purposes of fulfilling term limits in SHC 30923(h)(2).

7



 Date: June 26, 2019 
 Referred by: BATA Oversight 
 Revised: 11/15/23-BATA 
 
 
  Attachment B 
  BATA Resolution No. 131 
  Page 1 of 1 

 

Travel Reimbursement Rate and Stipend for 

Members of the Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee 

 

1. Individual members of the Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee (“Committee”) 

appointed by county boards of supervisors shall each be eligible to receive a stipend of $50 per 

meeting of the Committee, as defined below, with a maximum of four meetings per year. Meetings 

are defined as publicly noticed meetings or subcommittee meetings of the Committee.  

 

2. Members of the Committee may be reimbursed for actual travel expenses, as defined below, for a 

maximum of four meetings per year.  

 

3. The mileage reimbursement rate is the rate allowable by the Internal Revenue Service when a 

personal vehicle is used. Related bridge tolls, parking fees and actual expenses for use of public 

transit will be reimbursed. 

 

All requests for stipend and reimbursement of expenses shall be submitted quarterly to the Committee 

staff liaison and processed according to the procedures established by MTC's Executive Director. 

 

The MTC Chief Deputy Executive Director, shall administer this Attachment B. Any questions regarding 

its application shall be decided by the MTC Chief Deputy Executive Director,  whose decision shall be 

final. 
 

8



Regional Measure 3 Annual Report to the 
Legislature 

Attachment B

MTC Resolution No. 4404, Revised 

RM3 Policies and Procedures 

9



Date: December 18, 2019 
Referred by: PAC 

Revised: 05/24/23-C 
 10/25/23-C 

ABSTRACT 
Resolution No. 4404, Revised 

This resolution adopts the policies and procedures for the expenditure plan of Regional Measure 
3 (RM3), included in Attachment A, Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures (with 
attachments).  

This resolution was amended on May 24, 2023 to introduce policies and procedures for the RM3 
operating program and make adjustments to the policies and procedures for the RM3 capital 
program. 

This resolution was amended on October 25, 2023 to modify the policies and procedures for the 
RM3 operating program, providing guidance for the ferry program and revising procedures for 
operating agreements. 

Additional discussion of this Resolution is available in the Programming and Allocations 
Committee summary sheets dated December 11, 2019, May 10, 2023, and October 11, 2023. 

10



Date: 
Referred By: 

December 18, 2019 
PAC. 

RE: Policies and Procedures for Implementation of the Expenditure Plan of Regional Measure 3 
(RM3) 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. 4404 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 66500 et seq., the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission ("MTC") is the regional transportation planning agency for the San 
Francisco Bay Area; and 

WHEREAS, Streets and Highways Code Sections 30950 et seq. created the Bay Area 
Toll Authority ("BAT A"), which is a public instrumentality governed by the same board as that 
governing MTC; and 

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2018, a special election was held in the City and County of San 
Francisco, and the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, and Sonoma (individually, each a "County" and, collectively, the "Counties") to approve 
a toll increase of three dollars ($3.00) phased in over time, including a one dollar ($1.00) toll 
increase on January 1, 2019, a one dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January 1, 2022, and a one 
dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January I, 2025, for vehicles traveling on the state-owned bridges 
located in the San Francisco Bay Area ("Regional Measure 3"); and 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018, the Bay Area Toll Authority ("Authority") adopted 
Resolution No. 126 accepting certified statements from the Registrar of Voters of the City and 
County of San Francisco and each of the Counties and observing that a majority of all voters 
voting on Regional Measure 3 ("RM3") at such special election voted affirmatively for RM3; 
and 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2018, the Authority adopted Resolution No. 128 adopting 
a toll schedule phasing in the toll increase approved pursuant to RM3, effective on January 1, 
2019;and 

WHEREAS, RM3 establishes the RM3 Expenditure Plan and identifies specific capital 
projects and programs and operating programs eligible to receive RM3 funding as identified in 
Sections 30914.7(a) and (e) of the California Streets and Highways Code; and 

WHEREAS, BAT A shall fund the projects of the RM3 Expenditure Plan by bonding or 
transfers to MTC; and 

11



MTC Resolution No. 4404 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, MTC has developed policies and procedures for the implementation of the 
RM3 Expenditure Plan as set forth in Attachment A to this Resolution, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as though set out in full; now, therefore be it 

J 

RESOL VED, that MTC hereby adopts the attached policies and procedures for the 
implementation of the RM3 Expenditure Plan as set forth in Attachment A; and, be it further 

RESOL VED, that the Executive Director is hereby delegated the authority to make non- 
substantive changes to Attachment A as deemed appropriate to implement the RM3 Expenditure 
Plan. 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

The above resolution was entered into 
by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission at the regular meeting 
of the Commission held in San Francisco, 
California, on December 18, 2019. 

12



  Date: December 18, 2019 
 Referred by: PAC 
  Revised: 05/24/23-C 10/25/23-C 
  
   

/Users/kfolan/Documents/RES-4404_Attachment-A_without-yellow.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Regional Measure 3 
Policies and Procedures 

 
 

December 2019 
Amended October 2023 

 
 

MTC Resolution No. 4404 
Attachment A 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
 
 

Programming and Allocations Section 
http://www.mtc.ca.gov 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 

13

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures  MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 2 December 18, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T h i s  p a g e  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  l e f t  b l a n k  
 
 
 
 
 

14



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures  MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 3 December 18, 2019 

RM3 Policies and Procedures Table of Contents 

Section 1 – General Provisions ................................................................................................................... 5 

Background ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Fund Management ...................................................................................................................... 5 
Program Financing Costs 5 
Matching Funds 5 

Public Involvement Process ....................................................................................................... 6 

Compliance with Other Requirements ....................................................................................... 6 

Indemnification of MTC ............................................................................................................ 6 

Section 2 – Capital Program Guidance ..................................................................................................... 7 

Background ................................................................................................................................ 7 

Capital Project Definition .......................................................................................................... 7 
Initial Project Report (IPR) 7 
Useable Segment/ Deliverable Product 7 
Project Phases 8 

Allocation and Funding Agreement Process .............................................................................. 8 
Allocation Principles 8 
Allocation Request Process 10 

Letters of No Prejudice ............................................................................................................ 11 

Expenditures and Reimbursements .......................................................................................... 12 
Authority to Expend 12 
Eligible Expenses 13 
Invoicing and Reimbursements 15 

Timely Use of Funds Provisions and Deadlines ...................................................................... 15 
Project Cancellation 16 

Other Project Cost Conditions ................................................................................................. 16 
Maintenance and Operating Costs 16 
Escalated Costs 16 
Cost Savings and Cost Increases at Bid Opening 17 

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements ................................................................................ 18 
Project Close Out 19 
At Risk Report/Cooperation with Consultants 19 

Consistency with Other Plans and Policies .............................................................................. 19 
RTP/SCS Consistency 19 
Consistency with County Plans 19 
TIP and Air Quality Conformity 20 
Title VI Compliance 20 
Accommodations for Bicyclists, Pedestrians and Persons with Disabilities 20 
Resolution 4530 Transit-Oriented Communities Policy and Resolution 3434 Transit-Oriented 
Development Policy 21 
Major Project Advancement Policy 22 
Intelligent Transportation Systems Policy 22 
Transit Coordination Policy 22 
Regional Communications Infrastructure 23 

15



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 4 December 18, 2019 

Interregional Project Funding and Coordination Policy 23 

MTC/BATA-Sponsored RM3 Programs ................................................................................. 24 

Section 3 – Operating Program Guidance ............................................................................................... 25 

Background .............................................................................................................................. 25 

Allocation Process .................................................................................................................... 25 
Funding Amounts 25 
Regional Express Bus Program Sponsors 26 
Environmental Documentation 26 

Eligibility ................................................................................................................................. 28 
Reimbursable Activities 28 
Regional Express Bus Route Eligibility 28 

Operating Agreements ............................................................................................................. 27 

Disbursement of Funds ............................................................................................................ 29 

Monitoring Requirements ........................................................................................................ 29 
Performance Measures 29 
Fiscal Audit 30 
Cooperation with MTC and MTC’s Consultants 31 

Appendix A – Capital Allocation/Letter of No Prejudice Request Forms ........................................... 32 

Part 1A:  RM3 Implementing Agency Resolution of Project Compliance – Allocation Request
 .................................................................................................................................................. 32 

Part 1B:  RM3 Implementing Agency Resolution of Project Compliance – Letter of No 
Prejudice Request ..................................................................................................................... 35 

Part 2:  RM3 Sample Opinion of Legal Counsel ..................................................................... 39 

Part 3:  RM3 Initial Project Report (IPR) Format .................................................................... 40 

Part 4: Environmental Documentation ..................................................................................... 42 

Appendix B – Operating Program Forms ............................................................................................... 43 

Part 1 – RM3 Operating Agreements ....................................................................................... 43 

Part 2 – RM3 Performance Measures for Operating Projects .................................................. 44 
Express Bus Performance Measures 45 

 

16



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures  MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 5 December 18, 2019 

SECTION 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
BACKGROUND 
On June 5, 2018, voters passed Regional Measure 3 (RM3), raising the toll for all vehicles on the 
seven State-owned toll bridges in the San Francisco Bay Area by a total $3.00, phased in through 
one-dollar increments. This toll increase is to fund various transportation projects within the 
region that have been determined to reduce congestion or to make improvements to travel in the 
toll bridge corridors, as identified in SB 595 (Chapter 650, Statutes of 2017). Specifically, RM3 
establishes the Regional Measure 3 Expenditure Plan and identifies specific capital and operating 
projects and programs eligible to receive RM3 funding as identified in Sections 30914.7 (a) and 
(c) of the California Streets and Highways Code. 
 
The following serve as the general provisions in the management of RM3 funding. 
 
Note: Some of the projects identified in the Regional Measure 3 Expenditure Plan may include 
complementary bridge toll funds (specifically, RM1 and AB1171) to complete their project 
funding plan. The administration of the bridge toll funds in these cases will also be governed by 
these policies and procedures, unless otherwise stated in the allocating resolution. For Regional 
Measure 2 funds, the Regional Measure 2 Policies and Procedures (MTC Resolution No. 3636, 
Revised) remain in effect. In general, for RM3 projects with complementary bridge toll funds, 
the governing policies and procedures will be stated as part of the allocation. 
 
FUND MANAGEMENT 
The collection of toll revenue is estimated to equal $127 million annually per dollar of toll 
increase. Costs to administer the program are an annual drawdown on the revenue. Up to 16 
percent of RM3 revenues each year will be made available for operating projects. Available 
revenue for capital allocations will vary annually and will be subject to the availability of funds. 
Finally, first year costs include the required reimbursements to counties for the costs of 
administering the RM3 ballot measure as part of the June 5, 2018 election.  
 
Program Financing Costs 
It is the intent of the Commission to implement those projects and programs outlined in Streets 
and Highways Code Section 30914.7 (a) and (c), to the funding amounts designated. The cost of 
bonding and financing associated with RM3, including interest payments shall be considered a 
program cost and shall be identified in the annual RM3 Budget as the first priority repayment. 
The financing costs are not expected to reduce the overall funding level available to projects and 
programs. 
 
 
Matching Funds 
A local match is not required for RM3 funds. Complementary funds (non-RM3 funds) for the 
project phase where RM3 funds are being requested and identified in the financial plan should be 
available at the time of allocation. Regional Measure 3 funds can be used as the match for state 
or federal fund sources requiring a local or non-federal match.  
 

17



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 6 December 18, 2019 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCESS 
The capital improvement projects and operating assistance for transit services identified for 
funding in RM3 are established by state legislation (Senate Bill 595, Chapter 650, Statutes of 
2017, or as subsequently amended) approved by the voters on June 5, 2018. In accordance with 
the legislation as approved by the voters, the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA) is the financial 
manager for RM3 funds, whose responsibilities include the preparation of financial plans, the 
issuance of debt financing, and the disbursal of funds to project sponsors. The Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) is the program and project coordinator, whose 
responsibilities include reviewing project applications, programming and allocating funds to 
specific projects, and monitoring project delivery. In some cases, MTC or BATA also serves as 
the project sponsor or co-sponsor.  
 
Generally, in conducting its review and approval responsibilities stipulated under RM3, MTC 
will adhere to its public participation policies as outlined in MTC Resolution No. 4147, Revised, 
MTC’s Public Participation Plan, or successor resolution. 
 
Specific statutory provisions require further that as part of its assessment of the status of 
programs and projects under RM3, MTC may make a finding that a program or project cannot be 
completed or cannot continue due to financing or delivery obstacles making the continuation of 
the program or project unrealistic, or that a project may be funded using non-RM3 funds. MTC 
may then determine that the funding will be reassigned. Under these circumstances, the 
Commission shall hold a public hearing on the project after consultation with the program or 
project sponsor. The process outlined in MTC’s Public Participation Plan for notification of 
actions at BATA, Commission, and committee meetings will be adhered to. After the hearing, 
the Commission may vote to modify the program or the project’s scope, decrease its level of 
funding, or reassign all of the funds to another or an additional regional program or project in the 
same corridor. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 
It is the responsibility of project sponsors to ensure their agency’s compliance with all applicable 
local, regional, state, and federal requirements. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION OF MTC 
The sponsor shall indemnify and hold harmless MTC, BATA, and their Commissioners, officers, 
agents, and employees from any and all claims, demands, suits, loss, damages, injury, and/or 
liability, direct or indirect, incurred by reason of any act or omission of sponsor, its officers, 
agents, employees, and subcontractors, under or in connection with the RM3 program. Sponsor 
agrees at its own cost, expense, and risk, to defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other 
legal proceedings brought or instituted against MTC, BATA, and their Commissioners, officers, 
agents, and employees, or any of them, arising out of such act or omission, and to pay and satisfy 
any resulting judgments.   

18



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures  MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 7 December 18, 2019 

SECTION 2 – CAPITAL PROGRAM GUIDANCE 
 
BACKGROUND 
Projects eligible to receive funding from the Capital Program of the Regional Measure 3 (RM3) 
Expenditure Plan are those projects identified to receive funding under Section 30914.7(a) of the 
California Streets and Highways Code (S&HC). The capital program is managed in a manner 
where allocations are approved based upon project sponsor need and readiness and the 
availability of funding in the bridge toll program. MTC’s goal is to carry out the intent of the 
legislation and ensure that programs and projects are delivered.  
 
CAPITAL PROJECT DEFINITION 
Initial Project Report (IPR) 
Project sponsors with projects identified to receive funding under Section 30914.7(a) of the 
S&HC were required to submit an Initial Project Report (IPR) to MTC within six months of the 
election date, or by December 5, 2018. An updated report must be submitted as needed or as 
requested by MTC; at a minimum, sponsors must submit an updated IPR along with any funding 
allocation request. The Commission will consider approval of the report, or updated report, in 
conjunction with the allocation of funds. 
 
This report shall include all information required to describe the project in detail, including the 
status of any environmental documents relevant to the project, additional funds required to fully 
fund the project, the amount, if any, of funds expended to date, and a summary of any impediments 
to the completion of the project. This report, or an updated report, shall include a detailed financial 
plan and shall notify the Commission if the project sponsor will request toll revenue within the 
subsequent 12 months. Specific information on the Initial Project Report format is included in 
Appendix A. 
 
Useable Segment/ Deliverable Product 
RM3 funds for capital projects will be allocated with the specific intent of achieving a product. 
Deliverable products shall be considered as: 
• A completed planning or transit study/ environmental decision/ project approval 

documentation when allocating to the environmental phase; 
• The final design package including contract documents when allocating to the final design 

phase; 
• Title to property/ easements/ rights of entry / possession or utility relocation when allocating 

to the right of way phase;  
• A completely constructed improvement (or vehicle/equipment acquisition/rehabilitation) 

available for public usage when allocating to the construction phase.  
 
The expenditure of RM3 funds for any phase of the project should lead to making available to 
the public a useable or operable segment in accordance with the legislative intent. Any additional 
funds required to fully fund the project must be identified in the uncommitted funding plan of the 
Initial Project Report (IPR). If the RM3 revenues are funding only a phase or segment of a larger 
project, it must be demonstrated that the RM3 deliverable phase or segment is fully funded with 
committed funds. 
 

19



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 8 December 18, 2019 

Project Phases 
Project costs and revenue must be separated into the following project phases: 

1. Planning Activities, Environmental Studies & Preliminary Eng (ENV / PE / PA&ED) 
2.  Final Design - Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) 
3.  Right-of-Way Activities /Acquisition / Utility Relocation (R/W) 
4.  Construction  / Rolling Stock Acquisition / Operating Service (CON) 

 
(Planning studies should be categorized under the environmental phase. Vehicle acquisition or 
equipment purchase should be categorized under the construction phase.) 
 
The project sponsor must display the project in these four components in the Initial Project 
Report and expenditure (cash flow) plans. If the project sponsors intend to use alternate delivery 
methods, including but not limited to design/build and design/build/operate/maintain, the 
preparation of the Request for Proposal is considered Final Design phase. The alternate delivery 
package is considered the Construction phase. 
 
ALLOCATION AND FUNDING AGREEMENT PROCESS 
The allocation process for RM3 capital projects shall also serve as the process for executing 
funding agreements, in most cases in lieu of a separate funding agreement for each capital 
project. These agreements will generally be fully executed through a process of project sponsor 
governing board certification, followed by Commission allocation action. However, under 
S&HC Section 30914.7(d)(2), MTC has the option of entering into an agreement between itself 
and a capital project sponsor addressing specific requirements to be met. 
 
An IPR for capital projects, as outlined in S&HC Section 30914.7(d)(1) and detailed in 
Appendix A, shall be prepared and adopted by the appropriate governing board prior to MTC 
approval of the IPR and allocation of funds. The sponsor is expected to certify, through an action 
of its governing board, that certain conditions (general and project specific) are acknowledged 
and will be adhered to and compliance with the RM3 Policies and Procedures. Along with the 
certification of conditions from the project sponsor governing board and the IPR, the sponsor 
will need to provide evidence that the other fund sources contributing toward that project phase 
are committed. It is recommended that the sponsors submit the allocation request to MTC staff 
for review sixty days prior to the action by their governing board. 
 
Upon completion of the lead sponsor governing board certification, the Commission will 
consider the allocation of RM3 funds. An allocation request is considered complete and ready for 
Commission consideration when all of the component elements to the request are submitted and 
approved by MTC staff. The Commission’s resolution approving the allocation of RM3 funds, 
based on staff’s review of the IPR and corresponding allocation request package, will serve as an 
agreement between MTC and the implementing agency and may include project specific 
conditions. Where the Commission approves an amount less than the sponsor requested, the 
Commission allocation amount prevails. Reimbursement of funds is subject to meeting the 
conditions as stipulated in the MTC allocating resolution.  
 
Allocation Principles 
The Commission will carefully consider each allocation and apply the following principles in its 
allocation decisions: 

20



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 9 December 18, 2019 

 
1. Replacing Previously Committed Funds. RM3 funds will not be utilized as a 

replacement fund source on capital projects for any funds that have been programmed or 
allocated previously to the project, for the phase requested by the project sponsor, if 
such replacement results in a shortfall for the overall project or places prior 
programming commitments in jeopardy. 

2. Required Evidence of a Fully Funded Project Phase. The Commission will allocate 
funds for capital projects only if it finds that the project phase is fully funded, either 
entirely with RM3 funds or with a combination of RM3 funds and other allocated funds. 
To receive an allocation of RM3 funds for a jointly funded phase, the other contributing 
funds must be approved, authorized, assigned and allocated to that phase of work by the 
authorizing authority. At the request of the project sponsor, the Commission may, on an 
exception basis, consider allocations of RM3 funding conditioned on the allocation of 
other funds for that phase. In granting conditional allocations, the Commission will 
consider the nature and timing of other funding commitments to the requested and future 
phases of work. 

3. Phase at a Time Allocations. Allocations will only be made to projects one phase at a 
time: environmental/project approval, final design, right of way, and construction. 
Exceptions will be considered on a case-by-case basis; however, the Commission will 
strive to minimize funding risks in making allocation exceptions.  

4. Environmental Clearance. RM3 funds will not be utilized for any capital expenditure, 
either for right of way or construction, until the project has been environmentally cleared 
and approved by the project sponsor. Pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act 
Public Resources Code §21000, et seq., all applicants are required to submit proof of 
having a valid environmental document that has been certified by the County Clerk for 
each project. Please refer to Public Resources Code and Title 14 of the California Code 
of Regulations for more information.  If a project is federally funded or is anticipated to 
be federally funded, project sponsors must submit proof of having approved National 
Environmental Policy Act documents. 

5. Conditions of Right of Way Allocations. RM3 funds will be allocated for right of way 
capital and support only after the project has identified and committed construction 
capital funds. The Commission will consider exceptions whereupon investment in right 
of way can be recovered if the project does not go forward or where securing right of 
way early is financially or strategically advantageous and allowable. If the Commission 
approves an allocation of RM3 funds for advance acquisition of right of way meeting the 
conditions as outlined above, the project sponsor shall provide that the land is held in 
escrow until project approval occurs for the transportation improvement. Advance 
acquisitions made prior to completion of environmental and location processes are not to 
influence environmental assessment of the project. Note that there are federal and state 
laws, regulations and policies governing acquisition and relocation activities. It is not 
intended that the use of RM3 funds shall waive any of the laws, regulations, or policies 
that may apply.  

21



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 10 December 18, 2019 

6. Deliverable Product. RM3 funds will be allocated with the specific intent of achieving 
a deliverable product. The ability of the product to be completed will be taken into 
consideration when the Commission allocates funds to the project. Any impediments to 
achieving the specific product shall be brought to the attention of staff and the 
Commission in the Initial Project Report, allocation requests, and through progress 
reports submitted by the project sponsor. If in the opinion of the Commission, 
impediments are such that the required product is unachievable, the Commission may 
withhold allocations, rescind allocations or withhold reimbursements on previously 
allocated funds. The Commission reserves the right to issue a 30-day stop notice in the 
event it has to reevaluate the project per S&HC Section 30914.7(e). 

7.  Risk Management. Project sponsors must show adequate establishment of a risk 
management process for both project budget and schedule in allocation requests. 
Allocation requests must discuss how project contingencies were set and demonstrate 
risk assessment through tools such as risk registers and mathematical risk models, as 
appropriate for project size. (Absent other project sponsor protocol, MTC recommends 
maintaining a risk register for projects with total budgets over $25 million, and 
maintaining a mathematical risk model such as bottom-up (Monte Carlo simulation) or 
top-down (FTA Beta Range) methods for projects with total budgets over $100 million.)  

8. Complementary Funds Consideration. Projects with funding from other sources may 
be given priority if there are pending timely use of funds requirements on the other fund 
sources. 

9. Complementary Funds Spend Down Rate. Other fund sources committed to a project 
phase that are complementary to RM3 funds will be expected to be spent down at an 
approximate proportional rate to RM3 funds. Exceptions and proposals to consider 
alternative cash flows from other fund sources must be approved in advance, in writing 
by MTC staff. 

10. Transit Operating Considerations. For transit systems, an allocation of funds for 
capital expenditures, either right of way or construction, may be predicated on an ability 
to demonstrate that the transit service has a reasonable plan for operations funding.  

11. Ability to Use Funds in a Timely Manner. Projects that expect to begin expenditure of 
RM3 funds within 6 months of the planned allocation approval date will be prioritized 
for allocation. Exceptions where commitment or allocation of funds are needed earlier to 
keep a project moving forward will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Allocation Request Process 
Project sponsors or implementing agencies must initiate an allocation request by submitting a 
draft Initial Project Report and Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Resolution 60 days prior to the 
required Committee action. Thirty days prior to the Committee action, the project sponsor or 
implementing agency must submit the completed allocation application package to MTC. The 
allocation request consists of the following, detailed in Appendix A, and is available on the 
Internet (as applicable) at: http://www.mtc.ca.gov: 
 
Intent to Request an Allocation (60 days prior to Committee action): 

22

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 11 December 18, 2019 

1. Updated Initial Project Report 
2. Complete Allocation Request Form 
3. Draft Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Resolution 

 
Allocation Application Package (30 days prior to Committee action): 

1. Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Resolution of Project Compliance  
2. Opinion of Legal Counsel / MTC-BATA Indemnification* 
3. Board or Official Governing Body Approved Updated Initial Project Report (IPR) and 

Allocation Request 
4. Environmental Documentation (as applicable) 
5. Evidence of Allocation and Commitment of Complementary Funds  
 

* Project sponsors have the option of consolidating the ‘Opinion of Legal Counsel / 
MTC-BATA Indemnification’ within the ‘Implementing Agency Governing Board 
Resolution of Project Compliance’. 

 
LETTERS OF NO PREJUDICE 
The Commission will consider approving a Letter of No Prejudice (LONP) to preserve RM3 
eligibility for project expenses prior to the allocation of RM3 funds. The intent of an LONP is to 
allow a project sponsor to advance a project that is ready to proceed to a deliverable phase, but 
for the availability of RM3 funds. Project sponsors that receive an LONP will be responsible for 
delivering the usable project segment or complete phase with alternate funds before RM3 funds 
are available, at risk to the project sponsor. An RM3 LONP does not represent a general funding 
commitment by MTC; in the event that RM3 funds do not become available, there is no 
expectation that MTC or BATA will provide alternate funds. Following issuance of an LONP, if 
and when RM3 funds are available, the Commission would consider an allocation of funds for 
the work scope covered under the LONP. After allocation approval, eligible expenses incurred 
under the RM3 LONP, back to the date of the LONP approval, would then be eligible for 
reimbursement with RM3 funds.  
 
LONP Eligibility 
MTC will consider issuing an LONP for a proposed scope of work that adheres to the allocation 
principles listed in this document (including, but not limited to, a fully-funded project phase, 
environmental clearance requirements, and deliverable product).  

Projects requesting an LONP must be a capital project eligible under the legislated expenditure 
plan, meeting any of the following criteria: 

1. The project has a clearly defined scope in the legislation, not requiring further 
programming action by project sponsor(s) 

2. The project has a single project sponsor in the legislation 
3. The listed project sponsor(s) have taken board action to define or program an RM3 

project that doesn’t have a clearly defined scope or program in the legislation. For MTC-
sponsored or co-sponsored projects, no LONPs will be issued unless the project or 
program is fully defined or programmed.  

MTC staff will provide additional guidance to potential LONP recipients regarding a specific 
project’s eligibility.  
 

23



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 12 December 18, 2019 

LONP Request Process 

Project sponsors or implementing agencies must initiate an LONP request in a similar manner to 
the Allocation Request Process outlined in this document, by submitting an Updated Initial 
Project Report, Letter of No Prejudice Request, and Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Resolution 
60 days prior to the required Committee action. Thirty days prior to the Commission action, the 
project sponsor or implementing agency must submit the completed LONP application package 
to MTC. The LONP request package consists of the following, detailed in Appendix A, and is 
available on the Internet (as applicable) at http://www.mtc.ca.gov: 
 
Intent to Request an LONP (60 days prior to Committee action): 

1. Updated Initial Project Report 
2. Completed LONP Request Form 
3. Draft Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Resolution 

 
LONP Application Package (30 days prior to Committee action): 

1. Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Resolution of Project Compliance  
2. Opinion of Legal Counsel / MTC-BATA Indemnification* 
3. Board or Official Governing Body Approved Updated Initial Project Report (IPR) and 

LONP Request 
4. Environmental Documentation (as applicable) 
5. Evidence of Allocation and Commitment of Funds  

* Project sponsors have the option of consolidating the ‘Opinion of Legal Counsel / 
MTC-BATA Indemnification’ within the ‘Implementing Agency Governing Board 
Resolution of Project Compliance’. 

 
Allocation of RM3 Funds Following LONP 
If and when RM3 funds are available for allocation, the Commission will consider an allocation 
of funds for the work scope covered under an approved LONP through the allocation process 
detailed elsewhere in this document.  
 
Reimbursement of RM3 Funds for Work Covered Under LONP 
Following allocation of RM3 funds for work scope covered under an LONP, sponsors will seek 
reimbursement following the same process detailed elsewhere in this document. If expenditures 
made by the project sponsor are determined to be ineligible according to these policies, MTC has 
no obligation to reimburse for those expenditures.  
 
 
EXPENDITURES AND REIMBURSEMENTS 
Authority to Expend 
The project sponsor must obtain the Commission’s approval of the allocation and description of 
eligible costs prior to incurring costs. Project sponsors shall not receive reimbursement for costs 
incurred prior to MTC approval of the allocation of funding. Project sponsors shall proceed 
solely at their own risk in advertising, opening bids, or awarding a contract prior to an allocation 
of RM3 funds. The advertising, bid opening, or awarding of a contract by the sponsor shall in no 
way prejudice the Commission into making an allocation it deems unsuitable. Final allocation 
decisions will be subject to the availability of funds. 
 

24

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 13 December 18, 2019 

If a project or project component is ready for implementation earlier than RM3 funding is 
available for reimbursement, the sponsor may request an allocation of funds covering eligible 
expenditures but only with the full understanding that reimbursement will be deferred until RM3 
funds are available in accordance with an approved allocation. Approval of such request is at the 
Commission’s discretion. This is distinct from consideration of a Letter of No Prejudice, and is 
intended for a situation in which RM3 funds are available for allocation, but not immediately 
available for reimbursement. 
 
Eligible Expenses 
To ensure that RM3 funds are put to the most efficient use, limitations on allowable expenses 
have been placed on environmental, design, right of way, construction, staff support, oversight, 
consultant services and other aspects of project delivery. Furthermore, agency overhead costs, 
including administrative support, office equipment, and office leases, shall not exceed the cap as 
described under “Implementing Agency Costs” below.  
 
For all project phases, RM3 funds are limited to the statutorily authorized amount: 
 
1. Environmental Studies and Preliminary Engineering 
 Expenses incurred by sponsor staff and consultant staff for environmental study costs, 

including determination of the appropriate environmental document, preparation of all 
preliminary engineering for each alternative, including geometric layouts, determination of 
right-of-way needs, environmental technical studies (such as air, noise, energy, cultural 
resources and hazardous waste), and all other studies or activities necessary to prepare and to 
finalize the appropriate environmental document for approval are eligible for reimbursement. 
Environmental costs eligible for reimbursement shall be limited to the project as described in 
S&HC Section 30914.7(a). Any environmental costs associated with an element of the 
environmentally scoped project that is beyond the project scope and intent as outlined in 
S&HC 30914.7(a) and approved by the Commission in the Allocation Request is not eligible 
for reimbursement under RM3. 

 
2. Design Costs 
 RM3 funds are eligible for expenses incurred by sponsor staff and consultant staff for design 

activities related to the project scope identified in S&HC 30914.7(a) and as approved by the 
Commission in the allocation request. These activities include but are not necessarily limited 
to, preparation of alternative design studies; materials and foundation reports; drainage, 
hydrology and hydraulic reports; management oversight; surveying and mapping; preparation 
of the Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E); preparation of bid documents and files for 
project; preparation of permit applications and maintenance agreements; coordination of 
agency reviews and any other activities necessary to prepare final PS&E for bid 
advertisement and award. 

 
3. Right-of-Way Acquisition and Utility Relocation 
 RM3 funds are eligible for expenses incurred by sponsor staff and consultant staff for all 

activities related to right-of-way, advanced right-of-way, and hardship acquisitions, including 
determination of right-of-way needs; title searches; parcel appraisals; hazardous materials 
disposition; preparation of right-of-way acquisition documents; negotiation with property 
owners; activities involved with acquiring rights-of-way including condemnation 

25



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 14 December 18, 2019 

proceedings, right-of-way capital costs, and cost-to-procure impacts related to the 
acquisition; utility relocation costs.   

 
 Services provided for right-of-way activities involved with the property but not necessary for 

the RM3 project as defined in the scope of work approved by the Commission in the IPR 
shall be at the expense of the sponsor and borne by non-RM3 fund sources. 

 
 If any excess right-of-way is sold, or otherwise disposed of, the value of such property shall 

be returned to MTC, including any profit realized from the sale of the property based on the 
prorated percentage of funds MTC contributed to the purchase of the property. 

 
4. Construction Costs 
 RM3 funds are available to cover all construction expenditures for the project including 

construction capital, management and inspection, surveys, public outreach, and others as 
appropriate that are part of the scope of work approved by the Commission in the Allocation 
Request. RM3 funds are eligible for reimbursement of sponsor’s management oversight 
expenses associated with the construction of the project. This would include activities such as 
construction management, inspection, expenses associated with reviewing proposed change 
orders, and activities involved with managing the fund sources contributing to the project.  

  
Any questions regarding eligible costs will be resolved in writing by MTC staff. 

 Capital improvements, vehicle procurements, and equipment purchases for the 
implementation of the approved RM3 projects are eligible for construction funds. Vehicles 
procured with RM3 funds must be operated in revenue service for their useful life, as defined 
by MTC’s Transit Capital Priorities process and criteria program. 

 
5. Project Sponsor/ Implementing Agency Costs 
 The amount for which the project sponsor/implementing agency can be reimbursed will be 

limited, as described below. In all cases, project sponsor/ implementing agency costs will be 
reimbursed within the cap of project funds stipulated in RM3.  

 
a) DIRECT STAFF COSTS. Implementing agency staff costs are eligible, provided 

costs are directly related to the project tasks. Allowable implementing agency staff 
costs shall include the actual salary and fringe benefits directly related to the project 
only.  

 
b) INDIRECT OVERHEAD COSTS. An overhead rate for indirect costs can be 

assessed on direct staff costs (salary and fringe benefit costs) only. The overhead rate 
shall be calculated by multiplying total labor cost (salaries and fringe benefits as 
described in above), by the sponsors’ or implementing agencies’ overhead rate as 
approved in its OMB Circular A-87 standard or an equivalent rate accepted by MTC. 
For projects with multiple project sponsors, the project sponsors must mutually agree 
to the method and overhead rate being applied to that particular RM3 project. The 
overhead rate effective July 1 of each year shall be applied for the entire fiscal year. 
Sponsors and implementing agencies may update the rate as of July 1 of each fiscal 
year. The amount reimbursable for the overhead rate shall not exceed 50% of the 
direct staff cost and shall not be leveraged on consultant contract or equipment costs. 
Project sponsors and implementing agencies must self-certify and submit an 

26



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 15 December 18, 2019 

independent opinion with respect to its agency compliance with OMB Circular A-87 
standards and laws.  

 
c) OTHER DIRECT PROJECT COSTS. Other direct costs as approved by MTC.  

 
d) CONSULTANT COSTS. Consultant services directly responsible for delivering the 

project are eligible.  Consultant services shall be listed separately and supported in the 
invoice submittal to MTC. 

 
6. Miscellaneous Costs 

The costs of fees from other agencies, including permit fees, or reimbursement for review or 
oversight costs needed for the project are eligible costs. However, the cost of permits or fees 
from the sponsor will not be eligible. Utility relocation costs are eligible for reimbursement 
according to previous agreements establishing rights for those utilities. The costs for 
specialized equipment for testing, analysis or production of documents for project-related 
work are also eligible. 

 
Invoicing and Reimbursements 
All eligible costs shall be invoiced on a reimbursable basis. Sponsors are encouraged to invoice 
quarterly and not more frequently than monthly. Any exceptions for supplemental payments 
must be approved in advance by MTC. For each fiscal year in which expenditures are incurred, 
sponsors should invoice at least once in that fiscal year. Invoices shall include only eligible costs 
and must show that the RM3 and matching fund sources are reimbursed and drawn down at 
approximately the same rate as the RM3 funds.  Costs shall be accounted for in the invoice, 
sufficient to detail services performed with respect to the project scope as approved by MTC and 
payments made. An invoice format is provided to sponsors by MTC and shall include 
appropriate supporting reports from the sponsoring agency’s general ledger. Approval of 
invoices shall be contingent on the timely submittal of Progress Reports. In the event such 
Progress Reports are not complete and current, approval of invoices shall be withheld until an 
acceptable Progress Report is submitted. Final reimbursement of funds will be subject to review 
of the delivered useable/ operable phase or segment and project close out procedures except if all 
the funds are used before project closeout. 
 
RM3 expenditures and associated invoices should generally follow the cash flow plan adopted in 
the allocating resolution. MTC cannot guarantee the availability of funds for reimbursement 
requests that outpace the adopted cash flow plan.  
 
Projects in or entering complex and capital intensive phases may be provided invoice forms 
requiring additional information and/or required to submit electronic invoices in addition to hard 
copies.  
 
Availability for Audits 
Sponsors of capital projects shall be available for audits as requested by MTC. 
 
TIMELY USE OF FUNDS PROVISIONS AND DEADLINES 
The majority of fund sources used for transportation improvements are bound by timely use of 
funds deadlines. Failure to meet specific funding milestones can result in the funds being deleted 

27



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 16 December 18, 2019 

from the project. In the event of funding loss due to the sponsor’s inability to meet timely use of 
funds provisions, the sponsor must demonstrate that the project or project phase is still 
deliverable. 
  
Generally, project sponsors should encumber funds within one year of receiving an allocation. 
With respect to project phase milestones, 1) sponsors should not take more than 3 years to 
complete the environmental document and clearance process for environmental phase allocations 
and 2) Right of Way agreements should be finalized within two years of the allocation of funds 
for right of way acquisition. Deviations from these timely use of funds guidelines should be 
highlighted in the progress reporting process and sponsors are required to provide an explanation 
for this lapse.  
 
The expiration date of an RM3 allocation will be set according to the cash flow plan outlined in 
the allocation request. Final invoices for a project allocation should be submitted within sixty 
days of the end of the final fiscal year shown in the cash flow plan. Amendments, adjustments 
and extensions should be requested in writing and must be approved, in writing, by MTC staff. 
 
Project sponsors must demonstrate and certify that they can meet all of the timely use of funds 
deadlines as part of the financial plan included in the Initial Project Report for the various fund 
sources on the project. It is encouraged that project sponsors follow the provisions of the 
Regional Project Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, Revised.). 
 
Project Cancellation 
If the RM3 project or project phase is not completed, the project sponsor shall repay MTC any 
RM3 funds expended above the proportionate share of eligible costs for the project or project 
phase. With regard to vehicle procurements, removal from revenue service or sale of the vehicle 
prior to the end of the vehicle’s useful life will result in repayment to MTC and the RM3 
program for the depreciated value of the vehicle at the time of removal or sale.  
 
Following the Commission consultation with the sponsor, public hearing and determination to 
redirect funds from the project, payment to MTC shall be made with interest and shall be made 
in accordance with a negotiated repayment schedule, not to exceed 24 months. MTC shall 
withhold funds due the sponsor for any missed payments under the negotiated agreement.   
 
 
OTHER PROJECT COST CONDITIONS 
Maintenance and Operating Costs 
Pertaining to capital projects outlined in S&HC Section 30914.7(a), it is the obligation of the 
project sponsor to arrange for all costs to operate and maintain the improvement constructed 
under RM3. No costs will be considered as eligible for reimbursement out of RM3 capital funds 
to operate or maintain the facility or any portion of the facility. Requests for any initial startup 
costs as part of the construction contract must be approved in writing by MTC staff. 
 
Escalated Costs 
RM3 funding for any individual project or program shall be limited to the amount designated in 
the RM3 legislation without escalation notwithstanding the provisions of Section 30914.7(e). If 

28



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 17 December 18, 2019 

funding beyond RM3 amounts are required to complete the project phase the sponsor is 
responsible for securing the additional funding prior to allocation of RM3 funds.  
 
Cost Increases 
In cases where available RM3 funds are insufficient to complete a project phase, it is the sole 
responsibility of the sponsor to secure the additional necessary funding. In the event that the 
sponsor cannot secure additional funding, and/or the project cannot be segmented, phased, or 
rescoped to meet the available funds and still conform to the intent of the legislation and voter 
mandate, the Commission shall consult with the program or project sponsor, and conduct a 
public hearing as outlined in S&HC Section 30914.7(e). After the hearing, the Commission may 
vote to modify the project’s or program’s scope, decrease its level of funding, or reassign all of 
the funds to another regional project or program within the same corridor. If the existing project 
is removed from the RM3 program, MTC and the sponsor agree to share expenditures of eligible 
costs to date in accordance with the allocation conditions accompanying the project allocation. 
 
Contract change orders or cost increases that may arise once the contract has been awarded that 
are in excess of $250,000 or 20% of the project cost, whichever is less, shall be noticed to MTC 
as soon as those increases have been identified or no later than the next scheduled Progress 
Report. The project sponsor will provide assurance that the project phase the Commission 
allocated to is still deliverable. A revised financial plan for the project shall be included as part of 
the submitted Progress Report. 
 
The sponsor is not authorized to claim any RM3 funds in excess of the allocation amount 
approved by the Commission.  
 
In no case shall the financial responsibility of BATA and/or MTC regarding RM3 funds 
exceed the amount designated in SHC 30914.7(a) and (c), or as amended by the 
Commission through the process outlined in SHC 30914.7(e).  
 
Cost Savings and Cost Increases at Bid Opening 
At the time of bid opening, the responsible low bid may exceed the funding commitment of RM3 
funds as well as other fund sources. If in the event of construction budget exceedances, the 
sponsor may seek an allocation of any remaining RM3 funds not yet allocated to the project only 
if other funds are committed in sufficient amounts to deliver the construction phase. If all 
available fund sources are not sufficient to award the project, the sponsor shall consult with MTC 
on suitable measures to enable the project to proceed, including but not limited to downscoping 
the project and rebidding, providing additional clarity to enable a more cost-effective bid, or 
seeking additional revenues. In no case shall the sponsor exceed the levels of RM3 funding 
allowable under S&HC Section 30914.7(a). In utilizing all available funding from all sources for 
contract award, the sponsor shall consult with MTC staff on the likelihood of cost increases 
during construction and what contingencies are available to address these costs, including the 
presentation of a risk management plan for constraining construction expenditures to available 
revenues. In the event of projected cost savings at bid opening, the proportional share of RM3 
funds will be rescinded and shall be available to the sponsor for any cost increases associated 
with the project after construction award until the time of final close-out of the bid phase, 
including the settlement of all claims. Any requests for exceptions will be considered on a case-
by-case basis. 
 

29



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 18 December 18, 2019 

MONITORING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Annual Updates 
On an annual basis, sponsors and implementing agencies may be asked to notify the Commission 
of anticipated allocation requests for the subsequent fiscal year (12 months). The Commission’s 
capacity to allocate RM3 funds depends in part on the information provided by the sponsors and 
the failure to comply may result in the sponsor’s allocation request being deferred until such time 
when RM3 funds become available. 
 
Semi-annual Progress Reports 
As directed by MTC, sponsors and/or implementing agencies will provide MTC with a Semi-
Annual Progress Report. Semi-annual periods begin on July 1 and January 1 of any given fiscal 
year. These reports are meant to update MTC on the project’s scope, cost, and schedule. These 
reports shall include the following:  
 
• Status: the phase currently underway and the progress since the last report; major meetings 

and decisions on the project; any significant accomplishments; any setbacks to the project. 
The sponsor should note whether they anticipate any problems, and what area these problems 
exist in. 

• Expenditures to date: these will be specified as expenditures since the prior reporting, and 
will include all funding sources including RM3.  These will be in sufficient detail to 
determine that they are eligible expenses. 

• Schedule changes: any changes in the project schedule as outlined and approved in the IPR 
and the consequences of those changes, particularly related to project costs. If the schedule 
has been modified, a revised schedule must be attached. 

• Cost changes: all changes should be noted in the Progress Report; changes greater than 20% 
or $250,000 dollars, whichever is less, must be accompanied by a detailed explanation of 
what options the sponsor has considered to manage the change. If costs have changed by 
more than $250,000 or 20%, whichever is greater, a revised funding plan and cash flow 
schedule must be attached. 

• Risk management: updates on risk management process, including new and retired risks and 
updated risk modeling outputs, as applicable.  

• Potential Claims: If RM3 funds are utilized for the construction phase of the project, then the 
sponsor must certify if there are any Notices of Potential Claim. If they exist, a summary of 
such notices as well as the likely cost or schedule impact shall be included.  

• Upcoming allocation requests: Sponsors are requested to provide information on upcoming 
allocation requests; MTC’s capacity to allocate RM3 funds depends in part on the 
information provided by the sponsors and the failure to comply may result in the sponsor’s 
allocation request being deferred until such time when RM3 funds become available. 

• Status of Project Specific Conditions: If project specific conditions were approved as part of 
the allocation, the sponsor must address the status of meeting the condition. 

• Failure to provide the report and required information shall be ground for MTC to withhold 
reimbursements until a report is submitted and accepted by MTC. 
 

Increased Oversight 
MTC may increase oversight of a given project due to many factors, including but not limited to 
project size or complexity, issues with scope, schedule, or budget, higher than expected bids, 
difficulties in the environmental or right-of-way phases, level of project sponsor experience with 

30



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 19 December 18, 2019 

project type or magnitude, project stakeholders with competing interests, changes in project 
leadership or key staff, or issues with sponsor capacity in delivering the project. Increased 
oversight process will be implemented in collaboration with the project sponsor may include, but 
is not limited to, more frequent reporting periods, direct MTC (or MTC authorized agent) 
involvement in project meetings, field visits, audits, establishment of or participation in a project 
oversight group, or reports/investigations into the project by MTC. Projects appearing on the At-
Risk Report (see below) will be subject to increased oversight.  

 
Project Close Out  
The Implementing Agency shall be responsible for notifying MTC of the completion of project, 
prior to submitting the final invoice for the project. After notification, MTC staff will provide the 
sponsor with the appropriate forms to close out the project, specific to the project type. The final 
close-out procedure for a project may include sponsor provided documentation verifying the 
completion of the project, summarizing project costs and expenditures with a reconciliation of 
balances remaining on the project, transmittal of final deliverables, and on-site field visits. For 
projects that expend all of the RM3 funds before completing the overall project as stipulated in 
statute, MTC has the discretion to continue requesting progress reports on the project. This will 
be considered on a case-by-case basis.  In case of RM3 projects that include complementary 
bridge toll funds (RM1/RM2/AB1171) that have not been expended as yet, sponsors will be 
expected to continue to provide progress reports on the status of these projects. 
 
At Risk Report/Cooperation with Consultants 
Upon receipt of the sponsor-submitted semi-annual progress reports, MTC may prepare an At-
Risk Report (Report) for submittal to the Commission that outlines critical scope, cost, or 
schedule changes to the project.  The sponsor shall cooperate with MTC or any authorized agent 
of MTC in the preparation of the Report. The Report may be presented to the Commission to 
determine the ability of the project or project phase to be delivered, per Section 30914.7(e) of the 
S&HC. Regarding scope changes, any changes resulting in changes in costs or schedule should 
be delineated.  
 
CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER PLANS AND POLICIES 
Projects receiving RM3 funds must be consistent with many other regional, state, and federal 
plans and policies, as listed below. This section may be updated to reflect policy changes by 
those respective bodies. However, sponsors are responsible for ensuring project compliance with 
all regional, state, and federal plans and policies. 
 
RTP/SCS Consistency 
Capital projects seeking allocations must be consistent with the adopted Regional Transportation 
Plan (RTP)/Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS), which state law requires be consistent with 
federal planning and programming requirements. As of the release of RM3 funds and start of 
RM3 allocations, the current RTP/SCS is Plan Bay Area 2050.  
 
Consistency with County Plans 
For capital projects, it is required that all committed project phases be included in an adopted 
countywide transportation plan(s) consistent with MTC’s guidelines—either a Congestion 
Management Plan (CMP) and/or a Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP). The phase of the 
project requiring funding shall be in an approved CMP, or in an adopted Capital Improvement 

31



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 20 December 18, 2019 

Program (CIP) for counties that have opted out of the CMP requirement, prior to seeking 
allocation of RM3 funds. For multi-county projects, the project must be in the countywide plans 
and CMP/CIP of the counties affected by the project. 
 
TIP and Air Quality Conformity 
Federal laws governing requirements for regions to achieve or maintain federally mandated air 
quality standards require that all regionally significant transportation improvements be part of a 
required regional conformity finding. This regional conformity finding is performed by MTC, 
the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Bay Area, in concert with the Bay Area 
Air Quality Management District, and must state that if all the transportation improvements 
proceed, air quality standards can be reached. 
 
A project is regionally significant if it increases transit or highway capacity or offers an 
alternative to established regional highway travel. Projects must be included in the conformity 
analysis, regardless of their fund source. To that extent, all regionally significant RM3 projects 
must be included in the conformity analysis for the Regional Transportation Plan (Plan) and 
Transportation Improvement Program (Program). Project sponsors are responsible for updating 
the TIP listing for their projects following an RM3 allocation or rescission or other significant 
change to the project. Project specific air quality conformity analysis and findings are the sole 
responsibility of the project sponsor. 
  
Title VI Compliance 
RM3 projects must be consistent with federal Title VI requirements. Title VI prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, disability, and national origin in programs and 
activities receiving federal financial assistance. Public outreach to and involvement of 
individuals in low income and minority communities covered under Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act and the Executive Order pertaining to Environmental Justice is critical to both local and 
regional decisions. Sponsors of programmatic categories must consider equitable solicitation and 
selection of project candidates in accordance with federal Title VI and Environmental Justice 
requirements. 
 
Accommodations for Bicyclists, Pedestrians and Persons with Disabilities 
Federal, state and regional policies and directives emphasize the accommodation of bicyclists, 
pedestrians, and persons with disabilities when designing transportation facilities. As with many 
existing projects in the Bay Area, an RM3 project is likely to have a number of fund sources that 
make it whole. A project must incorporate the appropriate policy associated with the fund 
sources that make up the project. Federal, State, and regional policies and directives regarding 
non-motorized travel include the following: 
 

Federal Policy Mandates 
 The Federal Highways Administration Program Guidance on bicycle and pedestrian issues 
makes a number of clear statements of intent, and provides best practices concepts as 
outlined in the US DOT “Policy Statement on Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodation 
Regulations and Recommendations.” 
(https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/guidance/policy_accom.cfm) 
 

32

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/guidance/policy_accom.cfm


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 21 December 18, 2019 

State Policy Mandates 
The California Complete Streets Act (AB 1358) of 2008 encourages cities to make the most 
efficient use of urban land and transportation infrastructure, and improve public health by 
encouraging physical activity to reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT). Government Code 
Section 65302(b)(2)(A) and (B) states that any substantial revision of the circulation element 
of the General Plan to consider all users. 
California Government Code Section 65089(b)(1)(B)(5) requires that the design, construction 
and implementation of roadway projects proposed for funding in the RTIP must consider 
maintaining bicycle access and safety at a level comparable to that which existed prior to the 
improvement or alteration. 
 
Caltrans Deputy Directive 64, states: “the Department fully considers the needs of non-
motorized travelers (including pedestrians, bicyclists, and persons with disabilities) in all 
programming, planning, maintenance, construction, operations, and project development 
activities and products. This includes incorporation of the best available standards in all of 
the Department’s practices. The Department adopts the best practices concept in the US DOT 
Policy Statement on Integrating Bicycling and Walking into Transportation Infrastructure.”  
 
Regional Active Transportation Plan/Complete Streets Policy 
MTC is developing the first regional Active Transportation Plan to guide investments in 
infrastructure. RM3 projects shall comply, as appropriate, with the following adopted 
components of the Active Transportation Plan and future elements as developed and adopted 
by MTC.  
 

Complete Streets Policy: MTC Resolution 4493 requires agencies applying for regional 
transportation funds to consider safe mobility and improved connectivity to community 
destinations for all road users, and especially for people biking, walking, rolling and 
taking transit. This policy applies to project planning, design, funding, construction, 
reconstruction, and maintenance activities. The policy requires submittal of a Complete 
Streets Checklist for projects with a total project cost of $250,000 or more requesting 
MTC discretionary funding.  
 
Regional Active Transportation Network: Projects located on the regional Active 
Transportation Network shall incorporate design principles based on “All Ages and 
Abilities” contextual guidance provided by the National Association of City 
Transportation Officials, as well as the (Proposed) Public Rights-of-Way Accessibility 
Guidelines (PROWAG) issued by the U.S. Access Board. Compliance with this is 
primarily tracked through completion of a Complete Streets Checklist as described above.  
 
The Complete Streets Policy, Complete Streets Checklist, and the Active Transportation 
Network map can be found on the MTC Complete Streets webpage: 
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/complete-streets 

 
 

Resolution 4530 Transit-Oriented Communities Policy and Resolution 3434 Transit-
Oriented Development Policy  
In order to support the development of communities around new transit lines and stations, MTC 
adopted a Transit-Oriented Communities (TOC) Policy that applies to existing and planned 

33

https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/land-use/transit-oriented-communities-toc-policy


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 22 December 18, 2019 

transit stops and stations served by key rail, ferry, and bus rapid transit services. As of the release 
of RM3 funds and start of RM3 allocations, the TOC policy is in an initial implementation 
period and guidance for compliance with the TOC policy is under development. RM3 projects, 
as appropriate shall comply with the current guidance and compliance requirements of the TOC 
policy or the precursor Transit-Oriented Development policy (MTC Resolution No. 3434, 
Revised) in effect at time of allocation. For fixed-guideway transit extensions that are current 
moving forward and have been planned under the TOD policy, local jurisdictions must be in 
compliance with the requirements of the TOD Policy and must commit to achieving TOC Policy 
compliance by the adoption of the OBAG 4 program, estimated in 2026, through written 
documentation with MTC. 
 
Major Project Advancement Policy 
To support implementation of the transportation investments identified in Plan Bay Area 2050, 
MTC adopted the Major Project Advancement Policy, or MAP, through MTC Resolution 4537. 
The MAP includes a funding endorsement framework to guide regional discretionary funding 
and endorsement, policy reinforcements, and risk management. As of the release of RM3 funds 
and start of RM3 allocations, the latter two components were under development. RM3 projects, 
as appropriate, shall comply with MAP requirements in effect at the time of allocation. 

 
Intelligent Transportation Systems Policy 
In collaboration with federal, state, and local partners, MTC developed the regional Intelligent 
Transportation Systems (ITS) Architecture. The San Francisco Bay Area Regional ITS 
Architecture is a roadmap for integrated and collaborative ITS projects in the Bay Area over the 
next 10 years and beyond. The Architecture provides the knowledge base necessary to make the 
most out of technological advances for planning and deployment of intelligent transportation 
systems that are connected and standardized across the region and beyond. 
  
MTC, state and federal agencies require projects funded with federal highway trust funds to meet 
applicable ITS Architecture requirements. MTC requires all applicable projects to conform to the 
regional ITS architecture. Through the on-line Fund Management System (FMS) application 
process, RM3 project sponsors will identify the appropriate ITS category, if applicable. 
Information on the regional ITS architecture can be found at: http://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/operate-
coordinate/intelligent-transportation-systems-its. 
 
Transit Coordination Policy  
Res. 3866 (Transit Coordination Implementation Plan) 
Res. 3866 establishes coordination requirements for Bay Area transit operators to improve the 
transit customer experience when transferring between transit operators and in support of 
regional transit projects like Clipper®, 511, the Hub Signage Program, and the Transit Passenger 
Survey Program.  Any agency that is an eligible recipient of funds subject to allocation or 
programming by MTC – including RM3 capital funds – is subject to Res. 3866 requirements, or 
successor resolution in place at the time of allocation. If a transit operator fails to comply, MTC 
may invoke the provisions of MTC Resolution No. 3866, which could affect access to funds. 
 
Ongoing Regional Coordination 
As of the release of RM3 funds and start of RM3 allocations, multiple transit coordination efforts 
are ongoing at MTC, including the Bay Area Fare Coordination and Integration Study and 
implementation of the Network Management Business Case Evaluation. As these or other efforts 

34

http://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/operate-coordinate/intelligent-transportation-systems-its
http://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/operate-coordinate/intelligent-transportation-systems-its


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 23 December 18, 2019 

develop and are adopted into regional policy, MTC will incorporate the polices and any 
associated requirements into the RM3 Policies and Procedures.  
 
MTC Resolution No. 4104 Compliance – Traffic Operations System Policy 
All major new freeway projects included in Plan Bay Area 2040 and subsequent regional 
transportation plans shall include the installation and activation of freeway traffic operations 
system (TOS) elements to effectively operate the region’s freeway system and coordinate with 
local transportation management systems. MTC requires all applicable RM3 projects to conform 
to the regional policy. For purposes of this policy, a major freeway project is a project that adds 
lanes to a freeway, constructs a new segment of freeway, upgrades a segment to freeway status, 
modifies a freeway interchange, modifies freeway ramps, or reconstructs an existing freeway. 
TOS elements may include, but are not limited to, changeable message signs, closed-circuit 
television cameras, traffic monitoring stations and detectors, highway advisory radio, and ramp 
meters. 
 
Regional Communications Infrastructure 
MTC Resolution No. 4104, Traffic Operations System Policy, requires the installation and 
activation of freeway traffic operations system elements. In order to facilitate implementation of 
technology-based strategies focused on enhancing safety, mobility and economic vitality of 
communities, and to expand interoperability among partner agencies, projects must install fiber 
communications conduit infrastructure if project limits overlap with a proposed project in the 
final 2019 Regional Communications Strategic Investment Plan, when both financially feasible 
and consistent with goals stated in the Bay Area Regional Communications Infrastructure Plan.  
 
RM3 projects seeking funds for environmental or plans, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) 
phases should consider incorporating communications infrastructure into project design, ideally 
at the project scoping phase leading to programming. A checklist of technical recommendations 
are listed in the final 2019 Regional Communications Infrastructure Plan (available at the MTC 
website at https://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/operate-coordinate/intelligent-transportation-
systems/regional-communications-network). For future RM3 funding commitments on new 
projects, projects sponsors should work with MTC to identify the appropriate communications 
component to support the completion of regional communications network throughout the Bay 
Area. A project is considered “new” if it does not have an approved Project Study Report or 
applicable scoping document as of December 15, 2019. 
 
Interregional Project Funding and Coordination Policy 
MTC Resolution No. 4399 establishes a policy instructing use of regional discretionary funds on 
projects crossing beyond MTC’s jurisdictional boundary. This policy, limited to capital projects 
of more than $100 million or more in total cost, establishes conditions for projects receiving 
regional discretionary funds and specific requirements based on the funded phase(s). RM3 
projects, as applicable, shall comply with this policy.   
 
  

35

https://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/operate-coordinate/intelligent-transportation-systems/regional-communications-network
https://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/operate-coordinate/intelligent-transportation-systems/regional-communications-network


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 24 December 18, 2019 

 
MTC/BATA-SPONSORED RM3 PROGRAMS 
 
S&HC Section 30914.7(a) lists several programs with MTC or BATA as a sponsor, co-sponsor, 
or as involved in determining projects: 
 

(2) Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes  
(3) Goods Movement and Mitigation 
(4) San Francisco Bay Trail/Safe Routes to Transit 
(11) Core Capacity Transit Improvements 
(17) Dumbarton Corridor Improvements 
(25) Richmond-San Rafael Bridge Access Improvements 
(26) North Bay Transit Access Improvements 
(28) Next-Generation Clipper Transit Fare Payment System 

 
MTC/BATA will develop the above-listed programs in partnership with any listed co-sponsors, 
and in accordance with statute and the RM3 Policies and Procedures, in separate processes. 
These programs are ineligible for the Letter of No Prejudice process until they have been 
developed. 
 
Additionally, S&HC Section 30914.7(a) includes two projects without a directly named project 
sponsor: 
 

(9) Caltrain Downtown Extension. Extend Caltrain from its current terminus at Fourth 
Street and King Street to the Transbay Transit Center. The Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission shall allocate funding to the agency designated to build the project, which 
shall be the project sponsor. Three hundred twenty-five million dollars ($325,000,000). 

 
(14) Tri-Valley Transit Access Improvements. Provide interregional and last-mile transit 
connections on the Interstate 580 corridor in the County of Alameda within the Tri-
Valley area of Dublin, Pleasanton, and Livermore. The Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission shall consult with the Alameda County Transportation Commission, the Bay 
Area Rapid Transit District, and local jurisdictions to determine the project sponsor. One 
hundred million dollars ($100,000,000). 

 
MTC will allocate funds to these projects in accordance with S&HC Section 30914.7(a).   
 

 

36



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 25 December 18, 2019 

SECTION 3 – OPERATING PROGRAM GUIDANCE 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
Regional Measure 3 (RM3) will provide operating assistance for the following purposes: San 
Francisco Transbay Terminal (Salesforce Transit Center), Expanded Ferry Service, and Regional 
Express Bus. These projects are identified in Section 30914.7(c) of the California Streets and 
Highways Code (California S&HC). 

RM3 funds for operating assistance will be made available annually in accordance with the 
policies and procedures defined in this section. 

ALLOCATION PROCESS 
Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year MTC will adopt a project specific budget for RM3 
operating funds. It is against this budget, subject to meeting eligibility requirements and fund 
availability, that project sponsors should request operating allocations.  

Funding Amounts 
Section 30914.7(c) of the California S&HC establishes that not more than 16 percent, up to sixty 
million dollars ($60,000,000) of the revenues generated each year from the toll increase 
approved by voters through RM3 shall be made available for operations assistance. Of the annual 
RM3 Operating Program, the following guidance determines funding levels for operating 
assistance for the Transbay Terminal, Regional Express Bus, and Expanded Ferry Service: 

1. Transbay Terminal: 8 percent of the amount available for operating assistance, not to 
exceed five million dollars ($5,000,000) shall be made available annually for the 
Transbay Terminal 

2. Regional Express Bus: 34% of the amount available for operating assistance, not to 
exceed twenty million dollars ($20,000,000) shall be made available annually for 
Regional Express Bus 

3. Expanded Ferry Service: 58% of the amount available for operating assistance, not to 
exceed thirty-five million dollars ($35,000,000) shall be made available annually for 
Expanded Ferry Service 
 
Over the first four years of allocation, spanning Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 to FY2021-22,  
the San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transportation Authority (WETA) is 
outlined to receive a total of seventy million dollars ($70,000,000), followed by 58% of 
funds available for operating assistance from year five onward. However, WETA has 
agreed to receive 58% of the amount available for operating assistance for the first four 
years of allocation as well so that RM3 operating assistance can be made available to 
other eligible operators in light of the transit operating funding needs resulting from the 
COVID-19 pandemic and its-going effects on operating revenue. 

 
In the event that a portion or all of the toll revenue is not needed for the Transbay Terminal or 
Regional Express Bus operations, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall reduce the 
allocation accordingly. 
 

37



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 26 December 18, 2019 

Regional Express Bus Program Sponsors 
The RM3 statute does not identify eligible sponsors or routes, or a methodology for making such 
determinations, for Regional Express Bus operating assistance allocations. Beginning in FY 
2022-23, a simplified methodology using data available from Regional Measure 2 (RM2) will be 
used to identify eligible sponsors and program RM3 operating assistance Regional Express Bus 
funding amounts. RM3 operating assistance for Regional Express Bus will be distributed 
between RM2 express bus sponsors [SHC Section 30914 (d) (1) to (5)] based on ridership on 
RM2-supported express bus routes and the combined loss in RM2 express bus operating 
revenues for FY2021-22 and FY2022-23 (relative to RM2 express bus operating revenues in 
FY2018-19).  

Regional Express Bus routes to be funded with RM3 funds are not identified under this interim 
methodology. Section 30914.7(c) of the California S&HC directs recipients to utilize RM3 
Operating Program funds to operate express bus services that carry the highest number of transit 
passengers. 

In future years, the methodology to identify RM3 Regional Express Bus operating assistance 
project sponsors and funding amounts may be revised to consider a broader range of factors 
and/or identify specific routes eligible for RM3 operating assistance.  

Environmental Documentation 
Operation of transit service is normally a Class I categorical exemption under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Applicants are asked to self-certify that their RM3 
operating project is exempt from CEQA. For projects that are not exempt from CEQA review, all 
applicants are required to indicate that an environmental document has been filed with the 
County Clerk. Applicants should consult their environmental officer for guidance in completion 
of this requirement. 

Allocation Applications 
An allocation request will be considered complete and ready for consideration by the 
Commission when all of the component elements to the request are submitted and approved for 
forwarding to the Commission by MTC staff.  Each request must be submitted using the most 
current forms available on the MTC website.  Most operating project sponsors will prepare their 
requests as part of an application for Transportation Development Act funds submitted to MTC 
annually.  For project sponsors that do not receive those funds, applications for operating 
assistance should be submitted sixty days prior to the expected allocation date and should include 
the following material: 
 

1. Cover letter detailing the allocation request;  
2. Implementing Agency Resolution; * 
3. Operating Agreement; 
4. Opinion of Legal Counsel; * 
5. Environmental documentation; 
6. Certifications and assurances; and 
7. Fiscal audit. 

 
* Project sponsors have the option of consolidating the ‘Implementing Agency Resolution’ 

and the ‘Opinion of Legal Counsel.’ 

38



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 27 December 18, 2019 

 
Appendix B details the formats for the Implementing Agency Resolution, Operating Agreement, 
the Opinion of Legal Counsel, and the Certifications and Assurances. RM3 operating project 
sponsors not eligible for Transportation Development Act funding should contact MTC for the 
most recent Operating Agreement. 
 
Staff will review the operating assistance request to ensure that the project request meets 
eligibility per S&H code 30914.7(c), compliance with financial audit requirements, satisfaction 
of established performance measures, and other requirements outlined in this Policies and 
Procedures manual. 
 
Operating Agreements 
In order for RM3 funds to be expended on a project, project sponsors must execute an operating 
agreement with MTC that meets the requirements outlined in Section 30914.7(c) of the 
California S&HC. These agreements are to be executed through a process of project sponsor 
governing board certification followed by Commission allocation action.  The annual funding 
agreement will consist of approval by both project sponsors and MTC of the terms outlined in 
the sponsor Implementing Agency Resolution and Operating Agreement.  The Implementing 
Agency Resolution should provide evidence of a full funding plan, adherence to performance 
measures, local agreement to conditions, local certification of absence of legal impediments and 
local indemnification of the Commission and adherence to the planned activity as outlined in the 
Operating Agreement.   

In the case of operating assistance for the Transbay Terminal and Regional Express Bus, the 
operating agreement shall include: 

1. An operating plan that is consistent with the adopted performance measures described 
later in this section.  

2. A schedule of projected fare revenues or other forecast revenue and any other operating 
funding that will be dedicated to the service or terminal. The schedule shall include the 
most recently completed fiscal year, current fiscal year, and a projection for the next five 
fiscal years 

3. Performance statistics for performance measures defined later in this section for the most 
recently completed fiscal year, current fiscal year, and a projection for the next five fiscal 
years 

4. Explanation of the methodology used to forecast fare revenues, other operating revenues, 
and performance measures 

 
In the case of operating assistance for Expanded Ferry Service, the operating agreement shall 
include: 

1. An operating plan that is consistent with the adopted performance measures described 
later in this section. As outlined in S&HC 30914.7(c), the plan should establish 
systemwide and route-specific performance measures related to farebox recovery, 
ridership, and any other measures deemed appropriate by WETA in consultation with 
MTC.  The plan should also establish a five-year plan for new or enhanced service and 
describe incremental steps needed to achieve a reasonable level of service productivity 
and cost-effectiveness. 

2. A schedule of projected fare revenues or other forecast revenue and any other operating 
funding that will be dedicated to the service or terminal. The schedule shall include the 

39



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 28 December 18, 2019 

most recently completed fiscal year, current fiscal year, and a projection for the next five 
fiscal years 

3. Performance statistics for performance measures defined later in this section for the most 
recently completed fiscal year, current fiscal year, and a projection for the next five fiscal 
years 

4. Explanation of the methodology used to forecast fare revenues, other operating revenues, 
and performance measures 

 
 
ELIGIBILITY 
Reimbursable Activities 
Transit services eligible to receive operating assistance under RM3 are those projects identified 
under Section 30914.7(c) of the California S&HC. These services have been determined to 
reduce congestion or to make improvements to travel in the toll bridge corridors. Due to other 
federal, state and regional requirements, full eligibility for the receipt of RM3 funding is not 
determined until approval of the funding allocation by the Commission.  

Operating costs included in the operating expense object classes of the uniform system of 
accounts, exclusive of depreciation and amortization expenses and direct costs for providing 
charter service, are eligible for RM3 operating assistance. Eligible expenses for operating follow 
the eligibility criteria for Transportation Development Act funds. 

Service initiation costs for RM3 routes – including preparation of environmental clearance – are 
an eligible expense. 

No operator or transit service claimant shall be eligible to receive moneys during the fiscal year 
from RM3 operating assistance plus RM2 operating assistance, Transportation Development Act 
Local Transportation Fund, and/or State Transit Assistance, as applicable for operating costs that 
exceed its actual operating cost for the service identified in California S&HC 30914.7(c) or 
subsequently amended through an action by the MTC Commission (including payment for 
disposition of claims arising out of the operator’s liability) in the fiscal year less the amount of 
fare revenues received during the fiscal year. 

The period of eligibility for operating expenses is for the fiscal year for which the allocation is 
made. The term fiscal year has reference to the year commencing July 1 and ending June 30 of 
the following year.  

Regional Express Bus Route Eligibility 
Section 30914.7(c) of the California S&HC states that Regional Express Bus operating 
assistance shall be distributed for bus service in the bridge corridors. The following definitions 
should be used to determine whether a bus route is eligible to receive RM3 Regional Express 
Bus operating assistance. 
 

1. Express Bus is defined as either: 
i. Commuter bus service, defined by the Federal Transit Administration’s National 

Transit Database as local fixed-route bus transportation primarily connecting 
outlying areas with a central city. Service is characterized by the use of 
motorcoach vehicles (also known as over-the-road buses), multiple trip tickets, 

40



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 29 December 18, 2019 

multiple stops in outlying areas, limited stops in the central city, and at least five 
miles of closed-door service; or  

ii. Rapid bus service, which is characterized by features to expedite service such as 
reduced stop spacing (e.g., rapid service pattern) or operation in corridors with 
designated right-of-way (e.g., bus priority lanes) or transit signal priority. 

2. Bridge Corridor is defined as either: 
i. The extents of a BATA Bridge and its approaches; or 

ii. Arterials that run parallel to a freeway leading to a bridge corridor; or 
iii. Local streets or arterials connecting to transit service that crosses or runs parallel 

to a BATA bridge (e.g., BART, AC Transit Transbay Bus, etc.) 

 
 
DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS 
After approval by the Commission, allocations of RM3 operating funds will be disbursed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions established in the allocation instructions or program 
supplement by MTC. Generally, allocation instructions will direct payments to be made on a 
reimbursement basis no more frequently than once per month. A system of monthly advance 
payments subject to quarterly adjustments to reflect actual expenses against monthly invoices 
will be considered by MTC on a case-by-case basis. Sponsors are required to submit the final 
fiscal year invoice by July 30th. All disbursements are subject to the availability of bridge toll 
revenues, determination of eligible expenses, and execution of the operating agreement. Specific 
invoicing procedures will be provided to the sponsor. 

Disbursement of RM3 operating assistance may be delayed, cancelled, or adjusted based on 
MTC audit findings of ineligible expenses. Delinquency of report submittals or failure to comply 
with other RM3 operating assistance conditions could be grounds for withholding disbursement 
of funding or rescinding allocations. 

Funds for operation of the Transbay Terminal and Regional Express Bus must be spent by the 
deadline provided by MTC in the allocation instructions. Funds that are not utilized within the 
time provide are returned to the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA). 

WETA Operating Reserve 
In accordance with S&HC 30914.7(c)(2)(B)(ii), annual funding made available to WETA for 
Expanded Ferry Service that is not requested for expenditure by WETA in a given year shall be 
held by BATA in a reserve account. Funds from this account shall be made available to WETA 
for any capital or operating purpose. In order to access these funds, WETA shall submit a request 
to MTC detailing how the funds will be used to support the objectives of RM3. WETA will 
retain interest earned by funds held in the reserve account.  

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 
Performance Measures 
Prior to allocation of revenue for transit operating assistance under subdivision (c) of Section 
30914.7 of the S&HC, MTC shall adopt performance measures, and sponsors shall report 
performance to MTC annually. Interim performance measures and relevant definitions are 
included in Appendix B Part 2. 

41



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 30 December 18, 2019 

In the case of operating assistance for the Transbay Terminal and Regional Express Bus, MTC 
shall: 

1. Adopt performance measures related to farebox recovery, ridership, or other indicators, 
as appropriate. Performance measures shall be developed in consultation with the 
affected project sponsors. The performance measures are included in Appendix B, Part 2. 

2. Grant a project sponsor at least five years to achieve the adopted performance measures. 
MTC shall use a ridership forecast as the basis for performance measure quantification. If 
the project sponsor does not achieve the performance measures within the specified 
timeframe, the project sponsor shall notify MTC, and MTC may revise the performance 
measures, extend the timeframe to achieve the performance measures, or take action to 
reduce the funding available for operations if the performance measures are not met 
within the new timeframe. 

 
Regional Express Bus performance measures will apply to RM3-funded service only, as opposed 
to systemwide performance. 

In the case of operating assistance for Expanded Ferry Service, WETA shall: 
1. Adopt a plan that includes systemwide and route-specific performance measures related 

to farebox recovery, ridership, and any other measures deemed appropriate by WETA in 
consultation with MTC. WETA will consult with MTC throughout the development of 
this plan to ensure that it supports the objectives of RM3. This plan will also prioritize the 
use of RM3 capital funding to support its mission as the operator of ferry services. 

 
In the case of operating assistance for Expanded Ferry Service, MTC shall: 

1. Grant WETA at least five years to achieve the systemwide and route-specific 
performance measures adopted in the plan described above. If WETA does not achieve 
the performance measures within the specified time frame, WETA, in consultation with 
MTC, may propose a new timeframe, not longer than an additional five years, to achieve 
the performance measures and take needed steps to remedy the service to meet the new 
measures. In the event that performance measures are not met within the new timeframe, 
WETA may seek additional time to achieve the measures and MTC may determine 
whether services should continue and may establish other conditions to service in 
consultation with WETA. 

 
Failure to report and meet performance measures established by MTC may be grounds for delays 
or adjustment to future allocations. Meeting performance targets, in the case of Regional Express 
Bus, is not guarantee of continued funding in future years. MTC may revise this Policies and 
Procedures document to identify a new methodology to determine the programming of Regional 
Express Bus funds, irrespective of the performance, of any route. 

Fiscal Audit 
Prior to annual allocation of transit operating assistance by MTC, MTC may conduct an 
independent audit that contains audited financial information, including an opinion on the status 
and costs of the project and its compliance with the approved performance measures. At a 
minimum, the fiscal audit will provide the auditor’s professional opinion as to whether RM3 
operating assistance was spent on eligible costs and performance measures status. 

42



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 31 December 18, 2019 

All fiscal and accounting records and other supporting papers shall be retained for a minimum of 
four years following the close of the fiscal year of expenditure. 

Cooperation with MTC and MTC’s Consultants 
Recipients of RM3 operating assistance funds agree to work cooperatively with MTC staff and 
MTC consultants to provide operating statistics that will be used to monitor the performance of 
the RM3 operating program and consistency with MTC adopted performance measures. This 
includes but is not limited to assisting in the collection of survey data, on-board vehicle counts, 
and making available relevant ridership and costs information. It is important to note that, in 
most cases, these performance measures will be route-specific and therefore require isolation of 
the operating cost, passenger boardings, and fare revenue for the route or line for which RM3 
operating assistance is provided. 

 

43



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  A  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 32 December 18, 2019 

Appendix A – Capital Allocation/Letter of No Prejudice Request Forms 
 

Part 1A:  RM3 Implementing Agency Resolution of Project Compliance – Allocation 
Request 

 
 

Resolution No.  
Implementing Agency:  
Project Title:  

 
 
 WHEREAS, SB 595 (Chapter 650, Statutes 2017), commonly referred as Regional 
Measure 3, identified projects eligible to receive funding under the Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is responsible for 
funding projects eligible for Regional Measure 3 funds, pursuant to Streets and Highways Code 
Section 30914.7(a) and (c); and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has established a process whereby eligible transportation project 
sponsors may submit allocation requests for Regional Measure 3 funding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, allocation requests to MTC must be submitted consistent with procedures 
and conditions as outlined in Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures (MTC Resolution No. 
4404; and 
 
 WHEREAS, (agency name) is an eligible sponsor of transportation project(s) in the 
Regional Measure 3 Expenditure Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the (project title) is eligible for consideration in the Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan, as identified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(a); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Regional Measure 3 allocation request, attached hereto in the Initial 
Project Report and incorporated herein as though set forth at length, lists the project, purpose, 
schedule, budget, expenditure and cash flow plan for which (agency name) is requesting that 
MTC allocate Regional Measure 3 funds; now, therefore, be it  
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name), and its agents shall comply with the provisions of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures); and be 
it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency) certifies that the project is consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP); and be it further  
 

44



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 33 December 18, 2019 

 RESOLVED, that the year of funding for any design, right-of-way and/or construction 
phases has taken into consideration the time necessary to obtain environmental clearance and 
permitting approval for the project; and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that the Regional Measure 3 phase or segment is fully funded, and results 
in an operable and useable segment; and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) approves the allocation request and updated Initial 
Project Report, attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) approves the cash flow plan, attached to this resolution; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) has reviewed the project needs and has adequate 
staffing resources to deliver and complete the project within the schedule set forth in the 
allocation request and updated Initial Project Report, attached to this resolution; and, be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) is an eligible sponsor of projects in the Regional 
Measure 3 Expenditure Plan, in accordance with California Streets and Highways Code 
30914.7(a); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) is authorized to submit an application for Regional 
Measure 3 funds for (project name) in accordance with California Streets and Highways Code 
30914.7(a); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) certifies that the projects and purposes for which RM3 
funds are being requested is in compliance with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 2l000 et seq.), and with the State 
Environmental Impact Report Guidelines (l4 California Code of Regulations Section l5000 et 
seq.) and if relevant the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 USC Section 4-1 et. seq. 
and the applicable regulations thereunder; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that there is no legal impediment to (agency name) making allocation 
requests for Regional Measure 3 funds; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation which might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed project, or the ability of (agency name) to deliver such project; and 
be it further 
 
  RESOLVED, that (agency name - include for transit projects/sponsors only) agrees to 
comply with the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth 
in MTC Resolution 3866; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) indemnifies and holds harmless MTC, BATA, and their 
Commissioners, representatives, agents, and employees from and against all claims, injury, suits, 
demands, liability, losses, damages, and expenses, whether direct or indirect (including any and 
all costs and expenses in connection therewith), incurred by reason of any act or failure to act of 
(agency name), its officers, employees or agents, or subcontractors or any of them in connection 

45



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 34 December 18, 2019 

with its performance of services under this allocation of RM3 funds. (Agency name) agrees at its 
own cost, expense, and risk, to defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other legal 
proceedings brought or instituted against MTC, BATA, and their Commissioners, officers, 
agents, and employees, or any of them, arising out of such act or omission, and to pay and satisfy 
any resulting judgments. In addition to any other remedy authorized by law, so much of the 
funding due under this allocation of RM3 funds as shall reasonably be considered necessary by 
MTC may be retained until disposition has been made of any claim for damages, and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) shall, if any revenues or profits from any non-
governmental use of property (or project) that those revenues or profits shall be used exclusively 
for the public transportation services for which the project was initially approved, either for 
capital improvements or maintenance and operational costs, otherwise the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission is entitled to a proportionate share equal to MTC’s percentage 
participation in the projects(s); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that assets purchased with RM3 funds including facilities and equipment 
shall be used for the public transportation uses intended, and should said facilities and equipment 
cease to be operated or maintained for their intended public transportation purposes for its useful 
life, that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) shall be entitled to a present day 
value refund or credit (at MTC’s option) based on MTC’s share of the Fair Market Value of the 
said facilities and equipment at the time the public transportation uses ceased, which shall be 
paid back to MTC in the same proportion that Regional Measure 3 funds were originally used; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) shall post on both ends of the construction site(s) at 
least two signs visible to the public stating that the Project is funded with Regional Measure 3 
Toll Revenues; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) authorizes its (Executive Director, General Manager, or 
his/her designee) to execute and submit an allocation request for the (environmental/ design/ 
right-of-way/ construction) phase with MTC for Regional Measure 3 funds in the amount of 
($________), for the project, purposes and amounts included in the project application attached 
to this resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the (Executive Director, General Manager, or his/her designee) is 
hereby delegated the authority to make non-substantive changes or minor amendments to the 
allocation request or IPR as he/she deems appropriate.  
 
 RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution shall be transmitted to MTC in conjunction 
with the filing of the (agency name) application referenced herein. 
 
 

46



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 35 December 18, 2019 

Part 1B:  RM3 Implementing Agency Resolution of Project Compliance – Letter of No 
Prejudice Request 

 
 

Resolution No.  
Implementing Agency:  
Project Title:  

 
 
 WHEREAS, SB 595 (Chapter 650, Statutes 2017), commonly referred as Regional 
Measure 3, identified projects eligible to receive funding under the Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is responsible for 
funding projects eligible for Regional Measure 3 funds, pursuant to Streets and Highways Code 
Section 30914.7(a) and (c); and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has established a process whereby eligible transportation project 
sponsors may submit allocation requests for Regional Measure 3 funding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Letter of No Prejudice (LONP) requests to MTC must be submitted 
consistent with procedures and conditions as outlined in Regional Measure 3 Policies and 
Procedures (MTC Resolution No. 4404); and 
 
 WHEREAS, (agency name) is an eligible sponsor of transportation project(s) in the 
Regional Measure 3 Expenditure Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the (project title) is eligible for consideration in the Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan, as identified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(a); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Regional Measure 3 LONP request, attached hereto in the Initial Project 
Report and LONP Request Form, and incorporated herein as though set forth at length, lists the 
project, purpose, schedule, budget, expenditure and cash flow plan for which (agency name) is 
requesting that MTC issue an LONP for Regional Measure 3 funds; now, therefore, be it  
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name), and its agents shall comply with the provisions of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures; and be 
it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency) will fund the scope of work covered under the LONP with 
(fund source(s)); and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency) proceeds with this scope of work at-risk, in the event that 
RM3 funds do not become available for allocation; and be it further 
 

47



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 36 December 18, 2019 

 RESOLVED, that (agency) will only be eligible for reimbursement for this scope of work 
from RM3 funds following an allocation by MTC, for expenses incurred following the date of 
the LONP approval; and be it further   
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency) certifies that the project is consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP); and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that the year of funding for any design, right-of-way and/or construction 
phases has taken into consideration the time necessary to obtain environmental clearance and 
permitting approval for the project; and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that the Regional Measure 3 phase or segment is fully funded, and results 
in an operable and useable segment; and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) approves the LONP request and updated Initial Project 
Report, attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) approves the cash flow plan, attached to this resolution; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) has reviewed the project needs and has adequate 
staffing resources to deliver and complete the project within the schedule set forth in the LONP 
request and updated Initial Project Report, attached to this resolution; and, be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) is an eligible sponsor of projects in the Regional 
Measure 3 Expenditure Plan, in accordance with California Streets and Highways Code 
30914.7(a); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) is authorized to submit an application for an LONP 
request for Regional Measure 3 funds for (project name) in accordance with California Streets 
and Highways Code 30914.7(a); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) certifies that the projects and purposes for which RM3 
funds are being requested is in compliance with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 2l000 et seq.), and with the State 
Environmental Impact Report Guidelines (l4 California Code of Regulations Section l5000 et 
seq.) and if relevant the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 USC Section 4-1 et. seq. 
and the applicable regulations thereunder; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that there is no legal impediment to (agency name) making LONP requests 
for Regional Measure 3 funds; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation which might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed project, or the ability of (agency name) to deliver such project; and 
be it further 
 

48



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 37 December 18, 2019 

  RESOLVED, that (agency name - include for transit projects/sponsors only) agrees to 
comply with the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth 
in MTC Resolution 3866; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) shall indemnify and hold harmless MTC, its 
Commissioners, representatives, agents, and employees from and against all claims, injury, suits, 
demands, liability, losses, damages, and expenses, whether direct or indirect (including any and 
all costs and expenses in connection therewith), incurred by reason of any act or failure to act of 
(agency name), its officers, employees or agents, or subcontractors or any of them in connection 
with its performance of services under this allocation of RM3 funds. (Agency name) agrees at its 
own cost, expense, and risk, to defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other legal 
proceedings brought or instituted against MTC, BATA, and their Commissioners, officers, 
agents, and employees, or any of them, arising out of such act or omission, and to pay and satisfy 
any resulting judgments. In addition to any other remedy authorized by law, so much of the 
funding due under any future allocation of RM3 funds to this scope as shall reasonably be 
considered necessary by MTC may be retained until disposition has been made of any claim for 
damages, and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) shall, if any revenues or profits from any non-
governmental use of property (or project) that those revenues or profits shall be used exclusively 
for the public transportation services for which the project was initially approved, either for 
capital improvements or maintenance and operational costs, otherwise the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission is entitled to a proportionate share equal to MTC’s percentage 
participation in the projects(s); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that assets purchased with RM3 funds including facilities and equipment 
shall be used for the public transportation uses intended, and should said facilities and equipment 
cease to be operated or maintained for their intended public transportation purposes for its useful 
life, that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) shall be entitled to a present day 
value refund or credit (at MTC’s option) based on MTC’s share of the Fair Market Value of the 
said facilities and equipment at the time the public transportation uses ceased, which shall be 
paid back to MTC in the same proportion that Regional Measure 3 funds were originally used; 
and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that following an allocation of RM3 funds for this scope of work (agency 
name) shall post on both ends of the construction site(s) at least two signs visible to the public 
stating that the Project is funded with Regional Measure 3 Toll Revenues; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) authorizes its (Executive Director, General Manager, or 
his/her designee) to execute and submit an LONP request for the (environmental/ design/ right-
of-way/ construction) phase with MTC for Regional Measure 3 funds in the amount of 
($________), for the project, purposes and amounts included in the project application attached 
to this resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that the (Executive Director, General Manager, or his/her designee) is 
hereby delegated the authority to make non-substantive changes or minor amendments to the 
LONP request or IPR as he/she deems appropriate.  
 

49



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 38 December 18, 2019 

 RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution shall be transmitted to MTC in conjunction 
with the filing of the (agency name) application referenced herein. 
  

50



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  A  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 39 December XX, 2019 

Part 2:  RM3 Sample Opinion of Legal Counsel 
 
 
Project sponsors have the option of including the terms and conditions specified below within the 
Resolution of Local Support as included in Part 1. If a project sponsor elects not to include the 
specified language within the Resolution of Local Support, then the sponsor shall provide MTC 
with a current Opinion of Counsel stating that the agency is an eligible sponsor of projects for 
the Regional Measure 3; that the agency is authorized to perform the project for which funds or 
Letter of No Prejudice are requested; that there is no legal impediment to the agency applying for 
the funds or Letter of No Prejudice; and that there is no pending or anticipated litigation which 
might adversely affect the project or the ability of the agency to carry out the project. A sample 
format is provided below. 
 
(Date) 
 
To: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Fr: (Applicant) 
Re: Eligibility for Regional Measure 3 funds 
 
This communication will serve as the requisite opinion of counsel in connection with the 
allocation of (Applicant)      for funding from Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan made available pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(a)(c) 
for (Project Name)      

 
1.  (Applicant)     is an eligible sponsor for the Regional Measure 3 

funding. 
2.  (Applicant)      is authorized to submit [an/a] [allocation/Letter of 

no Prejudice] request for Regional Measure 3 funding for (project)             
                            

3.  I have reviewed the pertinent state laws and I am of the opinion that there is no legal 
impediment to (Applicant)      making applications for Regional 
Measure 3 funds. Furthermore, as a result of my examinations, I find that there is no 
pending or threatened litigation that might in any way adversely affect the proposed 
projects, or the ability of (Applicant)      to carry out such projects. 

 
  Sincerely, 
   

 
 

  Legal Counsel 
 
   

 
  Print name 

 
 

51



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  A  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 40 December 18, 2019 

Part 3:  RM3 Initial Project Report (IPR) Format 
 
 

Section 30914.7(d) of the California Streets and Highways Code required that project sponsors 
with projects listed in the capital program of the Regional Traffic Relief Plan (Section 
30914.7(a)) submit an Initial Project Report (IPR) to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) by December 5, 2018. Furthermore, MTC requires the project sponsor to 
submit an updated report along with any funding allocation or Letter of No Prejudice request. 
The governing board of the agency submitting the allocation or Letter of No Prejudice request 
must approve the updated IPR before MTC can approve the IPR, Letter of No Prejudice, or 
allocation of funds. MTC will approve the report, or updated report, in conjunction with the 
funding allocation or Letter of No Prejudice. 
 
This report shall include all information required to describe the project in detail, including the 
status of any environmental documents relevant to the project, additional funds required to fully 
fund the project, the amount, if any, of funds expended to date, and a summary of any 
impediments to the completion of the project. This report, or an updated report, shall include a 
detailed financial plan and shall notify the commission if the project sponsor will request toll 
revenue within the subsequent 12 months. The Initial Project Report is outlined below, with the 
electronic template available at http://www.mtc.ca.gov.  

• Project Description and Sponsor Information, including identification of lead sponsor 
in coordination with all identified sponsors, and identification of agency to seek and 
receive allocations from MTC, 

• Project Delivery Information, including summary of any impediments to the 
completion of the project, status of any environmental documents relevant to the project, 
status of the project phases and delivery milestones, and discussion of the operability of 
the project once competed. 

• Project Budget Information, including the total budget for the project, and any prior 
expenditure. 

• RM3 Funding Need Information, including RM3 expenditure (cash flow) plan, status 
of any prior RM3 expenditures, and identification of any RM3 funding needs for the next 
fiscal year, and beyond. 

• Project Funding Information, including identification of committed funding to the 
project, any uncommitted funding required to fully fund the project, and segregation of 
the RM3 deliverable segment if different from the total project. Any timely use of funds 
requirements must be noted and incorporated into the overall funding schedule of the 
financial plan. The RM3 phase or component must be fully funded with committed funds, 
and it must be demonstrated that the RM3 funded phase or component results in a useable 
or operable segment. For transit projects resulting in expanded or enhanced services, the 
sponsor shall document the financial capacity to operate and maintain those services for a 
period of at least 10 years following the year services are initiated. 

• Allocation Budget Plan.  The sponsor must complete an Estimated Budget Plan (EBP) 
outlining the agency costs, consultant costs, and any other costs associated with the 
delivery of the Work Plan element for the allocation request The EBP should represent 

52

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 41 December 18 2019 

both the RM3 funds as well as the complementary funds (for projects with 
complementary fund sources) for the entire work scope.  

• Governing Board Action, including verification of approval of the IPR. The IPR must 
be approved by the board or governing body of the agency responsible for preparing and 
submitting the IPR and requested the allocation of RM3 funding prior to MTC approval 
of the IPR and allocation of funds. Verification of the governing board action should be 
attached to the IPR. 

• Agency Contact and IPR Preparation Information, including agency and project 
manager, and IPR preparer contact information, and date the report was prepared or 
updated. 

 

53



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  A  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 42 December 18, 2019 

Part 4: Environmental Documentation 

Pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act Public Resources Code §21000, et seq., all 
applicants are required to submit a valid environmental document that has been certified by the 
County Clerk for each project. Please refer to Public Resources Code and Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations for more information.  Applicants are urged to refer to the 
statutory and regulatory sections cited when preparing any environmental assessment under 
CEQA or NEPA. Applicants should consult their environmental officer for guidance in 
completion of this requirement. If a project is federally funded or is anticipated to be federally 
funded, project sponsors must submit approved National Environmental Protection Act 
documents.   
 

Part 5:  RM3 Evidence of Allocation and Commitment of Complementary Funds 
Applicants are required to submit evidence of the commitment of complementary funds for the 
phase for which the applicant is seeking an allocation of RM3 funds. Copies of the applicable 
resolution(s) and/or governing body actions allocating the funds to the phase, within the years 
displayed in the cash flow plan, must be attached to the allocation request. The applicant must 
demonstrate that the phase is entirely funded prior to the allocation of RM3 funds.  
 

Part 6:  RM3 Allocation Request Form 
The implementing agency must submit a completed Allocation Request Form covering the 
deliverables for which a RM3 funding allocation is being sought.  The Request Form should be 
consistent with the parameters included in the Board approved Initial Project Report, and must 
have sufficient detail regarding each deliverable’s scope, cost and schedule. An Allocation 
Request Form template is available from MTC by contacting staff or on the website at 
http://www.mtc.ca.gov. The elements of the Request Form will serve as the basis of MTC staff 
review of project sponsor invoices. MTC staff will work with sponsors to ascertain the work 
breakdown level appropriate to the funding request being made. The Request Form must be 
submitted with the allocation application request. 
 
 

54

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B    
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 43 December 18, 2019 

Appendix B – OPERATING PROGRAM FORMS 
 
 

PART 1 – RM3 OPERATING AGREEMENTS 
 
The information outlined below should be included as an attachment to the Operating Agreement at the 
time of the execution of the Program Supplement. Applicants should contact MTC for the most recent 
Operating Agreement forms. 

1. Description of Proposed Service 
a. Map of service area  
b. Description of markets being served (both travel demand as well as inter-operator 

connections) 
c. Description of methodology used to estimate ridership/assign ridership 

2. Service Description (Regional Express Bus Only) 
a. Service start/end times 
b. Headways in the peak and off-peak 
c. Vehicles in service during the peak and off-peak 
d. Daily revenue vehicle hours 

3. Budget Information 
a. Basis of expense projections (i.e., description of cost model) 
b. Basis of fare revenue projections (assumptions on fare structure, including any increases 

over the five years, and resulting average fare) 
c. Description of other operating funding sources – if subsidies from other agencies are 

included, describe status of commitments 
d. Five-year projections and audited past actual and adjusted current year information for 

operating cost and revenue. Revenue projections should disaggregate fare revenue, 
TDA, local sales tax, private sector contributions, and other subsidies 

4. Operating Data and Performance Measures 
a. Projections for future fiscal years and audited past actual and adjusted current year 

information for service parameters including annual ridership, weekday ridership, 
revenue vehicle hours, and revenue miles 

b. Projections for future fiscal years and audited past actual and adjusted current year 
information for performance measures, as applicable and specified in Appendix B Part 
2 

5. Implementation Schedule and Status Report 
a. Proposed start date, if applicable 
b. Environmental clearance – status and schedule (if applicable) 
c. If partnering with other agencies, provide letters of support from partners 
d. Description of potential implementation issues 
e. Once operational, please provide a status report on the implementation to-date as well 

as any planned schedule adjustments or other service changes in the coming year. 
  

55



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 44 December 18 2019 

 
PART 2 – RM3 PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR OPERATING PROJECTS 
 
Note that the RM3 performance measures detailed in this section are interim measures that may evolve 
in a future fiscal year to include additional focus areas and specific numeric targets, where appropriate. 
Project sponsors should proceed with monitoring performance for these performance measures until 
this Policies and Procedures manual is revised.  

The objective in establishing performance measures is to ensure that RM3 operating dollars are 
directed toward services that are financially well-managed, aligned with regional policies, and 
effective at meeting customer needs. Given that the three components of the RM3 operating program 
have varying market demands and policy goals, different performance measures apply. 

Recipients shall report progress toward performance measures through their annual Operating 
Agreements. In the interim, performance shall be measured in terms of year-to-year improvement. In 
the future, the RM3 Policies and Procedures manual may be revised to adopt numeric performance 
targets against which performance would be measured. In the case of Regional Express Bus, 
performance shall be measured for RM3-funded routes and not systemwide. 

Recipients shall have five years following the establishment of performance measures to meet the 
standards set for RM3 operating projects. If sponsors have not met the adopted performance measure 
targets by the close of this period, MTC and project sponsors will take steps as outlined in the RM3 
Policies and Procedures. Potential responses include extending the time frame allotted to meet 
performance measures, revising performance measures, or adjusting future RM3 funding amounts. 
Meeting performance targets, in the case of Regional Express Bus, is not guarantee of continued 
funding in future years. MTC may revise this Policies and Procedures document to identify a new 
methodology to determine the programming of Regional Express Bus funds, irrespective of the 
performance, of any route. 

For the purposes of RM3 operating program performance measures, the following definitions of terms 
shall apply: 

1. Ridership: ridership shall be measured as change in boardings (total of all adult, youth and 
student, senior and disabled, inter-operator paid transfer, and non-revenue boardings) on an 
RM3-funded service divided by the revenue vehicle hours (the total number of hours that each 
transit vehicle is in revenue service, including layover time) for the same RM3-funded service. 

2. Farebox recovery: farebox recovery shall be defined as the ratio of fares collected on the RM3-
funded segment to the total operating costs for that same segment. Operating costs are defined 
as the fully allocated cost for providing service to the RM3-funded segment (consistent with 
data provided as part of the annual Operating Agreement). Operators may adjust fare revenues 
for discounted products (e.g., youth fares, senior fares, multi-ride passes, etc.) to the Clipper 
standard one-ride fare for the purposes of this calculation. 

3. Operating cost: operating cost shall be quantified as the fully loaded operating cost, unless an 
alternative methodology is approved by MTC staff. Fully loaded operating cost is defined as 
the hourly operating rate that includes both direct and indirect costs. The total service cost shall 
include both revenue and non-revenue hours for the segment or route/s receiving funds. 

  

56



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 45 December 18 2019 

Express Bus Performance Measures 

Performance Measure Performance Target 
1. Farebox recovery ratio Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
2. Passengers per total hour Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
3. Percent of trips departing on-time Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
4. Percent of missed trips Less than or equal to 

prior year (yes/no) 
 

Expanded Ferry Service Performance Measures 

Performance Measure Performance Target 
1. Farebox recovery ratio Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
2. Passengers per total hour Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
3. Percent of trips departing on-time Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
4. Percent of missed trips Less than or equal to 

prior year (yes/no) 
  

57



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 46 December 18 2019 

Transbay Terminal Performance Measures 

Performance Measure Performance Target 
1. Estimated annual boardings Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
2. Percent of trips departing Salesforce Transit Center on-time Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
3. Annual change in lease revenue Greater than or equal 

to prior year (yes/no) 
4. Provide MTC with the latest version of the following 

maintenance planning documents, including any review 
drafts, as an attachment to the operating agreement: 

a. Asset Management Plan 
b. Building Maintenance Plan 
c. Risk Management Plan 

Documents provided 
by deadline (yes/no) 

5. Provide MTC with the following customer experience 
documents, including any review drafts, as an attachment to 
the operating agreement. This memo should include topics 
such as: 

a. Memo describing coordination with transit operators 
b. Memo describing enhancements to cleanliness, safety, 

elevator/escalator asset condition, wayfinding, park 
facilities, and commercial facilities 

c. Customer experience survey results 

Documents provided 
by deadline (yes/no) 

6. Provide MTC with the latest version of the following 
financial planning documents, including any review drafts, as 
an attachment to the operating agreement: 

a. 5-year Operations Funding Plan identifying the 
envisioned revenue sources and amounts to meet 
projected operating needs 

b. Budget, including a comparison of budgeted and 
actual expenditures and a comparison of revenues and 
expenditures between the current and past year 

c. Reserve Summary comparing target reserve amounts 
to actual reserve amounts 

Documents provided 
by deadline (yes/no) 

7. Annual meeting of TJPA partners and MTC to be held within 
three months of delivering the information listed above to 
discuss performance and pertinent issues related to the 
capital, operating, and financial performance of the Salesforce 
Transit Center. 

Meeting held by 
deadline (yes/no) 

8. Percent of near-term recommendations for the Salesforce 
Transit Center Wayfinding Improvement Plan (a joint TJPA-
MTC study concluding in 2020) implemented within 5 years 
of report completion 

Greater than or equal 
to prior year (yes/no) 

 
  

58

https://tjpa.org/uploads/2020/09/Item12_Wayfinding-Update.pdf
https://tjpa.org/uploads/2020/09/Item12_Wayfinding-Update.pdf


Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 47 December 18 2019 

 
PART 3 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 
 

(Sample form is available on the MTC website) 
 
 
Applicant certifies that, if RM3 funding was received in the prior year, it has included the RM3 costs 
and revenues in its general fiscal audit for that year.  Applicant also assures that it will include the 
RM3 costs and revenues in its general fiscal audit for the year in which funds are requested. 
 
Applicant certifies to one of the following: 
 

1) For bus operators, that it has submitted a copy of the California Highway Patrol (CHP) 
certification, which was issued within the last 13 months indicating compliance with 
California Vehicle Code §1808.1 and Public Utility Code §99251 (CHP "pull notice system 
and periodic reports"). 

2) For rail or ferry operators, it certifies that it is current on all inspections and certifications 
required by federal and state agencies. 

 
Applicant for RM3 funds certifies that it has current SB 602 "joint fare revenue sharing agreements" in 
place with transit operators in the MTC region with which its service connects, and that it has 
submitted valid and current copies of all such agreements to MTC.  
 
Applicant also agrees to participate in the Integrated Fare Structure and Transit Connectivity studies 
authorized in SB 916 (Chapter 715, Statutes of 2004). 
 
Applicant for funds certifies that it complies with MTC's Transit Coordination Implementation Plan 
(MTC Resolution No. 3866, revised) and with Public Utilities Code §99314.5(c) and §99314.7). 
 
The applicant may be asked to certify such other assurances as MTC may deem appropriate consistent 
with the RM3 Policies and Procedures outlined above. 

 
 
  

59



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 48 December 18 2019 

PART 4 – SAMPLE RM3 OPERATING BOARD RESOLUTION 
 

Resolution No. 
Implementing Agency:  
Project Title:  
 
 
 WHEREAS, SB 595 (Chapter 650, Statutes 2017), commonly referred as Regional Measure 3, 
identified projects eligible to receive funding under the Regional Measure 3 Expenditure Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is responsible for funding 
projects eligible for Regional Measure 3 funds, pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 
30914.7(a) and (c); and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has established a process whereby eligible transportation project sponsors 
may submit allocation requests for Regional Measure 3 funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, allocation requests to MTC must be submitted consistent with procedures and conditions 
as outlined in Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures (MTC Resolution No. 4404; and 
 
 WHEREAS, (agency name) is an eligible sponsor of transportation project(s) in the Regional 
Measure 3 Expenditure Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the (project title) is eligible for consideration in the Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan, as identified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(a); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Regional Measure 3 allocation request, attached hereto in the Operating 
Agreement and incorporated herein as though set forth at length, enumerates the project details for 
which (agency name) is requesting that MTC allocate Regional Measure 3 funds; now, therefore, be it  
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name), and its agents shall comply with the provisions of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures); and be it 
further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency) certifies that the project is consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP); and be it further  
  
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) approves the updated Operating Agreement, attached to this 
resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) approves the certification of assurances, attached to this 
resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) is an eligible sponsor of projects in the Regional Measure 3 
Expenditure Plan, in accordance with California Streets and Highways Code 30914.7(c); and be it 
further 
 

60



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 49 December 18 2019 

 RESOLVED, that (agency name) is authorized to submit an application for Regional Measure 3 
funds for (project name) in accordance with California Streets and Highways Code 30914.7(c); and be 
it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) certifies that the projects and purposes for which RM3 funds 
are being requested are in compliance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (Public Resources Code Section 2l000 et seq.), and with the State Environmental Impact Report 
Guidelines (l4 California Code of Regulations Section l5000 et seq.) and, if relevant the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 USC Section 4-1 et. seq. and the applicable regulations 
thereunder; and be it further 
 

RESOLVED, that there is no legal impediment to (agency name) making allocation requests 
for Regional Measure 3 funds; and be it further 

 
 RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation which might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed project, or the ability of (agency name) to deliver such project; and be it 
further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name - include for transit projects/sponsors only) agrees to comply 
with the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth in MTC 
Resolution 3866; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) indemnifies and holds harmless MTC, BATA, and their 
Commissioners, representatives, agents, and employees from and against all claims, injury, suits, 
demands, liability, losses, damages, and expenses, whether direct or indirect (including any and all 
costs and expenses in connection therewith), incurred by reason of any act or failure to act of (agency 
name), its officers, employees or agents, or subcontractors or any of them in connection with its 
performance of services under this allocation of RM3 funds. (Agency name) agrees at its own cost, 
expense, and risk, to defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other legal proceedings brought or 
instituted against MTC, BATA, and their Commissioners, officers, agents, and employees, or any of 
them, arising out of such act or omission, and to pay and satisfy any resulting judgments. In addition to 
any other remedy authorized by law, so much of the funding due under this allocation of RM3 funds as 
shall reasonably be considered necessary by MTC may be retained until disposition has been made of 
any claim for damages, and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) shall, if any revenues or profits from any non-governmental 
use of property (or project) that those revenues or profits shall be used exclusively for the public 
transportation services for which the project was initially approved, either for capital improvements or 
maintenance and operational costs, otherwise the Metropolitan Transportation Commission is entitled 
to a proportionate share equal to MTC’s percentage participation in the projects(s); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that (agency name) authorizes its (Executive Director, General Manager, or 
his/her designee) to execute and submit an allocation request for operating or planning costs for (Fiscal 
Year) with MTC for Regional Measure 3 funds in the amount of ($________), for the project, purposes 
and amounts included in the project application attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 

61



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 50 December 18 2019 

 RESOLVED, that the (Executive Director, General Manager, or his/her designee) is hereby 
delegated the authority to make non-substantive changes or minor amendments to the Operating 
Agreement as he/she deems appropriate.  
 
 RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution shall be transmitted to MTC in conjunction with the 
filing of the (agency name) application referenced herein. 
  

62



Regional Measure 3 Policies and Procedures MTC Resolution No. 4404 
A p p e n d i x  B  
 

 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Page 51 December 18 2019 

PART 5 – SAMPLE OPINION OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
 

Project sponsors have the option of including specified terms and conditions within the Resolution of 
Local Support as included in Part 4. If a project sponsor elects not to include the specified language 
within the Resolution of Local Support, then the sponsor shall provide MTC with a current Opinion of 
Counsel stating that the agency is an eligible sponsor of projects for the Regional Measure 3; that the 
agency is authorized to perform the project for which funds are requested; that there is no legal 
impediment to the agency applying for the funds; and that there is no pending or anticipated litigation 
which might adversely affect the project or the ability of the agency to carry out the project. A sample 
format is provided below. 
 
(Date) 
 
To: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Fr: (Applicant) 
Re: Eligibility for Regional Measure 3 funds 
 
This communication will serve as the requisite opinion of counsel in connection with the allocation of 
(Applicant)      for funding from Regional Measure 3 Expenditure Plan made 
available pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(a)(c) for (Project Name)  
   . 

 
1.  (Applicant)     is an eligible sponsor for the Regional Measure 3 

funding. 
2.  (Applicant)      is authorized to submit an allocation request for Regional 

Measure 3 funding for (project)                                        . 
3.  I have reviewed the pertinent state laws and I am of the opinion that there is no legal 

impediment to (Applicant)      making applications for Regional 
Measure 3 funds. Furthermore, as a result of my examinations, I find that there is no pending or 
threatened litigation that might in any way adversely affect the proposed projects, or the ability 
of (Applicant)      to carry out such projects. 

 
 
  Sincerely, 
   

 
 

  Legal Counsel 
 
   

 
  Print name 

 
 

 

63



Regional Measure 3 Annual Report to the 
Legislature

Attachment C
Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan Tracking Sheet

64



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

1 BART Expansion Cars   $                500  BART  $             500.0 4636 4/24/2024
2 Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes    $                317  MTC  

2.1 I-80 Express Lanes in Solano County  STA  $              70.4  $              70.4 4591 6/26/2023
2.2 I-80 Express Lanes in Solano County (Toll 

System)
 BAIFA  $              31.3  $              31.3 4592 3/27/2024

2.3 I-680 Southbound Express Lanes in Alameda 
County

 $                 80  ACTC  $              80.0  $              80.0 4597 7/26/2023

2.4 US 101 Express Lanes: I-380 to Santa Clara 
County Line

 $                 75  SMCTA 

2.X Reserve  $                 60  MTC 
3 Goods Movement and Mitigation  $                160  MTC/ACTC 

3.1 GoPort 7th St Grade Separation East  $                 55  ACTC  $              55.0  $              55.0 4598 7/26/2023
3.2 Railroad Safety Enhancement Program  $                 25  ACTC 
3.3 Neighborhood and Railroad Safety 

Improvements Near the Port of Oakland
 $                 55  City of Oakland 

3.X Remaining GoPort projects  $                 25 
4 San Francisco Bay Trail / Safe Routes to Transit   $                150  MTC 

5 Ferry Enhancement Program  $                300  WETA 
5.1 Mission Bay Ferry Landing  $                 25  WETA  $              25.0  $                0.7 4614 11/22/2023
5.2 Shoreline Electrical Program  WETA  $                0.8 4614 3/27/2024
5.3 Berkeley Marina Ferry Facility  WETA  $                3.0 4614 7/24/2024
5.4 Three 149-Passenger Electric Ferry Vessels  WETA  $              18.0 4614 9/25/2024

6 BART to San Jose Phase 2  $                375  VTA 
7 Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit (SMART)  $                  40  SMART  $                 5.0 
8 Capitol Corridor 90$                   CCJPA
9 Caltrain Downtown Extension 325$                TJPA 100.7$             4612 11/22/2023

10 Muni Fleet Expansion & Facilities 140$                SFMTA
10.1 Potrero Modernization Project SFMTA 3.5$                 4615 12/20/2023
10.2 Light Rail Vehicle (LRV) Procurement SFMTA 6.5$                 4615 1/24/2024
10.3 40’/60’ hybrid buses SFMTA 27.0$               4615 1/24/2024
10.4 Kirkland Electrification SFMTA 6.5$                 4615 7/24/2024
10.5 Battery Electric Bus procurement SFMTA 2.38$               4615 2/28/2024

 $               102 

Page 1 of 4

65



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

10.6 Presidio Yard Modernization SFMTA 12.95$            4615 3/27/2024
10.7 Vintage Streetcar Rehabilitation SFMTA 6.72$               4615 6/26/2024
10.8 New Flyer Midlife Overhaul SFMTA 11.34$            4615 6/26/2024

11 Core Capacity Transit Improvements 140$                MTC/ACTC/AC Transit
12 AC Transit Rapid Bus Corridor Improvements  $                100  AC Transit/ACTC 
12.1 Telegraph Rapid  AC Transit  $                2.7 4613 11/22/2023
12.2 Quick Build Transit Priority Projects  AC Transit   $                1.5 4613 12/20/2023

13 Transbay Rail Crossing  $                  50  BART 
14 Tri-Valley Transit Access Improvements  $                100  MTC /tbd 
15 Eastridge to BART Regional Connector  $                130  VTA  $             130.0 4596 7/26/2023
16 San Jose Diridon Station  $                100  VTA  $               30.0  $               30.1 4608 7/24/2024
17 Dumbarton Corridor Improvements  $                130  BATA/ACTC/ 

SMCTD/SMCTA 
17.1 San Mateo Dumbarton Busway  $                    5  SamTrans  $                4.1 4660 7/24/2024

18 Highway 101/ State Route 92 Interchange  $                  50  C/CAG/ SMCTA 
18.1 101/92 Area Improvements Project  SMCTA  $            0.025  $              22.0 4635 6/26/2024
18.2 101/92 Direct Connector Project  SMCTA  $                2.0  $                2.0 4599 7/26/2023

19 Contra Costa I-680/SR-4 Interchange 
Improvements

 $                210  CCTA 

19.1 I-680/SR-4 Interchange Improvement Phase 1 
and 2A

 $               210  CCTA  $                8.0  $              17.0 4586 9/25/2024

19.2 I-680/SR-4 Interchange Improvement - Trail 
Connection Feasibility Study

 $                    1  CCTA  $                0.5 4586 3/27/2024

20 Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows  $                120  TAM/SCTA 

20.1 Marin Segment  $                 88  TAM  $              88.0  $              88.0 4593 6/26/2023
20.2 Marin Sonoma Narrows - Sonoma Segment  $                 30  SCTA  $                   -    $                3.0 4640 7/24/2024

21 Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange 
Project

 $                133  STA  $               18.6 

21.1 Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange 
Project (Package 2)

 STA  $                3.7 4594 12/20/2023

21.2 Solano County  I-80/I-680/SR-12 Interchange 
Project (Package 5)

 STA  $              10.0 4594 12/20/2023

22 Interstate 80 Westbound Truck Scales  $                105  STA  $                 5.3  $               95.2 4595 9/25/2024

Page 2 of 4

66



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

23 State Route 37 Improvements  $                100 TAM/NVTA/STA/SCTA
23.1 SR 37 and Fairgrounds Drive Interchange  $                 15  STA  $              15.0 4602 7/26/2023
23.2 Interim Segment B - PAED & PS&E  $                 20  SCTA/MTC  $                   -    $              10.1 4607 7/24/2024
23.3 Hwy 37/121 Improvements - PAED  $                    4  SCTA 
23.4 Segments A1 & A2 Levee Study 3 TAM
23.5 Segment A & B Improvements  $                 58  SCTA/TAM 

24 San Rafael Transit Center  $                  30  GGBHTD 
25 Richmond-San Rafael Bridge Access 

Improvements 
 $                210  BATA/CCTA/TAM 

25.1 US-101/I-580 Direct Connector  $               135  TAM  $                5.6  $                7.8 4606 10/25/2023
25.2 I-580 Richmond Parkway Interchange 

Operational Improvements
 $                    7  BATA/CCTA  $              0.95 4631 2/28/2024

25.3 Cutting Boulevard Transit Improvements  $                    3  BATA  $              0.45 4632 2/28/2024
26 North Bay Transit Improvements   $                100  MTC 
26.1 Vine Transit Maintenance Facility  $                 20  NVTA  $              20.0  $              20.0 4584 6/26/2023
26.2 Solano Rail Hub  $                    2  STA  $                2.0 4584 7/26/2023
26.3 County Connection Bus Replacements  $                    5  CCCTA  $                5.0 4584 9/27/2023
26.4 ECCTA Hydrogen Fuel  $                3.5 ECCTA 0.30$               4584 5/22/2024
26.5 Windsor Extension - Windsor High School 

Undercrossing 
 $                2.8 

SMART
 $                2.8 4584 5/22/2024

26.6 Bus Replacement  $              3.17 ECCTA
26.X Solano Projects TBD  $                 18  STA 
26.X Contra Costa Projects TBD  $                    8  CCTA 
26.X Sonoma Projects TBD  $                 17  SCTA 
26.X Marin Projects TBD  $                 20  TAM 

27 State Route 29  $                  20  NVTA  $               20.0  $               20.0 4583 6/26/2023

28 Next-Generation Clipper Transit Fare Payment 
System

 $                  50  MTC  $               30.0  $               50.0 4609 11/22/2023

29 I-680/I-880/Route 262 Freeway Connector  $                  15  ACTC  $               10.0  $               10.0 4601 7/26/2023

30 I-680/SR 84 Interchange Reconstruction 
Project

 $                  85  ACTC  $               85.0  $               85.0 4600 7/26/2023

31 I-80 Transit Improvements  $                  25  CCTA 

Page 3 of 4

67



RM3 Capital Program Update
Attachment A

September 25, 2024

Regional Measure 3 Capital Expenditure Plan (Projects with Current-Month Proposed Allocations in Bold)
Project 
No.

Project Title1,2 Funding 
Amount ($M)

Project Sponsor/ 
Implementing Agency1,2

LONP Issued3 

($M)
Allocated 
Amount4 ($M)

Allocating 
Resolution

Most Recent 
Allocation Date4

32 Byron Highway Vasco Road Airport Connector  $                  10  CCTA 

33 Vasco Road Safety Improvements  $                  15  CCTA 
34 East Contra Costa County Transit Intermodal 

Center
 $                  15  CCTA 

34.1 Mokelumne Trail Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Overcrossing of SR-4

 $                 13  CCTA  $              13.0  $              14.0 4585 1/24/2024

35 I-680 Transit Improvements  $                  10  CCTA 

35.1 Martinez Amtrak Station Shared Mobility Hub  $              0.48 4641 5/22/2024
Total  $             4,450  $             602.1  $         1,590.5 

Notes
1

2

3 LONPs have been issued under MTC Res. No. 4412
4 Inclusive of current month requests, which are indicated in bold font.

For full legislated project description and project sponsor language, please refer to California Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7, 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=SHC&sectionNum=30914.7.

Sub-projects are indicated with shading. Sub-project designation has been made under MTC Res. No. 4411 for MTC/BATA/BAIFA sponsored programmatic 
categories, and/or under MTC Res. No. 4412 for LONPs, and/or in allocating resolutions. Project 23 subprojects are as agreed upon by SR 37 Policy Committee, 
which includes representatives from the four project sponsor county transportation authorities.

Page 4 of 4

68



Regional Measure 3 Annual Report to the 
Legislature

Attachment D
MTC Resolution 4625
Adoption of FY2023-24 RM3 Operating Program

69



 Date: January 24, 2024 
 W.I.: 1255 
 Referred by: PAC 
 
 

ABSTRACT 
MTC Resolution No. 4621 

 
This resolution approves amendments to the Regional Measure 3 program for project scope 
changes, funding amounts, or addition and deletion of projects as permitted by Streets and 
Highways Code Section 30914.7(e) et seq. 
 
This resolution includes Attachment A describing the amendments and Attachment B describing 
the updated Regional Measure 3 Project List.  
 
This resolution updates Attachments A and B to include the draft changes proposed as a part of 
the public hearing on December 13, 2023 to add $16.7 million in RM3 funds to RM3 project #2 
(Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes) from RM3 project #21 (Solano County I-80/I-680/SR-12 
Interchange Project); to clarify inclusion of the multi-use pathway along the SMART right-of-
way within the project scope for RM3 project #7 (Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit); to reduce 
the RM3 amount by $16.7 million from RM3 project #21 (Solano County I-80/I-680/SR-12 
Interchange Project) to be transferred to RM3 project #2 (Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes); to 
extend the project limits approximately 4.5 miles from Petaluma Blvd. South to Petaluma Blvd. 
North in Petaluma and approximately 3 miles from Atherton Ave. to State Route 37 in Novato 
for RM3 project #20 (Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows); and to add MTC as a joint project 
sponsor to RM3 Project #23 (State Route 37 Improvements). 
 
Additional discussion of this revision is contained in the summary sheet to the MTC 
Programming and Allocations Committee dated January 10, 2024. 

70



 Date: January 24, 2024 
 W.I.: 1255 
 Referred by: PAC 
 
 
Re: Approval of Amendments to the Regional Measure 3 Program  
 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION No. 4621 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 66500 et seq., the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (“MTC”) is the regional transportation planning agency for the San 
Francisco Bay Area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Streets and Highways Code Sections 30950 et seq. created the Bay Area 
Toll Authority (“BATA”) which is a public instrumentality governed by the same board as that 
governing MTC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 5, 2018, a special election was held in the City and County of San 
Francisco, and the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, and Sonoma (individually, each a “County” and, collectively, the “Counties”) to approve 
a toll increase of three dollars ($3.00) phased in over time, including a one dollar ($1.00) toll 
increase on January 1, 2019, a one dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January 1, 2022, and a one 
dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January 1, 2025, for vehicles traveling on the state-owned bridges 
located in the San Francisco Bay Area (“Regional Measure 3”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018, BATA adopted Resolution No. 126 accepting 
certified statements from the Registrar of Voters of the City and County of San Francisco and 
each of the Counties and observing that a majority of all voters voting on Regional Measure 3 
(“RM3”) at such special election voted affirmatively for RM3; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RM3 establishes the RM3 Expenditure Plan and identifies specific capital 
projects and programs and operating programs eligible to receive RM3 funding as identified in 
Sections 30914.7(a) and (c) of the California Streets and Highways Code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, BATA shall fund the projects of the RM3 Expenditure Plan by bonding or 
transfers to MTC; and 
 

71



 WHEREAS, Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(e) authorizes MTC to modify 
any RM3 program and the scope of any RM3 project, decrease its level of funding, or reassign 
some or all of the funds to another program or project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has been requested to make the changes in the RM3 program and 
projects specified in Attachment A to this resolution pursuant to Streets and Highways Code 
Section 30914.7(e) for the reasons set forth in Attachment A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has consulted with the sponsor or sponsors of each of the programs 
and projects listed in Attachment A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has held a public hearing concerning each such program or project on 
the dates specified in Attachment A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the sponsors of each of the projects and programs listed in Attachment A 
have agreed to comply with the RM3 Policies and Procedures adopted by MTC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each sponsor of a project listed in Attachment A has provided an initial 
project report to MTC pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 30914.7(d) or agreed to 
provide such a report to MTC within the time period specified by MTC in recognition of the 
statutory requirement that no funds may be allocated by MTC for any such project until the 
project sponsor submits the initial project report and the report is reviewed and approved by 
MTC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the above-described consultations with sponsors, the information 
provided at public hearings, and MTC staff advice, MTC has concluded that the changes in the 
RM3 program and projects specified in Attachment A to this resolution are consistent with the 
intent of Chapter 4 of Division 17 of the Streets and Highways Code to reduce congestion or 
make improvements to travel in the toll bridge corridors; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Attachment B to this resolution, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
though set forth at length, is the updated project list for the RM3 Program; 

72



 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS  
 
 RESOLVED, that MTC hereby makes the changes in the RM3 program and projects 
specified in Attachment A and Attachment B to this resolution pursuant to Streets and Highways 
Code Section 30914.7(e) in the amounts, for the reasons, and subject to the conditions set forth 
in Attachment A, which is hereby incorporated into this resolution. 
 
 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
  

   
       Alfredo Pedroza, Chair 
 
 
The above resolution was entered into by the  
Metropolitan Transportation Commission at a 
duly called and noticed meeting held in 
San Francisco, California and at other remote 
locations, on January 24, 2024.  
 
 

73



Summary of Project/Program Changes 
 

Project or Program Sponsor(s) Change (hearing date) Reason  Conditions 
  Bay Area Corridor 

Express Lanes 
(Streets and Highways 

Code Section 
30914.7(a)(2))  

BAIFA and 
any 

countywide or 
multicounty 
agency in the 

Bay Area 
authorized to 
implement 

express lanes. 

Add $16.7 million in funding 
(hearing date December 13, 

2023) 

Receive $16.7 million transfer 
from project #21 for use in the 

I-80 Express Lanes (Toll 
System) in Solano County, 

sponsored by BAIFA. 

None 

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit 

(Streets and Highways 
Code Section 

30914.7(a)(7)) 
 

SMART Add scope to the project to 
include multi-use path 

improvements. 
(hearing date December 13, 

2023) 

Clarify the scope includes 
implementation of the multi-use 
Pathway along SMART right-

of-way. 

None 

Highway 101-
Marin/Sonoma Narrows 
(Streets and Highways 

Code Section 
30914.7(a)(20)) 

TAM 
SCTA 

Modify scope to extend the 
project limits. (hearing date 

December 13, 2023) 

Update project limits to reflect 
entire limits of the Marin-
Sonoma Narrows project. 

None 

Solano County I-80/I-
680/SR-12 Interchange 
(Streets and Highways 

Code Section 
30914.7(a)(21)) 

STA Reduce funding by $16.7 million 
(hearing date December 13, 

2023) 
 

Redirect funds to project #2 for 
use in the I-80 Express Lanes 

(Toll System) in Solano 
County, sponsored by BAIFA. 

None 

State Route 37 
Improvements 

(Streets and Highways 
Code Section 

30914.7(a)(23)) 

TAM 
NVTA 
STA 

SCTA 
MTC 

Add the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission as a 

joint sponsor. 
(hearing date December 13, 

2023) 

MTC is a co-implementing 
agency for various phases of 

the project. 

None 

74



Regional Measure 3 Program: Project List as Proposed  
(draft changes are noted in italics) 

Streets and Highways Code Sections 30914.7(a) 

(1) BART Expansion Cars. Purchase new railcars for the Bay Area Rapid Transit District
(BART) to expand its fleet and improve reliability. The project sponsor is BART. Five hundred
million dollars ($500,000,000).

(2) Bay Area Corridor Express Lanes. Fund the environmental review, design, and construction
of express lanes to complete the Bay Area Express Lane Network, including supportive
operational improvements to connecting transportation facilities. Eligible projects include, but
are not limited to, express lanes on Interstate 80, Interstate 580, and Interstate 680 in the
Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, Interstate 880 in the County of Alameda, Interstate 280
in the City and County of San Francisco, Highway 101 in the City and County of San Francisco
and the County of San Mateo, State Route 84 and State Route 92 in the Counties of Alameda and
San Mateo, Interstate 80 from Red Top Road to the intersection with Interstate 505 in the County
of Solano, and express lanes in the County of Santa Clara. Eligible project sponsors include the
Bay Area Infrastructure Financing Authority, and any countywide or multicounty agency in a
bay area county that is authorized to implement express lanes. The Metropolitan Transportation
Commission shall make funds available based on performance criteria, including benefit-cost
and project readiness. Three hundred three hundred sixteen million seven hundred thousand
dollars ($316,700,000).

(3) Goods Movement and Mitigation. Provide funding to reduce truck traffic congestion and
mitigate its environmental effects. Eligible projects include, but are not limited to, improvements
in the County of Alameda to enable more goods to be shipped by rail, access improvements on
Interstate 580, Interstate 80, and Interstate 880, and improved access to the Port of Oakland. The
Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall consult and coordinate with the Alameda County
Transportation Commission to select projects for the program. Eligible applicants include cities,
counties, countywide transportation agencies, rail operators, and the Port of Oakland. The project
sponsors are the Metropolitan Transportation Commission and the Alameda County
Transportation Commission. One hundred sixty million dollars ($160,000,000).

(4) San Francisco Bay Trail/Safe Routes to Transit. Provide funding for a competitive grant
program to fund bicycle and pedestrian access improvements on and in the vicinity of the state-
owned toll bridges connecting to rail transit stations and ferry terminals. Eligible applicants
include cities, counties, transit operators, school districts, community colleges, and universities.
The project sponsor is the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. One hundred fifty million
dollars ($150,000,000).

75



(5) Ferry Enhancement Program. Provide funding to purchase new vessels, upgrade and 
rehabilitate existing vessels, build facilities and landside improvements, and upgrade existing 
facilities. The project sponsor is the San Francisco Bay Area Water Emergency Transportation 
Authority. Three hundred million dollars ($300,000,000). 

(6) BART to San Jose Phase 2. Extend BART from Berryessa Station to San Jose and Santa 
Clara. The project sponsor is the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority. Three hundred 
seventy-five million dollars ($375,000,000). 

(7) Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (SMART). Provide funding to extend the rail 
system north of the Charles M. Schulz-Sonoma County Airport to the Cities of Windsor and 
Healdsburg and implementation of the multi-use Pathway along SMART right-of-way. The 
project sponsor is the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District. Forty million dollars 
($40,000,000). 

(8) Capitol Corridor. Provide funding for track infrastructure that will improve the performance 
of Capital Corridor passenger rail operations by reducing travel times, adding service 
frequencies, and improving system safety and reliability. The project sponsor is the Capital 
Corridor Joint Powers Authority. Ninety million dollars ($90,000,000). 

(9) Caltrain Downtown Extension. Extend Caltrain from its current terminus at Fourth Street and 
King Street to the Transbay Transit Center. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall 
allocate funding to the agency designated to build the project, which shall be the project sponsor. 
Three hundred twenty-five million dollars ($325,000,000). 

(10) MUNI Fleet Expansion and Facilities. Fund replacement and expansion of the San 
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency’s MUNI vehicle fleet and associated facilities. The 
project sponsor is the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency. One hundred forty 
million dollars ($140,000,000). 

(11) Core Capacity Transit Improvements. Implement recommendations from the Core Capacity 
Transit Study and other ideas to maximize person throughput in the transbay corridor. Eligible 
projects include, but are not limited to, transbay bus improvements and high-occupancy vehicle 
(HOV) lane access improvements. Priority funding shall be the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit 
District’s (AC Transit) Tier 1 and Tier 2 projects identified in the study. The project sponsors are 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, Alameda County Transportation Commission, and 
AC Transit. One hundred forty million dollars ($140,000,000). 

(12) Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (AC Transit) Rapid Bus Corridor Improvements. 
Fund bus purchases and capital improvements to reduce travel times and increase service 
frequency along key corridors. The project sponsors are AC Transit and Alameda County 
Transportation Commission. One hundred million dollars ($100,000,000). 

76



(13) Transbay Rail Crossing. Fund preliminary engineering, environmental review, and design of 
a second transbay rail crossing and its approaches to provide additional rail capacity, increased 
reliability, and improved resiliency to the corridor. Subject to approval by the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, funds may also be used for construction, and, if sufficient matching 
funds are secured, to fully fund a useable segment of the project. The project sponsor is the Bay 
Area Rapid Transit District. Fifty million dollars ($50,000,000). 

(14) Tri-Valley Transit Access Improvements. Provide interregional and last-mile transit 
connections on the Interstate 580 corridor in the County of Alameda within the Tri-Valley area 
of Dublin, Pleasanton, and Livermore. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall 
consult with the Alameda County Transportation Commission, the Bay Area Rapid Transit 
District, and local jurisdictions to determine the project sponsor. One hundred million dollars 
($100,000,000). 

(15) Eastridge to BART Regional Connector. Extend Santa Clara Valley Transportation 
Authority light rail from the Alum Rock station to the Eastridge Transit Center. The project 
sponsor is the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority. One hundred thirty million dollars 
($130,000,000). 

(16) San Jose Diridon Station. Redesign, rebuild, and expand Diridon Station to more efficiently 
and effectively accommodate existing regional rail services, future BART and high-speed rail 
service, and Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority light rail and buses. The project 
sponsor shall consider accommodating a future connection to Norman Y. Mineta San Jose 
International Airport and prioritizing non-auto access modes. The project sponsor is the Santa 
Clara Valley Transportation Authority. One hundred million dollars ($100,000,000). 

(17) Dumbarton Corridor Improvements. Fund planning, environmental review, design, and 
construction of capital improvements within Dumbarton Bridge and rail corridor in the Counties 
of Alameda and San Mateo to relieve congestion, increase person throughput, and offer reliable 
travel times. Eligible projects include, but are not limited to, the projects recommended in the 
Dumbarton Corridor Transportation Study and improvements to facilitate rail and transit 
connectivity among the Altamont Corridor Express, Capitol Corridor, and Bay Area Rapid 
Transit District, including a rail connection at Shinn Station. The project sponsors are the Bay 
Area Toll Authority, Alameda County Transportation Commission, the San Mateo County 
Transit District, and the San Mateo County Transportation Authority. One hundred thirty million 
dollars ($130,000,000). 

(18) Highway 101/State Route 92 Interchange. Fund improvements to the interchange of 
Highway 101 and State Route 92 in the County of San Mateo. The project is jointly sponsored by 
the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County and the San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority. Fifty million dollars ($50,000,000). 

(19) Contra Costa Interstate 680/State Route 4 Interchange Improvements. Fund improvements 
to the Interstate 680/State Route 4 interchange to improve safety and reduce congestion, 

77



including, but not limited to, a new direct connector between northbound Interstate 680 and 
westbound State Route 4, a new direct connector between eastbound State Route 4 and 
southbound Interstate 680, and widening of State Route 4 to add auxiliary lanes and high-
occupancy vehicle lanes. The project sponsor is the Contra Costa Transportation Authority. Two 
hundred ten million dollars ($210,000,000). 

(20) Highway 101-Marin/Sonoma Narrows. Construct northbound and southbound high-
occupancy vehicle lanes on Highway 101 between Petaluma Boulevard North in Petaluma and 
State Route 37 in Novato. The project sponsors are the Transportation Authority of Marin and 
the Sonoma County Transportation Authority. One hundred twenty million dollars 
($120,000,000). 

(21) Solano County Interstate 80/Interstate 680/State Route 12 Interchange Project. Construct 
Red Top Road interchange and westbound Interstate 80 to southbound Interstate 680 connector. 
The project sponsor is the Solano Transportation Authority. One hundred thirty-three million 
three hundred thousand dollars ($133,300,000). 

(22) Interstate 80 Westbound Truck Scales. Improve freight mobility, reliability, and safety on 
the Interstate 80 corridor by funding improvements to the Interstate 80 Westbound Truck Scales 
in the County of Solano. The project sponsor is the Solano Transportation Authority. One 
hundred five million dollars ($105,000,000). 

(23) State Route 37 Improvements. Fund near-term and longer-term improvements to State 
Route 37 to improve the roadway’s mobility, safety, and long-term resiliency to sea level rise 
and flooding. For the purposes of the environmental review and design, the project shall include 
the segment of State Route 37 from the intersection in Marin County with Highway 101 to the 
intersection with Interstate 80 in the County of Solano. Capital funds may used on any segment 
along this corridor, as determined by the project sponsors. The project is jointly sponsored by the 
Transportation Authority of Marin, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, the Solano 
Transportation Authority, Sonoma County Transportation Authority, and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission. Funds for this project may be allocated to any of the project 
sponsors. One hundred million dollars ($100,000,000) 

(24) San Rafael Transit Center. Construct a replacement to the San Rafael (Bettini) Transit 
Center on an existing or new site, or both, in downtown San Rafael. The selected alternative 
shall be approved by the City of San Rafael, the Golden Gate Bridge, Highway and 
Transportation District, the Transportation Authority of Marin, and Marin Transit. The project 
sponsor is the Golden Gate Bridge, Highway and Transportation District. Thirty million dollars 
($30,000,000). 

(25) Richmond-San Rafael Bridge Access Improvements. Fund eastbound and westbound 
improvements in the Richmond-San Rafael Bridge corridor, including a direct connector from 
northbound Highway 101 to eastbound Interstate 580, westbound access and operational 
improvements in the vicinity of the toll plaza east of the bridge in Contra Costa County, and 

78



Richmond Parkway interchange improvements. Of the amount allocated to this project, one 
hundred thirty-five million dollars ($135,000,000) shall be dedicated to the direct connector from 
northbound Highway 101 to eastbound Interstate 580 in Marin County and seventy-five million 
dollars ($75,000,000) shall be dedicated to the projects in Contra Costa County. The project 
sponsors are the Bay Area Toll Authority, the Contra Costa Transportation Authority, and the 
Transportation Authority of Marin. Two hundred ten million dollars ($210,000,000). 

(26) North Bay Transit Access Improvements. Provide funding for transit improvements, 
including, but not limited to, bus capital projects, including vehicles, transit facilities, and access 
to transit facilities, benefiting the Counties of Marin, Sonoma, Napa, Solano, and Contra Costa. 
Priority shall be given to projects that are fully funded, ready for construction, and serving rail 
transit or transit service that operates primarily on existing or fully funded high-occupancy 
vehicle lanes. The project sponsor is the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. Eligible 
applicants are any transit operator providing service in the Counties of Contra Costa, Marin, 
Napa, Solano, or Sonoma. One hundred million dollars ($100,000,000). 

(27) State Route 29. Eligible project expenses include State Route 29 major intersection 
improvements, including Soscol Junction, and signal and signage improvements, which may 
include multimodal infrastructure and safety improvements between Carneros Highway (State 
Route 12/121) and American Canyon Road. The project sponsor is the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority. Twenty million dollars ($20,000,000). 

(28) Next-Generation Clipper Transit Fare Payment System. Provide funding to design, develop, 
test, implement, and transition to the next generation of Clipper, the bay area’s transit fare 
payment system. The next-generation system will support a universal, consistent, and seamless 
transit fare payment system for the riders of transit agencies in the bay area. The project sponsor 
is the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. Fifty million dollars ($50,000,000). 

(29) Interstate 680/Interstate 880/Route 262 Freeway Connector. Connect Interstate 680 and 
Interstate 880 in southern Alameda County to improve traffic movement, reduce congestion, and 
improve operations and safety. The project sponsor is the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission. Fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000). 

(30) Interstate 680/State Route 84 Interchange Reconstruction Project. Improve safety and 
regional and interregional connectivity by conforming State Route 84 to expressway standards 
between south of Ruby Hill Drive and the Interstate 680 interchange in southern Alameda 
County and implementing additional improvements to reduce weaving and merging conflicts and 
help address the additional traffic demand between Interstate 680 and State Route 84. The 
project sponsor is the Alameda County Transportation Commission. Eighty-five million dollars 
($85,000,000). 

(31) Interstate 80 Transit Improvements. Fund improvements to support expanded bus service in 
the Interstate 80 corridor including, but not limited to, bus purchases, expansion of the WestCAT 
storage yard and maintenance facility. Fund implementation of the San Pablo Avenue Multi-

79



modal Corridor (AC Transit). The project sponsor is the Contra Costa Transportation Authority. 
Twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000). 

(32) Byron Highway-Vasco Road Airport Connector. Fund construction of a new connector 
between Byron Highway and Vasco Road south of Camino Diablo Road as well as shoulder and 
other improvements to the Byron Highway, including a railroad grade separation, to improve 
safety and access to the Byron Airport and to facilitate economic development and access for 
goods movement in East Contra Costa County. The project sponsor is the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority. Ten million dollars ($10,000,000). 

(33) Vasco Road Safety Improvements. Fund the widening of lanes and construction of a 
concrete median barrier along 2.5 miles of Vasco Road beginning approximately three miles 
north of the Contra Costa/Alameda County Line. The project sponsor is the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority. Fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000). 

(34) East Contra Costa County Transit Intermodal Center. Fund the construction of a Transit 
Intermodal Center in Brentwood enhancing access to eBART and Mokelumne Bike 
Trail/Pedestrian Overcrossing at State Route 4. The project sponsor is the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority. Fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000). 

(35) Interstate 680 Transit Improvements. Fund improvements that will enhance transit service in 
the Interstate 680 corridor, including, but not limited to, implementing bus operations on 
shoulder (BOS), technology-based intermodal transit centers/managed parking lots and 
development of technology to enhance real-time travel information. Fund implementation of 
Shared Autonomous Vehicles (SAVs) to improve first and last mile transit connectivity. The 
project sponsor is the Contra Costa Transportation Authority. Ten million dollars ($10,000,000). 

 

80



Regional Measure 3 Annual Report to the 
Legislature 

Attachment E

MTC Resolution No. 4625, Revised 
Amendments to the Regional Measure 3 

Program

81



Date: December 20, 2023 
W.I.: 1255

Referred by: PAC 
Revised: 03/27/24-C 

ABSTRACT 
Resolution No. 4625, Revised 

This resolution adopts the Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Operating Program for FY2023-24. 

This resolution includes the following attachment: 

Attachment A – FY2023-24 RM3 Operating Program – Streets and Highways Code 
30914.7(c) 

Attachment A was revised on March 27, 2024 to incorporate programming amounts for sponsors 
of Express Bus operating projects. 

Further discussion of this action is contained in the Programming and Allocations Committee 
Summary Sheets dated December 13, 2023 and March 13, 2024.  

82



Date: December 20, 2023 
W.I.: 1255

Referred by: PAC

RE: Adoption of FY2023-24 RM3 Operating Program 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. 4625 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the regional 
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to California 
Government Code § 66500 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, Streets and Highways Code Sections 30950 et seq. created the Bay Area 
Toll Authority (“BATA”), which is a public instrumentality governed by the same board as that 
governing MTC; and 

WHEREAS, on June 5, 2018, a special election was held in the City and County of San 
Francisco, and the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, 
Solano, and Sonoma (individually, each a “County” and, collectively, the “Counties”) to approve 
a toll increase of three dollars ($3.00) phased in over time, including a one dollar ($1.00) toll 
increase on January 1, 2019, a one dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January 1, 2022, and a one 
dollar ($1.00) toll increase on January 1, 2025, for vehicles traveling on the state-owned bridges 
located in the San Francisco Bay Area (“Regional Measure 3”); and 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018, the Bay Area Toll Authority (“Authority”) adopted 
Resolution No. 126 accepting certified statements from the Registrar of Voters of the City and 
County of San Francisco and each of the Counties and observing that a majority of all voters 
voting on Regional Measure 3 (“RM3”) at such special election voted affirmatively for RM3; 
and 

WHEREAS, on December 19, 2018, the Authority adopted Resolution No. 128 adopting 
a toll schedule phasing in the toll increase approved pursuant to RM3, effective on January 1, 
2019; and 

WHEREAS, RM3 establishes the RM3 Expenditure Plan and identifies specific capital 
projects and operating programs eligible to receive RM3 funding as identified in Sections 
30914.7(a) and (c) of the California Streets and Highways Code; and  

83



 WHEREAS, RM3 assigns administrative duties and responsibilities for the 
implementation of the RM3 Expenditure Plan to MTC; and 

WHEREAS, BATA shall fund the projects of the RM3 Expenditure Plan by bonding or 
transfers to MTC; and 

 WHEREAS, MTC has developed guidelines for the programming and use of the RM3 
funds for operating support of transit projects, and 

 WHEREAS, these guidelines state that MTC will adopt a project specific budget for 
RM3 operating funds prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, now, therefore be it 

 RESOLVED, that MTC adopts a program that establishes RM3 operating subsidy 
amounts for FY2023-24, as outlined in Attachment A and incorporated herewith as though set 
forth at length; and, be it further  

 RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is authorized to make programming changes to 
Attachment A, up to $200,000 for each project, in consultation with the affected sponsor. 

  
 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

Alfredo Pedroza, Chair 

The above resolution was entered  
into by the Metropolitan Transportation  
Commission at a regular meeting  
of the Commission held in San Francisco,  
California and at other remote locations  
on December 20, 2023. 

84



Date:  December 20, 2023
W.I.: 1255

Referred by:  PAC
Revised: 03/27/24-C

Program Amount

Project # Project Name Sponsor Service (note 1) (notes 2,3)
1 Transbay Terminal TJPA Terminal Operations 2,990,080$              

AC Transit Express Bus 6,168,059$              
CCCTA Express Bus 22,630$                   
GGBHTD Express Bus 2,181,768$              
LAVTA Express Bus 915,829$                 
NVTA Express Bus 678,760$                 
SolTrans Express Bus 655,951$                 
ECCTA Express Bus 526,491$                 
WestCAT Express Bus 350,512$                 

Total 11,500,000$            

3 Ferry Service WETA Ferry Service 8,700,450$              

Grand Total 23,190,530$            

 

Attachment A
MTC Resolution No. 4625

FY 2023-24 RM3 Operating Program -- Streets and Highways Code 30914.7(c)

2 Regional Express Bus

Notes:

1. Transit operators will be provided increased flexibility for FY 2023-24 to use funds on eligible service 

to accommodate changing service demand. Sponsors listed for Project 2 must dedicate RM3 operating 

program funds to their highest ridership express bus routes that serve an intended bridge corridor/s 

and/or provide a direct connection to BART.  Before allocating funds, MTC staff and project sponsor 

will confirm route eligibility.

2. Amounts shown are subject to approval of the FY 2023-24 BATA Budget and funding availability.

3. Reimbursement is contingent upon execution of the RM3 Operating Agreement between MTC and 

individual project sponsors. Sponsors should contact MTC for the latest Operating Agreement form.

85



Mountain View

Dublin

Emeryville

Los Gatos

Danville

San Carlos

San Pablo

Belmont

Colma

Sebastopol

Campbell

Burlingame

Woodside

Fairfax

Windsor

Los Altos

Hillsborough

Morgan Hill

Pacifica

Atherton

Mill Valley

San Bruno

El Cerrito

American Canyon

San Anselmo

Clayton

Calistoga

Yountville

Sausalito

Monte Sereno

Suisun City

Newark

Belvedere

Portola Valley

Larkspur

Cotati

Millbrae

Sonoma

Saratoga

Orinda

Oakley

Lafayette

Rohnert Park

Corte
Madera

Ross

Piedmont

Benicia

Foster City

Albany

Hercules

Tiburon

Healdsburg

Pleasant Hill

Moraga

Dixon

East Palo Alto
Half Moon Bay

Rio Vista

Brisbane

Menlo
Park

Los Altos Hills

Pinole Martinez

Cupertino

Pittsburg

San Ramon

Sunnyvale

Milpitas

Brentwood

Redwood City

Livermore

Palo Alto

South
San Francisco

Pleasanton
San Leandro

Vallejo

Concord

Napa

San
Mateo Hayward

Santa Clara

Union City

Novato

Antioch

Vacaville

Walnut Creek

Santa
Rosa

Berkeley

Alameda

San
Rafael

Petaluma

Fremont

Richmond

Daly City

Oakland
San

Francisco

San Jose

Marin-Sonoma
Narrows 

I-680 Transit 
Improvements

Tri-Valley Transit Access 
Improvements

Caltrain 
Downtown
Extension

Eastridge to BART 
Regional Connector

I-80/I-680/SR-12
Interchange
Improvements 

BART to San Jose
(Phase 2)

San Jose
Diridon
Station 

Ferry Service 
Enhancement

Ferry Service 
Enhancement

Vasco Road 
Safety Improvements

Brentwood
Transit Center

Byron Highway-Vasco Road
Airport Connector

US-101/SR-92 
Interchange

SR-37
Improvements

SR-29
Improvements

I-80 Westbound
Truck Scales Amtrak

Capitol Corridor
Improvements

Amtrak 
Capitol Corridor
Improvements

AC Transit-Rapid Bus 
Improvements

Transbay
Rail Crossing

Muni Fleet
Expansion
and Facilities

Dumbarton Corridor
Improvements

I-680/I-880/SR-262 
Freeway Connector

I-680/SR-4 Interchange
Improvements

San Rafael
Transit Center

SMART Extension
to Windsor and
Healdsburg

Richmond -
San Rafael 
Bridge Access 
Improvements

I-80 Transit Improvements
in Contra Costa County

Ferry Service 
Enhancement

Ferry Service 
Enhancement
Ferry Service 
Enhancement

Amtrak
Capitol Corridor
Improvements

Amtrak
Capitol Corridor
Improvements

I-680/SR-84 Interchange 
Reconstruction

Core Capacity 
Transit Improvements

North Bay 
Transit Access 
Improvements

(Eligible in Contra Costa, 
Marin, Napa, 

Solano and Sonoma 
counties)

128

12

505

237

29

113

12

37

680

82

17

85

280

35

1

82

280

280

121

128

29

12

680

80

121
116

101

101

101

1

4

4

780

84
92

92

238

238

880

80

580

580

580

580

84

24

680

101

880

160

San
Mateo

Marin

Sonoma Napa

Solano

Contra
Costa

Alameda

Santa Clara

Regional Measure 3 Projects

Projects Not Mapped  
Regionwide Projects

New BART Cars

Next Generation 
Clipper Transit  
Fare Card

Competitive Programs

Corridor  
Express Lanes

Goods Movement  
and Mitigation

Bay Trail/Safe  
Routes to Transit

Regional  
Express Bus

Bus Project BART Project

RM3_projects.pdf | MTC Graphics.ms —12.2023  

Miles
Kilometers

N

0

0

5 10 15 20 25

5 10 15 20 25

Rail Project
Bus Project

Ferry Project
Light Rail Project

BART Project

BART existing

BART extension 
under construction

Highway Project
Existing Commuter Rail

Existing Light Rail

Miles
Kilometers

0

0

5 10 15 20 25

5 10 15 20 25

Map is for illustration only, showing planned projects and 
does not depict a commitment of funds. Exact projects 
and project limits to be funded are subject to design and 
environmental review and approvals.

Regional Measure 3 
Projects

86



©Getty Images/Jana Saastad

Bay Area Toll Authority
Bay Area Metro Center
375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105

email info@bayareametro.gov
tel 415-778-6700
web www.mtc.ca.gov/RM3

87

mailto:info%40bayareametro.gov?subject=RM%203
https://mtc.ca.gov/funding/regional-funding/regional-measure-3

	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 24-1018
	24-1018 - 4a_2024_05_31 Draft  Minutes RM3 Independent Oversight Committee
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 24-1019
	24-1019 - 5a_1_Regional_Measure_3_Allocations & Expenditures
	Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee
	Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Allocations and Expenditures Update
	Subject:
	Background:
	Revenue Collection
	Allocations and Expenditures to Date
	Issues:
	Recommendation:
	Attachments:



	24-1019 - 5a_2_Attach-A_Capital_Expenditure_Plan_Tracker
	Backup

	24-1019 - 5a_3_Attach B_Commission Allocation
	Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee
	Regional Measure 3 Allocations and Expenditures Update
	Index of Commission Allocation Actions - June 2024 through August 2024
	Commission Allocation Actions



	Legislation Details (With Text) - 24-1093
	24-1093 - 5b_1_Regional Measure 3 Semi Annual Report
	Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee
	Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Capital Program Semi-Annual Update
	Subject:
	Background:
	Issues:
	Recommendation:
	Attachments:



	24-1093 - 5b_2_Attachment_A_RM3_Semi-Annual_Report_June_2024
	Attachment A

	24-1093 - 5b_3_Attachment_B_RM3_Project _Status_Summaries
	Attachment B

	Legislation Details (With Text) - 24-1020
	24-1020 - 5c_1_Draft IOC Annual Report Summary
	Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee
	Draft RM3 Independent Oversight Committee Annual Report
	Subject:
	Background:
	MTC staff recommends that the IOC work to finalize and adopt their report to the Legislature in the month of November or December, following the receipt of audited financials and approval of the BATA Annual Report.
	Issues:
	Recommendation:
	Attachments:



	5c_2_Draft IOC Annual Report
	Regional Measure 3 Independent Oversight Committee
	Fiscal Year 2023–24 Annual Report – Introduction and Summary
	Regional Measure 3 (RM3) Accomplishments During FY 2024
	About the RM3 IOC
	RM3 IOC Accomplishments Supporting FY 2023-24
	RM3 IOC Plans for FY 2024-25 and Beyond

	RM3 IOC Members
	Regional Measure 3  Independent Oversight Committee
	Fiscal Year 2023–24 Annual Report - Findings
	Background and History of the Independent Oversight Committee
	FY 2023-24 IOC Activities and Accomplishments
	RM3 Expenditure Plan Revisions and Programming
	IOC Findings
	Capital Allocations
	MTC/BATA Actions
	IOC Findings

	Operating Allocations
	MTC/BATA Actions
	IOC Findings

	Invoicing and Monitoring
	MTC/BATA Actions
	IOC Findings

	Other RM3 Implementation Issues
	Independent Oversight Committee Commentary

	Appendix I: RM3 FY 2023-24 Annual Report to the Legislature


	24-1020 - 5c_3_Appendix I_DRAFT RM3_Annual_Report_to_the_Legislature_FY24
	5c_3_DRAFT RM3_Annual_Report_to_the_Legislature_FY24.pdf
	Regional Measure 3
	DRAFT Annual Report to the Legislature
	Fiscal Year 2023-2024
	1. Toll Implementation
	2. Revenue Collection
	3. Independent Oversight Committee Formation and Membership
	4. Update of Policies and Procedures
	5. Allocations and Expenditures to Date
	Attachments


	5c_4_DRAFT RM3_Annual_Report_attachments.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	RM-3_Report_to_Legistlature_Dec.2023_final.pdf
	RM3_Annual_Report_combined-TEXT_wLinks
	3a_23-1444_4_Attachment_A_Supplemental_Attachments_A-G
	C.	BATA Resolution No. 131, Revised (RM 3 Independent Oversight Committee establishment and membership)
	D.	MTC Resolution No. 4404, Revised (RM 3 Policies and Procedures)
	F.	RM 3 Capital Expenditure Plan
	G.	MTC Resolution No. 4579 (RM 3 Operating Funding) 




	3a_24-1007_2_Attach-A_RM3_Capital_Expenditure_Plan_Tracker.pdf
	Backup

	RES-4621_approved.pdf
	ABSTRACT
	Resolution
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	RES-4625_approved.pdf
	Abstract
	Resolution
	Attachment A








